From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams
Subject: Fwd: Model
Date: Thursday, August 17, 2023 10:04:30 PM

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:
From: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>
Date: August 17,2023 at 10:00:42 PM EDT
To: AJ Maestas <aj@nvgt.com>, Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Michael

Alford <MichaelAlford15@gmail.com>
Subject: Model

We need to turn the model to JPM tomorrow. Where are we on finalizing this?

Get Outlook for i0OS


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Drew Weatherford

Cc: Richard McCullough

Subject: Follow up

Date: Thursday, August 17, 2023 8:05:59 AM

Attachments: ESU Model (August 2023).xlsx
ESU Tracker 08.14.23.xlsx

As requested, attached please find the latest model and due diligence requirements.

Below is the language relative to the BOG regulation we discussed:

There shall be a uniform system of financial reporting within the State University System for auxiliary
services. Each institution may determine whether its auxiliary services will be self-supporting on an
individual or collective basis, except for athletics, which shall be a self-supporting entity

https://www.flbog.edu/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/9_013-Auxiliary-Operations-FINAL.pdf

Many thanks.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- DD Tracker
Date: Monday, August 14, 2023 8:15:00 AM
Attachments: ESU Tracker 08.13.23.pdf

ESU Tracker 08.13.23 .xIsx

Can you add another column to this and set up the primary lead for each open item within FSU,
please.

That way there is no confusion.

Thanks.

From: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Sunday, August 13, 2023 10:06 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; John Sinclair
<jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>;
Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;
Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Project Osceola -- DD Tracker

Kyle, Michael, JP and Carolyn —
Thank you all for all of your hard work and support on the due diligence workstream to date.

Going forward, we will be sharing the tracker of the various due diligence requests with this team
daily to track progress and open items. We plan on also sharing the same tracker with the Sixth
Street team. When we close items, the Sixth Street team may have follow-ups; this is meant to be
updated real-time, and each iteration we share will incorporate latest available information.

In addition to the status of outstanding items, the tracker has sections for comments we can utilize
to answer various questions that we have written responses to.

Please let us know if any questions or comments, and we plan on sharing the latest again tomorrow
by end of day.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan | 383 Madison Avenue, New
York, NY 10179 | O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
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From: Kyle Clark

To: John Sinclair; Stephen Ponder; Michael Alford; Ross Cobb
Cc: Michael Williams

Subject: Stadium Debt Issuance

Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 10:16:00 PM

Attachments: ESU Stadium Seating - BOG Submission Checklist v1.docx

Good evening,

| have gotten several calls this week from BOG staff regarding the stadium renovation project.
Yesterday, they requested a meeting for this afternoon. Michael Williams and | met with them, and
their primary concern was the timing of our request for approval.

After a lot of discussion, they reluctantly granted us an extension to August 31 to submit the
required materials for their November meeting. We committed that we would do our part to get it
to them by no later than8/31 but would try to submit earlier, if possible. Please understand, they
will not provide any additional extensions. This was a major lift to get the additional two weeks.
Please remember that many of us will be tied up August 30— 31. Also, we have a Board of
Governors meeting on August 28-30.  We really need to shoot to have the majority of the packet
complete by next Friday so that | can begin my review.

Attached is the BOG Submission Checklist for the items that need to be prepared by each area. This
is the same checklist we used for the Football Operations Project. This is mandated by the Division
of Bond Finance, these documents and requirements are not unique to FSU. As JP knows, these are
long standing requirements that are published to the Direct Support Organizations.

Michael Williams has created a Microsoft Teams Project (Stadium Seating Project) an added the
documents that require review and updating. We have updated what we could at this time but we
need you all to review and update. The most critical items at this time include the Project Summary
(#3), Project Analysis (#20), and Internal Rate of Return Analysis (#21) as this information will
generate the information for the remaining items.

Please let us know if you have any questions. We appreciate your help meeting the BOG and DBF
requirements.

Many thanks.


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
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1. A formal letter of transmission signed by the University’s official point of contact, which discloses and explains any exceptions to the Debt Management Guidelines



University to provide.



2. A resolution of the DSO board of directors approving the debt issuances, if applicable, and a resolution of the university board of trustees approving the debt issuance and authorizing the university to request Board approval of the debt issuance.  For debt to be issued by DBF, at the request of the university, DBF staff will work with the university to determine a not-to-exceed amount of debt to be included in the board of trustees requesting resolution to the Board and in preparing required debt service and source-and-use schedules.



DBF to provide.



3. The project program, feasibility studies or consultant reports (if available), and an explanation of how the project being proposed is consistent with the mission of the university and an executive project summary, including appropriate references to any related reports. 



Boosters/University/DBF to provide. 



4. Estimated project cost, with schedules drawn by month and including start and completion dates, estimated useful life, and the date bond proceeds are required.



University/Boosters to provide.



5. The sources-and-uses of funds, clearly depicting all costs, funding sources expected to be used to complete the project and the estimated amount of the debt to be issued.



DBF to provide.



6. An estimated debt service schedule with the assumed interest rate on the debt clearly disclosed.  If the proposed debt service is not structured on a level debt service basis, an explanation shall be provided which gives the reason why it is desirable to deviate from a level debt structure.



DBF to provide.



7. One consolidated debt service schedule separately showing all outstanding debt related to or impacting the debt being proposed, the proposed debt and the new estimated total debt service.



DBF to provide. 



8. A description of the security supporting the repayment of the proposed debt and the lien position the debt will have on that security.  If the lien is junior to any other debt, the senior debt must be described.  Furthermore, a description of why the debt is proposed to be issued on a junior lien basis must be provided.  A statement citing the legal authority for the source of revenues securing repayment must also be provided.



University/Boosters to provide.



9. If debt is to be incurred on a parity basis with outstanding debt, a schedule showing estimated compliance with any additional bonds requirement set forth in the documents governing the outstanding debt.  The applicable provisions of the documents for bonds of DSOs should be provided.



DBF to provide.



10. Financial statements for five years, if available, for the auxiliary, if auxiliary revenues are pledged.



Provided as part of the FOF Submission



11. A five-year history, if available, and five-year projection of the revenues securing payment and debt service coverage.  To the extent applicable, the projections must be shown on the individual project as well as the entire system.  All revenue items securing repayment must be clearly set forth as separate line items.  An explanation must be provided with regard to growth assumptions, and to the amount and status of approval of any rate increases.  The effect of the rate increases on the projections and expected revenues and expenses for the new facility should be clearly set forth as a separate line item.  If rate increases are necessary, a commitment must be made to increase rates to the needed levels.  Major categories of any operating expenses should be set forth as separate line items with an explanation of assumptions regarding increases or decreases.



DBF to provide but will need University/Boosters input.



12. Evidence that the project is consistent with the university’s master plan or a statement that the project is not required to be in the master plan.



University to provide.



13. For variable rate debt proposals:



i) the expected reduction in total borrowing costs based on a comparison of fixed versus variable interest rates;

ii) a variable rate debt management plan that addresses liquidity and interest rate risks and provides, at a minimum: a description of budgetary controls, a description of liquidity arrangements, a discussion of why the amount of variable rate debt being proposed is appropriate, and a plan for hedging interest rate exposure.  If interest rate risks are to be mitigated by the use of derivatives, then evidence that the counterparty has a long term rating of at least an A/A2 and a swap management plan as set forth in the Board’s Debt Management Guidelines must be submitted;

iii) a pro forma showing the fiscal feasibility of the project using current market interest rates plus 200 basis points;

iv) the total amount of variable rate debt including the proposed debt as a percentage of the total amount of university and DSO debt outstanding; and 

v) the individual or position that will be responsible for the reporting requirements for variable rate debt as set forth in these guidelines.



Not applicable.



14. If all or any portion of the financing is contemplated to be done on a taxable basis, then evidence demonstrating that the issuance of taxable debt is in the best interest of the university must be submitted.



Not applicable, assuming that the entire deal will be tax-exempt. Let us know if there is any reason you think this will not be the case.



15. A statement explaining whether legislative approval is required, and if required, an explanation as to when legislative approval will be sought or evidence that legislative approval has already been obtained.



University to provide.



16. A statement that the debt issuance is in accordance with the university’s debt management policy or, if not, an explanation of the specific variances as well as the reasons supporting the variances.



University to Provide.



17. If a request is made to employ a negotiated method of sale, an analysis must be provided supporting the selection of this method that includes a discussion of the factors set forth in section IV of these Guidelines.



DBF to provide.



18. A description of the process used to select each professional engaged in the transaction, showing compliance with the competitive selection process required by these Guidelines.  Specific contact information for each selected professional must be included and, at a minimum, should disclose the professional’s name, firm name, address, email address, phone number and facsimile number.



DBF to provide.



19. The most recent annual variable rate debt report.



Not applicable.



20. An analysis must be prepared and submitted which provides quantitative metrics justifying the need for the construction or acquisition of the project and explains why the project is essential to the university’s core mission.  There must also be a detailed assessment of private sector alternatives, and a determination of whether the private sector can offer a comparable alternative at a lower cost.  This information may be included as part of a project feasibility study or may be a stand-alone report.



University/Boosters to provide.



21. An analysis must be prepared which calculates the expected return on investment or internal rate of return for a revenue-generating project or another appropriate quantitative measure for a non-revenue generating project.



Boosters to provide.




From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams
Subject: Read: FW: Project Osceola -- Sixth Street Due Diligence Tracker
Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 9:20:03 AM

Your message
To: Kyle Clark
Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- Sixth Street Due Diligence Tracker
Sent: 8/10/2023 9:14 AM

was read on 8/10/2023 9:20 AM.


mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CCF6D61D92BE4687816765186FA33B4D-CLARK, KYLE
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=12028f0894544199bbc40a0cae066c46-Williams, M

Forge Capital Partners, LLC
P) 813.574.6779 (Tampa)
C) 561.213.9779 (cell)

pcollins@forgecapitalpartners.com


mailto:pcollins@forgecapitalpartners.com

From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams
Subject: Read: FW: Project Osceola -- Sixth Street Due Diligence Tracker
Date: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 6:11:36 PM

Your message
To: Kyle Clark
Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- Sixth Street Due Diligence Tracker
Sent: 8/9/2023 5:38 PM

was read on 8/9/2023 6:12 PM.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams; Michael Alford

Cc: John Sinclair

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Model

Date: Thursday, August 3, 2023 1:17:00 PM

| spoke with the Chair about this earlier today. Being timely on this final version is very important.
Please prioritize this and make sure we turn it around timely.

Many thanks.

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Thursday, August 3, 2023 1:14 PM

To: Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>
Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- Model

Michael,

FYIl: JP and | will be meeting with JP Morgan and Navigate in the morning to run through the final
documents but will need responses to their follow up questions sent earlier in the week and signoff
on the latest proforma. (See below message from JP Morgan’s conversation with Chair Collins)

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Thursday, August 03, 2023 12:25 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff

<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Model

Michael and Navigate team —
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We just got off the phone with Peter.

The plan is for JPM to reformat the model a bit over the next 12-18 hours, share with FSU overnight,
and have a discussion first thing tomorrow morning to make sure everyone is on the same page and
signed off on the model and available proceeds build.

To that end, are you able to provide availability for tomorrow morning for you all and JP Sinclair?
Critical to have everyone on the call so we can get all of the required details if needed on certain line
items.

Apologies for the urgency.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

Sent: Thursday, August 03, 2023 10:51 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; 'Charles Rolston' <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Model

Team — can we set up a brief call today or tomorrow to walk through a few of the updates and
details around capital project sources?

Michael — I know J.P. confirmed ||| S 20 to be used for Fixed Capital Outlays;

can you please confirm if they can also cover the other Buildings & Grounds Expenses?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 01, 2023 7:41 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
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Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Model

Hey Quinn,

Please see attached update reflecting the changes we discussed.
Let me know if you have questions.

Thanks,

Charles

Charles Rolston
Sr. Director, Client Strategy

647.889.4824
Charles@NVGT.com

www.NVGT.com

NAVIGATE
in|v

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:05 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Model

Hi all =
Hope you had a good weekend.
Just wanted to follow-up on the note below.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 4:28 PM

To: 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
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USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: Project Osceola -- Model

Michael and Team —
Thanks again for all of your time yesterday.

As we’ve spent more time with the model beyond the assumptions and mechanics, we wanted to
flag a critical observation.

This dynamic makes it very difficult to fund any investment distribution in the initial years and still
meet expense requirements.

Understand some aspects of the model are still to be confirmed / revised (details below for
reference), but we wanted to flag to ensure we were aligned and not missing anything. We are
available to speak at your earliest convenience.

In addition, kindly see below list of follow-ups / points to confirm in the model coming out of our call
yesterday:

1. Provide detailed project-level sources for all planned capital projects during projection period

a. Important to see how much of each project is being funded by_

vs. debt vs. equity
2. Revise “Sports Data” CAGR downward 2032E-2043E
3. Revise DTC MMR growth to match gross revenue growth

4. Add | ity to debt service tab

5. Send latest model with ‘Capital Stack’ tab fixed

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan | 383 Madison Avenue, New
York, NY 10179 | O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

This message is confidential and subject to terms at:


mailto:t.smith@jpmorgan.com
mailto:jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com
mailto:quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including on confidential, privileged or legal
entity information, malicious content and monitoring of electronic messages. If you are not the
intended recipient, please delete this message and notify the sender immediately. Any
unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

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
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From:
To:

Kyle Clark
Michael Williams

Subject: Fwd: Burt Reynolds Hall

Date:

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 12:28:23 PM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Colson Hosford <cyhosford@fsu.edu>

Date: July 11, 2023 at 10:58:13 AM EDT

To: "Sherraden, Dan" <DSherraden@mcgriff.com>, John Sinclair
<jpsinclair@fsu.edu>, jthomas@thecamgroup.net, Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>, Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Benjamin Zierden <bzierden@admin.fsu.edu>

Subject: Burt Reynolds Hall

JP & Kyle,
Our insurance carrier needs notice that we are terminating the property insurance for

Burt Reynolds Hall beginning August 1% (or the day our last tenant vacates). Please help
me get the appropriate approvals from ownership over to Mcgriff (attached). We will
maintain G&L until told otherwise.

Dan, please let us know what additional information is needed. Thx.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: FW: Policy 4-OP-D-2-H Investments

Date: Thursday, July 6, 2023 3:35:00 PM

Attachments: 4-OP-D-2-H Investment Policy 05-2023 Approved Red line.docx

4-0P-D-2-H Investment Policy 05-2023 Approved Clean.docx

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 1:55 PM

To: Amy Hecht <ahecht@fsu.edu>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; Clay Ingram
<hcingram@fsu.edu>; Dennis Schnittker <dschnitt@admin.fsu.edu>; James Clark <jclark5@fsu.edu>;
Janet Kistner <jkistner@fsu.edu>; Marissa Langston <m.langston@fsu.edu>; Mark Riley
<mriley@admin.fsu.edu>; Marla A Vickers <Marla.Vickers@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford
<Michael.Alford@fsu.edu>; Richard McCullough <rmccullough@fsu.edu>; Stacey Patterson
<stacey@fsu.edu>; Susannah Wesley-Ahlschwede <swesley@fsu.edu>

Subject: Policy 4-OP-D-2-H Investments

Dear Colleagues,

Attached is a revised policy for your review. This policy has been through legal review, as well the
University’s Investment Committee, and now needs your approval prior to posting for 21-day notice.

University Policy — 4-OP-D-2-H Investments

Purpose of Policy: This policy is designed to ensure the prudent management of public funds, the
availability of operating and capital funds when needed, and an investment return competitive with
comparable funds and financial market indices.

Summary of Changes:

1. Added language to more accurately reflect the management strategy of safety and liquidity
first, then returns.

2. Updated Prudence and Ethical Standards language to include procedures that protect
University staff if adverse credit or market events occur.

3. Updated Ethics and Conflicts of Interest to include reference to the Investment Committee.

4. Updated Maturity and Liquidity Requirements section to include duration language for the
short-term and intermediate-term segments.

5. Revised benchmarks to reflect current naming and added language to allow the use of other
indices as needed.

In order to expedite the process, please let me know if you have comments/questions that need to
be addressed prior to posting for notice. | will incorporate any feedback received by close of
business Friday, July 7. We will plan to post the policy the week of July 10 unless there are
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4-OP-D-2-H Investments 

Responsible Executive​: Finance and Administration

Approving Official: Vice President for Finance and Administration

Effective Date: June 1, 2023

Revision History: June 1, 2023; August 21, 2017 (formatting only); November 1, 2016; January 1, 2014



I. INTRODUCTION

A. 	OBJECTIVE 

The purpose of this Investment Policy (hereinafter “Policy”) is to set forth the investment objectives and parameters for the management of the funds of the Florida State University, (hereinafter “University”). This Policy is designed to ensure the prudent management of public funds, the availability of operating and capital funds when needed, and an investment return competitive with comparable funds and financial market indices.

II. POLICY 

A. OVERSIGHT 

The Vice President for Finance and Administration will appoint an Investment Committee (“Committee”) to consist of three or more individuals related to the University and familiar with investments. The Committee will oversee the University’s Investment program and may utilize the expertise of an investment advisor to assist in the oversight and implementation of the Funds. Such investment advisor must be registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

B. SCOPE 

In accordance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes and the State Board of Education rule 6A-14.0765, this Policy applies to cash and investments (hereafter “portfolio”) for operating funds under the University’s control in excess of those required to meet current expenses. In addition, a portion of the University’s operating funds may be designated for incremental longer-term growth and allocated to the Florida State University Foundation Long-Term Pool Portfolio (“FSUF LTP”). The FSUF LTP Investment Policy StatementStatement of Investment Policy and Objectives will apply to those funds instead of this Policy. This policy applies only to funds not invested in the FSUF LTP. Funds which have statutory investment requirements conflicting with this Policy are not subject to the provisions of this Policy. Additionally, the Policy does not apply to pension funds, trust funds or funds related to the issuance of debt where there are other existing policies or Indentures in effect for such funds.

C. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The University’s Policy shall be structured to ensure that the highest priority is placed on the safety of principal and the liquidity of funds. The University's investment portfolio shall be managed in a manner to attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles while preserving and protecting capital in the overall portfolio. Investments shall be made based upon statutory constraints and subject to the available designated staffing capabilities.

1. Safety of Principal – The foremost objective of this investment program is the safety of the principal of those funds within the portfolio(s). Investment transactions shall seek to be consistent with the other investment objectives, which are to keep capital losses at a minimum, whether they are from securities defaults or erosion of market value. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.

2. Maintenance of Liquidity – The portfolio(s) shall be managed in such a manner that funds are available to meet reasonably anticipated cash flow requirements in an orderly manner. Periodic cash flow analyses will be completed in order to ensure that the portfolio(s) is/are positioned to provide sufficient liquidity.

3. Return on Investment – The portfolio(s) shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of least importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. However, return is attempted through active management where authorized staff or the investment advisor utilizes a total return strategy (which includes both realized and unrealized gains and losses in the portfolio). This total return strategy seeks to increase the value of the portfolio through reinvestment of income and capital gains. The core of investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed. Despite this, authorized staff or an investment advisor may trade to recognize a loss from time to time to achieve a perceived relative value based on its potential to enhance the total return of the portfolio.

D. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

As designated by the Vice President for Finance and Administration (hereafter “Chief Financial Officer”), the responsibility for the administration of the investment program is vested in the University Controller. The University Controller shall exercise authority to regulate the administration of the investment program through the Finance Department. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as stated in the policy.



E. PRUDENCE AND ETHICAL STANDARDS 

The University adopts the “Prudent Person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing the overall investment program. The University Controller and staff, acting in accordance with the written procedures and exercising due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific security's credit risk or market price changes, provided that these changes are reported immediately, and that appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. The "Prudent Person" rule states: 

“Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived from the investment.”

While the standard of prudence to be used by investment officials who are officers or employees is the “Prudent Person” standard, any person or firm hired or retained to invest, monitor, or advise concerning these assets shall be held to the higher standard of “Prudent Expert”. The standard shall be that in investing and reinvesting moneys and in acquiring, retaining, managing, and disposing of investments of these funds, the contractor shall exercise: the judgment, care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims by diversifying the investments of the funds, so as to minimize the risk, considering the probable income as well as the probable safety of their capital.

F. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

The University Controller, Finance Department Controller’s Office Employees, and Investment Committee involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Also, the above personnel and Investment Committee members involved in the investment process shall disclose to the Chief Financial Officer any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business with the University, and they shall further disclose any material personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the University’s investment program. Investment related officers and personnel shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of their entity.

G. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 

The Short-Term Segment, to the extent possible, an attempt will be made to match investment maturities with the University’s known cash needs and anticipated cash flow requirements. Investments of the Short-Term Segment shall have maturities of no longer than twenty-four (24) months. The maximum average duration of the Short-Term Segment is one and a quarter (1.25) years.

Intermediate-Term Segment (“core funds”) shall have a term appropriate to the need for funds. Investment of the Intermediate Term Segment in fixed income maturities shall not exceed five and one-half (5.50) years from the date of settlement. The overall weighted average duration of the core funds shall be less than three (3) years.

[bookmark: _Hlk117251102]The Long-Term Segment has an investment objective based on a long-term investment horizon (“Time Horizon”) of greater than five years. Interim fluctuations should be viewed with appropriate perspective. The University has adopted a long-term investment horizon such that the risks and duration of investment losses are carefully weighed against the long-term potential for appreciation of assets. The overall weighted average duration for the portfolio shall be less than three (?) years. Maturity and duration requirements do not apply to investments held in mutual funds.

H. EXTERNAL INVESTMENT ADVISORS AND CONSULTANTS 

The Investment Committee shall have the authority to engage external professional advisors (i.e. investment advisor) they deem appropriate to supplement the University’s Investment Staff. Performance reviews of all external advisors will be conducted by the Committee at least annually. In employing an investment advisor to manage portfolio(s), such investment advisor or firm must be registered under the Investment Adviser’s Act of 1940.

I. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

Investment performance for each segment shall be measured against market indexes with similar maturity characteristics. 

1. The Short-Term Segment shall be evaluated in comparison with the weighted average return (net book value rate of return) of the Standard & Poor’s Local Government Investment Pool All 30-Day rate (LGIP30D). The Standard & Poor’s LGIP30D represents Government Investment Pools that maintain a stable net asset value of $1 per share with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less and is are rated in Standard & Poor’s two highest money market fund rating categories: “AAAm” and “AAm.”

2. The Intermediate-Term Segment as well as any investments with SPIA shall be evaluated with the annual objective of achieving a comparable total return performance to the ICE BofA  1-3 Year Government Index or ICE BofA 1-5 Year Government Index. These maturity ranges are appropriate benchmarks based on the objectives of the University, and the weighted average duration should not exceed 120% of the benchmark. The average credit quality shall be no less than “A”.



3. For the Long-Term Segment, the Investment Advisor shall compare the investment results on a quarterly basis to appropriate peer universe benchmarks, as well as market indices in both equity and fixed income markets. Examples of benchmarks and indexes that will be used include the Russell 3000 Index for broad U.S. equity strategies; S&P 500 Index for large cap U.S. equities, Russell 2000 Index for small cap U.S. equities, MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Index for broad based non-U.S. equity strategies; MSCI Europe, Australasia, and Far East (EAFE) Index for developed markets international equities, Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index for fixed income securities, and the U.S. 91 Day T-bill for cash equivalents. The Russell 3000 Index will be used to benchmark the U.S. equities portfolio; the MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Index will be used to benchmark the non-U.S. equities portfolio; the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index will be used to benchmark the fixed income portfolio. The categories “Other” will be benchmarked against appropriate indices depending on the specific characteristics of the strategies and funds used.

4. Other indices may be used from time to time to measure the portfolio performance.


J. RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION 

Investments held should be diversified to the extent practicable to control the risk of loss resulting from overconcentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer, instrument, dealer, or bank through which financial instruments are bought and sold. Diversification strategies within the guidelines set forth in this policy should be reviewed and revised periodically as deemed necessary by the Investment Committee.

K. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 

Authorized Staff shall only purchase securities from financial institutions which are qualified as public depositories by the Treasurer of the State of Florida, or institutions designated as “Primary Dealers” by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Qualified Public Depositories may provide the services of a securities dealer through a Section 20 subsidiary of the financial institution or from direct issuers of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances.

The Long-Term Segment investment strategy may not include the use of Primary Dealers for transactions. The Long-Term Segment is exempt from this requirement.

The University’s Investment Advisor shall utilize and maintain its own list of approved primary and non-primary dealers.

L. THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 

All securities purchased by the University or by its approved Investment Advisor shall be properly designated as an asset of the University and held in safe keeping by a third-party custodial bank or other third-party custodial institution. The custodian shall accept transaction instructions only from those persons who have been duly authorized by the University and which authorization has been provided, in writing, to the custodian. No withdrawal of securities, in whole or in part, shall be made from safekeeping, shall be permitted unless by such a duly authorized person.

The custodian shall provide the University with safekeeping statements that provide detailed information on the securities held by the custodian. On a monthly basis, the custodian will also provide reports that list all securities held for the University, the book value of holdings and the market value as of month-end.

Security transactions between a broker/dealer and the custodian involving the purchase or sale of securities by transfer of money or securities must be made on a “delivery vs. payment” basis, if applicable, to ensure that the custodian will have the security or money, as appropriate, in hand at the conclusion of the transaction. Securities held as collateral shall be held free and clear of any liens.

M. MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT 

The University Controller and Investment Advisor will utilize a Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) master repurchase agreement and require all approved institutions and dealers transacting repurchase agreements to adhere to the requirements of the SIFMA master repurchase agreement.

N. BID REQUIREMENT 

The University shall require purchases and sales to be executed in a competitive bid environment wherein at least three offers or bids are obtained for each security. Exceptions to this approach may be made when (1) prices for purchases/sales are compared to systems providing current market prices and deemed reasonable, (2) when the security to be purchased is unique to one institution, or (3) when the security has recently been issued and is trading at the same price by all financial institutions.

The Long-Term Segment is exempt from this requirement.

O. INTERNAL CONTROLS 

The University Controller will establish a system of internal controls and operational procedures, which will be documented in writing. The controls will be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, and misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets, or imprudent actions by University employees and officers of the university.

P. CONTINUING EDUCATION 

Investment Committee members and University employees responsible for making investment decisions will annually complete eight hours of continuing education in pertinent subjects or courses of study related to investment practices and procedures.

Q. REPORTING 

A detailed investment report will be prepared at least annually, which includes securities in all portfolios by class or type, book value, total return performance (if applicable to the strategy being utilized), income earned, and market value as of the report date. Each Investment Advisor shall provide the University with a “Quarterly Investment Report” that summarizes but is not limited to the following: 

1. Recent market conditions, economic developments and anticipated investment conditions.

2. The investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter.

3. A description of all securities held in investment portfolios at month-end.

4. The total rate of return performance (if applicable to the strategy being utilized) for the quarter and year-to-date versus appropriate benchmarks.

5. Any areas of concern warranting possible revisions to current or planned investment strategies. The market values presented in these reports will be consistent with accounting guidelines in GASB Statement(s) 31, and 40, and 72.


R. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 

Permitted Investments

Investments should be made subject to the cash flow needs and such cash flows are subject to revisions as market conditions and the University’s needs change. University’s Finance DepartmentController’s Office is responsible for updating cash flow projections and expenditure projections. However, when the invested funds are needed in whole or in part for the purpose originally intended or for more optimal investments, the University Controller or designee and/or the University’s Investment Advisor may sell the investment at the then-prevailing market price and place the proceeds into the proper account at the University’s custodian.

The following are the investment requirements and allocation limits on security types, issuers, and maturities as established by the University. Diversification strategies within the established guidelines shall be reviewed and revised periodically as necessary by the University Controller. The University Controller, and/or University’s Investment Advisor shall have the option to further restrict investment percentages from time to time based on market conditions, risk and diversification investment strategies. The percentage allocations requirements for investment types and issuers are calculated based on the original cost of each investment, at the time of purchase. Investments not listed in this Policy are prohibited.






		Sector

		Sector Maximum (%)

		Per Issuer Maximum (%)

		Minimum Ratings Requirement1

		Maximum Maturity



		U.S. Treasury

		100%

		100%

		N/A

		5.50 Years



		GNMA

		100%

		40%

		N/A

		5.50 Years 
avg. life4



		Other U.S. Government Guaranteed (e.g. AID, GTC)

		100%

		10%

		N/A

		5.50 Years



		Federal Agency/GSE: FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB*

		75%

		40%3

		N/A

		5.50 Years



		Federal Agency/GSE other than those above

		75%

		10%

		N/A

		5.50 Years



		Supranationals where U.S. is a shareholder and voting member

		25%

		10%

		Highest ST or Highest LT Rating Categories (A-1/P-1, AAA/Aaa, or equivalent)

		5.50 Years



		Corporates

		50%2

		25%

		Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories (A-1/P-1, A-/A3 or equivalent)

		5.50 Years



		Municipals

		25%

		5%

		Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories (SP-1/MIG 1, A-/A3, or equivalent)

		5.50 Years



		Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS)

		25%

		40%3

		N/A

		5.50 Years 
avg. life4



		Asset-Backed Securities (ABS)

		25%

		5%

		Highest ST or LT Rating (A-1+/P-1, AAA/Aaa, or equivalent)

		5.50 Years 
avg. life4



		Non-Negotiable Collateralized Bank Deposits (CDs) or Savings Accounts

		50%

		None, if fully collateralized

		None, if fully collateralized.

		2 Years



		Commercial Paper (CP)

		50%2

		5%

		Highest ST Rating Category (A-1/P-1, or equivalent)

		270 Days



		Repurchase Agreements (Repo or RP)

		40%

		20%

		Counterparty (or if the counterparty is not rated by an NRSRO, then the counterparty’s parent) must be rated in the Highest ST Rating Category (A-1/P-1, or equivalent)
If the counterparty is a Federal Reserve Bank, no rating is required

		1 Year



		Money Market Funds (MMFs)

		50%

		25%

		Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs who rate the fund (AAAm/Aaa-mf, or equivalent)

		N/A



		Intergovernmental Pools (LGIPs)

		50%

		25%

		Highest Fund Quality and Volatility Rating Categories by all NRSROs who rate the LGIP, (AAAm/AAAf, S1, or equivalent)

		N/A



		Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA)

		100%

		N/A

		Three Highest Fund Ratings by all NRSROs who rate the fund (A+f S2, or equivalent)

		N/A



		Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Funds (“Florida Prime”)

		25%

		N/A

		Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs

		



		Mutual Funds & ETFs

		50%

		10%

		N/A

		N/A



		Internal Bank

		25%

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Notes:

1. Rating by at least one SEC-registered Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”), unless otherwise noted. ST=Short-term; LT=Long-term.

2. Maximum allocation to all corporate and bank credit instruments is 50% combined.

3. Maximum exposure to any one Federal agency, including the combined holdings of Agency debt and Agency MBS, is 40%.

4. The maturity limit for MBS and ABS is based on the expected average life at time of settlement, measured using Bloomberg or other industry standard methods. Average life reflects the point at which an investor will have received back half of the original principal (face) amount. The average life may be different from the stated legal maturity included in a security’s description.

* Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA); Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC); Federal Home Loan Bank or its District banks (FHLB); Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB).





Important Terms

U.S. Treasury & Government Guaranteed - U.S. Treasury obligations, and obligations the principal and interest of which are backed or guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.

Federal Agency/GSE - Debt obligations, participations or other instruments issued or fully guaranteed by any U.S. Federal agency, instrumentality or government-sponsored enterprise (GSE).

Supranationals – U.S. dollar denominated debt obligations of a multilateral organization of governments where U.S. is a shareholder and voting member.

Corporates – U.S. dollar denominated corporate notes, bonds or other debt obligations issued or guaranteed by a domestic or foreign corporation, financial institution, non-profit, or other entity.

Municipals – Obligations, including both taxable and tax-exempt, issued or guaranteed by any State, territory or possession of the United States, political subdivision, public corporation, authority, agency board, instrumentality or other unit of local government of any State or territory.

Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities - Mortgage-backed securities (MBS), backed by residential, multi-family or commercial mortgages, that are issued or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by a U.S. Federal agency or government sponsored enterprise, including but not limited to pass-throughs, collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and REMICs.

Asset-Backed Securities - Asset-backed securities (ABS) whose underlying collateral consists of loans, leases or receivables, including but not limited to auto loans/leases, credit card receivables, student loans, equipment loans/leases, or home-equity loans.

Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit and Savings Accounts - Non-negotiable interest-bearing time certificates of deposit, or savings accounts in banks organized under the laws of this state or in national banks organized under the laws of the United States and doing business in this state, provided that any such deposits are secured by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

Commercial Paper – U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper issued or guaranteed by a domestic or foreign corporation, company, financial institution, trust or other entity, only unsecured debt permitted.

Repurchase Agreements - Repurchase agreements (Repo or RP) that meet the following requirements: 

1. Must be governed by a written SIFMA Master Repurchase Agreement which specifies securities eligible for purchase and resale, and which provides the unconditional right to liquidate the underlying securities should the Counterparty default or fail to provide full timely repayment.

2. Counterparty must be a Federal Reserve Bank, a Primary Dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or a nationally chartered commercial bank.

3. Securities underlying repurchase agreements must be delivered to a third-party custodian under a written custodial agreement and may be of deliverable or tri-party form. Securities must be held in the University’s custodial account or in a separate account in the name of the University.

4. Acceptable underlying securities include only securities that are direct obligations of, or that are fully guaranteed by, the United States or any agency of the United States, or U.S. Agency-backed mortgage related securities.

5. Underlying securities must have an aggregate current market value of at least 102% (or 100% if the counterparty is a Federal Reserve Bank) of the purchase price plus current accrued price differential at the close of each business day.

6. Final term of the agreement must be 1 year or less.

Money Market Funds - Shares in open-end and no-load money market mutual funds, provided such funds are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and operate in accordance with Rule 2a-7. A thorough investigation of any money market fund is required prior to investing, and on an annual basis. A current prospectus must be obtained.

Local Government Investment Pools – State, local government or privately-sponsored investment pools that are authorized pursuant to state law. A thorough investigation of any intergovernmental investment pool is required prior to investing, and on an annual basis. A current prospectus or information statement must be obtained.

Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) – The Florida State Treasury operates a special investment program for public entities. This program is authorized in Section 17.61(1), Florida Statutes and is called the Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA). Component Units of the State, Universities, or Colleges that are created by the Florida Constitution or Florida Statutes are eligible to invest in SPIA. SPIA funds are combined with State funds and are invested as part of the Treasury Investment Pool. The Treasury Investment Pool invests in a combination of short-term liquid instruments and intermediate-term fixed income securities.

The Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Funds (“Florida Prime”) A thorough investigation of the Florida Prime is required prior to investing, and on an annual basis. A current prospectus or portfolio report must be obtained.

Mutual Funds and ETFs – Shares in open-end and no-load mutual funds; which are professionally managed investment funds that pool money from many investors to purchase securities. Or exchange-traded funds (ETFs) which is a type of security that involves a collection of securities—such as stocks—that often tracks an underlying index, although they can invest in any number of industry sectors or use various strategies. ETFs are in many ways similar to mutual funds; however, they are listed on exchanges and ETF shares trade throughout the day just like ordinary stock.

S. GENERAL INVESTMENT AND PORTFOLIO LIMITS 

For the Short and Intermediate-Term Segments


1. General investment limitations: 



a. Investments must be denominated in U.S. dollars and issued for legal sale in U.S. markets.

b. Minimum ratings are based on the highest rating by any one Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organization (“NRSRO”), unless otherwise specified.

c. All limits and rating requirements apply at time of purchase.

d. Should a security fall below the minimum credit rating requirement for purchase, the Investment Advisor will notify the University Controller.

e. The maximum maturity (or average life for MBS/ABS) of any investment is 5.50 years. Maturity and average life are measured from settlement date. The final maturity date can be based on any mandatory call, put, pre-refunding date, or other mandatory redemption date.


2. General portfolio limitations: 

a. 	The maximum effective duration of the aggregate Short-Term Segment is 1.25 years.

b. 	The maximum effective duration of the aggregate Intermediate Term Segment is 3 years.

c. 	Maximum exposure to issuers in any non-U.S. country cannot exceed 10 percent per country.

3. Investment in the following are permitted, provided they meet all other policy requirements: 

a. Callable, step-up callable, called, pre-refunded, putable, and extendable securities, as long as the effective final maturity meets the maturity limits for the sector

b. Variable-rate and floating-rate securities

c. Subordinated, secured and covered debt, if it meets the ratings requirements for the sector

d. Zero coupon issues and strips, excluding agency mortgage-backed Interest-only structures (I/Os)

e. Treasury TIPS

4. The following are NOT PERMITTED investments, unless specifically authorized by statute and with prior approval of the governing body:



a. Trading for speculation

b. Derivatives (other than callables and traditional floating or variable-rate instruments) 

c. Mortgage-backed interest-only structures (I/Os)

d. Inverse or leveraged floating-rate and variable-rate instruments

e. Currency, equity, index and event-linked notes (e.g. range notes), or other structures that could return less than par at maturity

f. Private placements and direct loans, except as may be legally permitted by Rule 144A or commercial paper issued under a 4(2) exemption from registration

g. Convertible, high yield, and non-U.S. dollar denominated debt

h. Short sales

i. Use of leverage

j. Futures and options

k. Mutual funds, other than fixed-income mutual funds and ETFs, and money market funds

l. Equities, commodities, currencies and hard assets


Permitted Investments for the Long-Term Segment

1. Investment Objectives



a. To enhance the value of Long-Term Segment assets in real terms over the long-term through asset appreciation and income generation, while maintaining a reasonable investment risk profile.

b. Subject to performance expectations over the long-term, to minimize principal fluctuations over the Time Horizon.


2. Terms for Long-Term Segment

Within this section of the Policy, several terms will be used to articulate various investment concepts. The descriptions are meant to be general and may share investments otherwise considered to be in the same asset class. They are: 

Growth Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on capital appreciation. Investments within the Growth Assets category can include income and risk mitigating characteristics, so long as the predominant investment risk and return characteristic is capital appreciation. Examples of such investments or asset classes are: domestic and international equities or equity funds, private or leveraged equity, certain real estate investments, and hedge funds focused on equity risk mitigation or equity-like returns.

Income Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on income generation. Investments within the Income Assets category can include capital appreciation and risk mitigating characteristics, so long as the primary investment risk and return characteristic is income generation. Examples of such investments or asset classes are: fixed income securities, guaranteed investment contracts, certain real estate investments, and hedge funds focused on interest rate risk mitigation or income investment-like returns.

Real Return Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on real returns after inflation. Investments within the Real Return category can include inflation protected securities, commodities, certain real estate investments and hedge funds.

3. Liquidity and Diversification 

In general, the Long-Term Segment may hold some cash, cash equivalent, and/or money market funds for near-term Long Term Segment expenses. Remaining assets will be invested in longer-term investments and shall be diversified with the intent to minimize the risk of long-term investment losses. Consequently, the total portfolio will be constructed and maintained to provide diversification with regard to the concentration of holdings in individual issues, issuers, countries, governments or industries.

4. Asset Allocation 

The Investment Committee believes that to achieve the greatest likelihood of meeting the Long-Term Segment’s investment objectives and the best balance between risk and return for optimal diversification, assets will be invested in accordance with the targets for each asset class as follows to achieve an average total annual rate of return that is equal to or greater than the Long-Term Segment’s target rate of return of 5% over the long-term.

		Asset Classes

		Range

		Asset Weightings Target



		Growth Assets

		

		



		Domestic Equity

		+/- 20 ppts

		42%



		International Equity

		+/- 20 ppts

		23%



		Other

		0% - 20%

		0%



		Income Assets

		

		



		Fixed Income

		+/- 20 ppts

		35%



		Other

		0% - 20%

		0%



		Real Return Assets

		0% - 20%

		0%



		Cash Equivalents

		0% - 20%

		0%





The Investment Adviser and each Manager will be evaluated against their peers on the performance of the total funds under their direct management.

5. Rebalancing Philosophy 

The asset allocation range established by this Policy represents a long-term perspective. As such, rapid unanticipated market shifts or changes in economic conditions may cause the asset mix to fall outside Policy ranges. When allocations breach the specified ranges, the Investment Advisor will rebalance the assets within the specified ranges. The Investment Advisor may also rebalance based on market conditions.

6. Risk Tolerance 

Subject to investment objectives and performance expectations, the Long-Term Segment will be managed in a style that seeks to minimize principal fluctuations over the established Time Horizon.

7. Selection of Investment Managers 

The Investment Advisor shall prudently select appropriate Managers to invest the assets of the Long-Term Segment. Managers must meet the following criteria: 

· The Manager must provide historical quarterly performance data compliant with Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®), Securities & Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Financial Industry Regulatory Agency (“FINRA”) or industry recognized standards, as appropriate.

· The Manager must provide detailed information on the history of the firm, key personnel, support personnel, key clients, and fee schedule (including most-favored-nation clauses). This information can be a copy of a recent Request for Proposal (“RFP”) completed by the Manager or regulatory disclosure.

· The Manager must clearly articulate the investment strategy that will be followed and document that the strategy has been successfully adhered to over time.

· The investment professionals making the investment decisions must have a minimum of three (3) years of experience managing similar strategies either at their current firm or at previous firms.

· Where other than common funds such as mutual funds or commingled trusts are utilized, the Manager must confirm receipt, understanding and adherence to this Policy and any investment specific policies by signing a consent form provided to the Manager prior to investment of Long-Term Segment assets.


8. Guidelines for Long-Term Portfolio Holdings 

Every effort shall be made, to the extent practical, prudent and appropriate, to select investments that have investment objectives and policies that are consistent with this Policy (as outlined in the following sub-sections of the “Guidelines for Portfolio Holdings”). However, given the nature of the investments, it is recognized that there may be deviations between this Policy and the objectives of these investments. 

Limitations on Managers’ Portfolios

a. Equities

No more than the greater of 5% or weighting in the relevant index (Russell 3000 Index for U.S. issues and MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. for non-U.S. issues) of the total equity portfolio valued at market may be invested in the common equity of any one corporation; ownership of the shares of one company shall not exceed 5% of those outstanding; and not more than 40% of equity valued at market may be held in any one sector, as defined by the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS).

Domestic Equities: Other than the above constraints, there are no quantitative guidelines as to issues, industry or individual security diversification. However, prudent diversification standards should be developed and maintained by the Manager.

International Equities: The overall non-U.S. equity allocation should include a diverse global mix that is comprised of the equity of companies from multiple countries, regions and sectors.

b. Fixed Income

Fixed income securities of any one issuer shall not exceed 5% of the total bond portfolio at time of purchase. The 5% limitation does not apply to issues of the U.S. Treasury or other Federal Agencies. The overall rating of the fixed income assets as calculated by the Investment Advisor shall be investment grade, based on the rating of one Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”).

c. Other Assets (Alternatives)

Alternatives may consist of non-traditional asset classes such as hedge funds, private equity, real estate and commodities, when deemed appropriate. The total allocation to this category may not exceed 230% of the overall portfolio.

Hedge Funds: Primary objective shall be to enhance the risk-return profile of the overall portfolio. This can be accomplished by using a combination of hedge fund strategies that may enhance returns at a reasonable level of risk or reduce volatility while providing a reasonable level of return. These asset classes may differ from traditional public market asset classes due to the use of certain strategies including short-selling, leverage, and derivatives. Hedge funds may also invest across asset classes. The use of direct hedge funds and fund-of-hedge funds are allowed. For purposes of asset allocation targets and limitations, single strategy hedge funds will be categorized under the specific asset class of the fund. For example, a long/short U.S. equity fund will be categorized as “Other” in the Growth Assets category while a long/short credit fund will be categorized as “Other” in the Income Assets category. Multi-strategy hedge funds that cannot be easily categorized under one asset class will be included in “Other” under either the Growth Assets or Income Assets category depending on the risk-return profile of the strategy.

Private Equity: Private equity is less liquid than publicly traded equity securities and can provide returns that are greater than what is available in publicly traded markets. The private equity portfolio may include investments in a variety of commingled/partnership and direct investment vehicles including, but not limited to, venture capital, buyout, turnaround, mezzanine, distressed security, and special situation funds. The private equity portfolio is recognized to be long-term in nature and highly illiquid. Due to their higher risk, private equity investments are expected to provide higher returns than publicly traded equity securities. For purposes of asset allocation targets and limitations, these funds will be categorized as “Other” under the Growth Assets category.

Real Estate: Consists of publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) securities and/or non-publicly traded private real estate and shall be diversified across a broad array of property types and geographic locations. Investments of this type are designed to provide a stable level of income combined with potential for price appreciation, particularly in periods of unexpected inflation. For private real estate, the illiquid, long-term nature should be considered. For purposes of asset allocation targets and limitations, publicly traded REITs will be categorized as “Other” under the Growth Assets category. Depending on the investment characteristics of a private real estate fund, the fund will be categorized as “Other” under either the Income Assets category, for example, a core real estate fund, or under the Growth Assets category, for example, an opportunistic real estate fund where capital gains are expected to make up a significant portion of the total return.

Inflation Hedge: Shall consist of pooled vehicles holding among other assets: Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (“TIPS”), commodities or commodity contracts, index-linked derivative contracts, certain real estate or real property funds and the equity of companies in businesses thought to hedge inflation. Inflation hedge assets will be reported in the Real Return Assets category.

d. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents shall be held in funds complying with Rule 2(a)-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

T. PORTFOLIO RISK HEDGING 

Portfolio investments designed to hedge various risks including volatility risk, interest rate risk, etc. are allowed to the extent that the investments are not used for the sole purpose of leveraging Long Term Segment assets. One example of a hedge vehicle is an exchange traded fund (“ETF”) which takes short positions.

U. PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 

The following are NOT PERMITTED for Long-Term Investments, unless specifically authorized by statute and with prior approval of the governing body: 

Except for purchase within authorized investments, securities having the following characteristics are not authorized and shall not be purchased: letter stock and other unregistered securities, direct commodities or commodity contracts, or private placements (with the exception of Rule 144A securities). Further, derivatives, options, or futures for the sole purpose of direct portfolio leveraging are prohibited. Direct ownership of real estate, natural resource properties such as oil, gas or timber and the purchase of collectibles is also prohibited.

V. VOTING OF PROXIES 

The Investment Committee recognizes that proxies are a significant and valuable tool in corporate governance. The voting rights of individual stocks held in separate accounts or collective, common, or pooled funds will be exercised by the investment managers in accordance with their own proxy voting policies. The voting rights of funds will be exercised by the Investment Advisor.

II. LEGAL SUPPORT, JUSTIFICATION, AND REVIEW OF THIS POLICY 

Section 1011.42(5), Florida Statutes

Section 218.415, Florida Statutes

This policy shall be reviewed by the Associate Vice President for Finance & Administration (AVP) every seven years for its effectiveness. The AVP shall make recommendations to the Vice President for Finance and Administration for any modification or elimination.
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DEFINITIONS/GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

The following is a glossary of key investing terms, many of which appear in the University’s policy. This glossary clarifies the meaning of investment terms generally used in cash and investment management. This glossary has been adapted from the GFOA Sample Investment Policy and the Association of Public Treasurers of the United States and Canada’s Model Investment Policy. Accrued Interest. Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received. 

Accrued Interest. Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received.

Agency. See "Federal Agency Securities."

Ask Price. Price at which a broker/dealer offers to sell a security to an investor. Also known as “offered price.”

Asset Backed Securities (ABS). A fixed-income security backed by notes or receivables against assets other than real estate. Generally issued by special purpose companies that “own” the assets and issue the ABS. Examples include securities backed by auto loans, credit card receivables, home equity loans, manufactured housing loans, farm equipment loans, and aircraft leases.

Average Life. The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or term bonds with a mandatory sinking fund feature is expected to be outstanding.

Bankers' Acceptance (BA's). A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and accepted by a bank. Frequently used to finance shipping of international goods. Used as a short-term credit instrument, bankers' acceptances are traded at a discount from face value as a money market instrument in the secondary market on the basis of the credit quality of the guaranteeing bank.

Basis Point. One hundredth of one percent, or 0.01%. Thus 1% equals 100 basis points.

Bearer Security. A security whose ownership is determined by the holder of the physical security. Typically, there is no registration on the issuer’s books. Title to bearer securities is transferred by delivery of the physical security or certificate. Also known as “physical securities.”

Benchmark Bills. In November 1999, FNMA introduced its Benchmark Bills program, a short-term debt securities issuance program to supplement its existing discount note program. The program includes a schedule of larger, weekly issues in three- and six-month maturities and biweekly issues in one-year for Benchmark Bills. Each issue is brought to market via a Dutch (single price) auction. FNMA conducts a weekly auction for each Benchmark Bill maturity and accepts both competitive and non‑competitive bids through a web-based auction system. This program is in addition to the variety of other discount note maturities, with rates posted on a daily basis, which FNMA offers. FNMA's Benchmark Bills are unsecured general obligations that are issued in book-entry form through the Federal Reserve Banks. There are no periodic payments of interest on Benchmark Bills, which are sold at a discount from the principal amount and payable at par at maturity. Issues under the Benchmark program constitute the same credit standing as other FNMA discount notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the short-term Agency discount note market.

Benchmark Notes/Bonds. Benchmark Notes and Bonds are a series of FNMA “bullet” maturities (non-callable) issued according to a pre-announced calendar. Under its Benchmark Notes/Bonds program, 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30-year maturities are issued each quarter. Each Benchmark Notes new issue has a minimum size of $4 billion, 30-year new issues having a minimum size of $1 billion, with re‑openings based on investor demand to further enhance liquidity. The amount of non-callable issuance has allowed FNMA to build a yield curve in Benchmark Notes and Bonds in maturities ranging from 2 to 30 years. The liquidity emanating from these large size issues has facilitated favorable financing opportunities through the development of a liquid overnight and term repo market. Issues under the Benchmark program constitute the same credit standing as other FNMA issues; they simply add organization and liquidity to the intermediate- and long-term Agency market.

Benchmark. A market index used as a comparative basis for measuring the performance of an investment portfolio. A performance benchmark should represent a close correlation to investment guidelines, risk tolerance, and duration of the actual portfolio's investments.

Bid Price. Price at which a broker/dealer offers to purchase a security from an investor.

Bond. Financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder (the purchaser or owner of the bond) a specified stream of future cash-flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.

Book Entry Securities. Securities that are recorded in a customer’s account electronically through one of the financial markets electronic delivery and custody systems, such as the Fed Securities wire, DTC, and PTC (as opposed to bearer or physical securities). The trend is toward a certificate-free society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates themselves. The vast majority of securities are now book entry securities.

Book Value. The value at which a debt security is reflected on the holder's records at any point in time. Book value is also called “amortized cost” as it represents the original cost of an investment adjusted for amortization of premium or accretion of discount. Also called “carrying value.” Book value can vary over time as an investment approaches maturity and differs from “market value” in that it is not affected by changes in market interest rates.

Broker/Dealer. A person or firm transacting securities business with customers. A “broker” acts as an agent between buyers and sellers and receives a commission for these services. A “dealer” buys and sells financial assets from its own portfolio. A dealer takes risk by owning inventory of securities, whereas a broker merely matches up buyers and sellers. See also "Primary Dealer."

Bullet Notes/Bonds. Notes or bonds that have a single maturity date and are non-callable.

Call Date. Date at which a call option may be or is exercised.

Call Option. The right, but not the obligation, of an issuer of a security to redeem a security at a specified value and at a specified date or dates prior to its stated maturity date. Most fixed-income calls are a par, but can be at any previously established price. Securities issued with a call provision typically carry a higher yield than similar securities issued without a call feature. There are three primary types of call options (1) European - one-time calls, (2) Bermudan - periodically on a predetermined schedule (quarterly, semi-annual, annual), and (3) American - continuously callable at any time on or after the call date. There is usually a notice period of at least 5 business days prior to a call date.

Callable Bonds/Notes. Securities which contain an imbedded call option giving the issuer the right to redeem the securities prior to maturity at a predetermined price and time.

Certificate of Deposit (CD). Bank obligation issued by a financial institution generally offering a fixed rate of return (coupon) for a specified period of time (maturity). Can be as long as 10 years to maturity, but most CDs purchased by public agencies are one year and under.

Collateral. Investment securities or other property that a borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan, secure deposits of public monies, or provide security for a repurchase agreement.

Collateralization. Process by which a borrower pledges securities, property, or other deposits for securing the repayment of a loan and/or security.

Collateralized Mortgage Obligation (CMO). A security that pools together mortgages and separates them into short, medium, and long-term positions (called tranches). Tranches are set up to pay different rates of interest depending upon their maturity. Interest payments are usually paid monthly. In “plain vanilla” CMOs, principal is not paid on a tranche until all shorter tranches have been paid off. This system provides interest and principal in a more predictable manner. A single pool of mortgages can be carved up into numerous tranches each with its own payment and risk characteristics.

Commercial Paper. Short term unsecured promissory note issued by a company or financial institution. Issued at a discount and matures for par or face value. Usually, a maximum maturity of 270 days and given a short-term debt rating by one or more NRSROs.

Convexity. A measure of a bond's price sensitivity to changing interest rates. A high convexity indicates greater sensitivity of a bond's price to interest rate changes.

Corporate Note. A debt instrument issued by a corporation with a maturity of greater than one year and less than ten years.

Counterparty. The other party in a two-party financial transaction. "Counterparty risk" refers to the risk that the other party to a transaction will fail in its related obligations. For example, the bank or broker/dealer in a repurchase agreement.

Coupon Rate. Annual rate of interest on a debt security, expressed as a percentage of the bond’s face value.

Current Yield. Annual rate of return on a bond based on its price. Calculated as (coupon rate / price) but does not accurately reflect a bond’s true yield level.

Custody. Safekeeping services offered by a bank, financial institution, or trust company, referred to as the “custodian.” Service normally includes the holding and reporting of the customer's securities, the collection and disbursement of income, securities settlement, and market values.

Dealer. A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and selling for his/her own account.

Delivery Versus Payment (DVP). Settlement procedure in which securities are delivered versus payment of cash, but only after cash has been received. Most security transactions, including those through the Fed Securities Wire system and DTC, are done DVP as a protection for both the buyer and seller of securities.

Depository Trust Company (DTC). A firm through which members can use a computer to arrange for securities to be delivered to other members without physical delivery of certificates. A member of the Federal Reserve System and owned mostly by the New York Stock Exchange, the Depository Trust Company uses computerized debit and credit entries. Most corporate securities, commercial paper, CDs, and BAs clear through DTC.

Derivatives. (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked to, or derived from, the movement of one or more underlying index or security, and may include a leveraging factor, or (2) financial contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities, or commodities). For hedging purposes, common derivatives are options, futures, interest rate swaps, and swaptions.

Derivative Security. Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, one or more underlying assets or indexes of asset values.

Designated Bond. FFCB’s regularly issued, liquid, non-callable securities that generally have a 2- or 3-year original maturity. New issues of Designated Bonds are $1 billion or larger. Re-openings of existing Designated Bond issues are generally a minimum of $100 million. Designated Bonds are offered through a syndicate of two to six dealers. Twice each month the Funding Corporation announces its intention to issue a new Designated Bond, reopen an existing issue, or to not issue or reopen a Designated Bond. Issues under the Designated Bond program constitute the same credit standing as other FFCB issues; they simply add organization and liquidity to the intermediate- and long-term Agency market.

Discount Notes. Unsecured general obligations issued by Federal Agencies at a discount. Discount notes mature at par and can range in maturity from overnight to one year. Very large primary (new issue) and secondary markets exist.

Discount Rate. Rate charged by the system of Federal Reserve Banks on overnight loans to member banks. Changes to this rate are administered by the Federal Reserve and closely mirror changes to the “fed funds rate.”

Discount Securities. Non‑interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value. Examples include: U.S. Treasury Bills, Federal Agency Discount Notes, Bankers' Acceptances, and Commercial Paper.

Discount. The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells below its face value. See also "Premium."

Diversification. Dividing investment funds among a variety of security types, maturities, industries, and issuers offering potentially independent returns.

Dollar Price. A bond’s cost expressed as a percentage of its face value. For example, a bond quoted at a dollar price of 95 ½, would have a principal cost of $955 per $1,000 of face value.

Duff & Phelps. One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues.

Duration. The weighted average maturity of a security’s or portfolio’s cash-flows, where the present values of the cash-flows serve as the weights. The greater the duration of a security/portfolio, the greater its percentage price volatility with respect to changes in interest rates. Used as a measure of risk and a key tool for managing a portfolio versus a benchmark and for hedging risk. There are also different kinds of duration used for different purposes (e.g. MacAuley Duration, Modified Duration).

Fannie Mae. See "Federal National Mortgage Association."

Fed Money Wire. A computerized communications system that connects the Federal Reserve System with its member banks, certain U. S. Treasury offices, and the Washington D.C. office of the Commodity Credit Corporation. The Fed Money Wire is the book entry system used to transfer cash balances between banks for themselves and for customer accounts.

Fed Securities Wire. A computerized communications system that facilitates book entry transfer of securities between banks, brokers and customer accounts, used primarily for settlement of U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency securities.

Fed. See "Federal Reserve System."

Federal Agency Security. A debt instrument issued by one of the Federal Agencies. Federal Agencies are considered second in credit quality and liquidity only to U.S. Treasuries.

Federal Agency. Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S. Congress, generally for the purpose of acting as a financial intermediary by borrowing in the marketplace and directing proceeds to specific areas of the economy considered to otherwise have restricted access to credit markets. The largest Federal Agencies are GNMA, FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB, SLMA, and TVA.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Federal agency that insures deposits at commercial banks, currently to a limit of $250,000 per depositor per bank.

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored enterprise (GSE) system that is a network of cooperatively-owned lending institutions that provides credit services to farmers, agricultural cooperatives and rural utilities. The FFCBs act as financial intermediaries that borrow money in the capital markets and use the proceeds to make loans and provide other assistance to farmers and farm-affiliated businesses. Consists of the consolidated operations of the Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, and Federal Land Banks. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. FFCB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and agricultural industry. Also issues notes under its “designated note” program.

Federal Funds (Fed Funds). Funds placed in Federal Reserve Banks by depository institutions in excess of current reserve requirements, and frequently loaned or borrowed on an overnight basis between depository institutions.

Federal Funds Rate (Fed Funds Rate). The interest rate charged by a depository institution lending Federal Funds to another depository institution. The Federal Reserve influences this rate by establishing a "target" Fed Funds rate associated with the Fed's management of monetary policy.

Federal Home Loan Bank System (FHLB). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored enterprise (GSE) system, consisting of wholesale banks (currently twelve district banks) owned by their member banks, which provides correspondent banking services and credit to various financial institutions, financed by the issuance of securities. The principal purpose of the FHLB is to add liquidity to the mortgage markets. Although FHLB does not directly fund mortgages, it provides a stable supply of credit to thrift institutions that make new mortgage loans. FHLB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. Also issues notes under its “global note” and “TAP” programs.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie Mac"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides stability and assistance to the secondary market for home mortgages by purchasing first mortgages and participation interests financed by the sale of debt and guaranteed mortgage-backed securities. FHLMC debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities, and MBS. Also issues notes under its “reference note” program.

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides liquidity to the residential mortgage market by purchasing mortgage loans from lenders, financed by the issuance of debt securities and MBS (pools of mortgages packaged together as a security). FNMA debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes under its “benchmark note” program.

Federal Reserve Bank. One of the 12 distinct banks of the Federal Reserve System.

Federal Reserve System (the Fed). The independent central bank system of the United States that establishes and conducts the nation's monetary policy. This is accomplished in three major ways: (1) raising or lowering bank reserve requirements, (2) raising or lowering the target Fed Funds Rate and Discount Rate, and (3) in open market operations by buying and selling government securities. The Federal Reserve System is made up of twelve Federal Reserve District Banks, their branches, and many national and state banks throughout the nation. It is headed by the seven-member Board of Governors known as the “Federal Reserve Board” and headed by its Chairman.

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA). A private corporation that acts as a self‑regulatory organization (SRO). FINRA is the successor to the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD). Though sometimes mistaken for a government agency, it is a non-governmental organization that performs financial regulation of member brokerage firms and exchange markets. The government also has a regulatory arm for investments, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Fiscal Agent/Paying Agent. A bank or trust company that acts, under a trust agreement with a corporation or municipality, in the capacity of general treasurer. The agent performs such duties as making coupon payments, paying rents, redeeming bonds, and handling taxes relating to the issuance of bonds.

Fitch Investors Service, Inc. One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt issues.

Floating Rate Security (FRN or “floater”). A bond with an interest rate that is adjusted according to changes in an interest rate or index. Differs from variable-rate debt in that the changes to the rate take place immediately when the index changes, rather than on a predetermined schedule. See also “Variable Rate Security.”

Freddie Mac. See "Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation."

Ginnie Mae. See "Government National Mortgage Association."

Global Notes. Notes designed to qualify for immediate trading in both the domestic U.S. capital market and in foreign markets around the globe. Usually, large issues that are sold to investors worldwide and therefore have excellent liquidity. Despite their global sales, global notes sold in the U.S. are typically denominated in U.S. dollars.

Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or "Ginnie Mae"). One of the large Federal Agencies. Government-owned Federal Agency that acquires, packages, and resells mortgages and mortgage purchase commitments in the form of mortgage-backed securities. Largest issuer of mortgage pass-through securities. GNMA debt is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government (one of the few agencies that are actually full faith and credit of the U.S. government).

Government Securities. An obligation of the U.S. government, backed by the full faith and credit of the government. These securities are regarded as the highest quality of investment securities available in the U.S. securities market. See "Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and SLGS."

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE). Privately owned entity subject to federal regulation and supervision, created by the U.S. Congress to reduce the cost of capital for certain borrowing sectors of the economy such as students, farmers, and homeowners. GSEs carry the implicit backing of the U.S. government, but they are not direct obligations of the U.S. government. For this reason, these securities will offer a yield premium over U.S. Treasuries. Examples of GSEs include: FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, and SLMA.

Government Sponsored Enterprise Security. A security issued by a Government Sponsored Enterprise. Considered Federal Agency Securities.

Index. A compilation of statistical data that tracks changes in the economy or in financial markets.

Interest-Only (IO) STRIP. A security based solely on the interest payments from the bond. After the principal has been repaid, interest payments stop and the value of the security falls to nothing. Therefore, IOs are considered risky investments. Usually associated with mortgage-backed securities.

Internal Controls. An internal control structure ensures that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 

1. the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and

2. the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Internal controls should address the following points: 

a. Control of collusion - Collusion is a situation where two or more employees are working in conjunction to defraud their employer.

b. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping - A separation of duties is achieved by separating the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the people who record or otherwise account for the transaction.

c. Custodial safekeeping - Securities purchased from any bank or dealer including appropriate collateral (as defined by state law) shall be placed with an independent third party for custodial safekeeping.

d. Avoidance of physical delivery securities - Book-entry securities are much easier to transfer and account for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. Delivered securities must be properly safeguarded against loss or destruction. The potential for fraud and loss increases with physically delivered securities.

e. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members - Subordinate staff members must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper actions. Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal control structure that is contingent on the various staff positions and their respective responsibilities.

f. Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers - Due to the potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone and electronic transactions, all transactions should be supported by written communications and approved by the appropriate person. Written communications may be via fax if on letterhead and if the safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures.

g. Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party custodian - The designated official should ensure that an agreement will be entered into and will address the following points: controls, security provisions, and responsibilities of each party making and receiving wire transfers.



Internal Bank. Established by the Vice President for Finance & Administration from unrestricted available university resources to provide internal financing for capital projects, bridge funding, or other prudent purposes.

Inverse Floater. A floating rate security structured in such a way that it reacts inversely to the direction of interest rates. Considered risky as their value moves in the opposite direction of normal fixed-income investments and whose interest rate can fall to zero.

Investment Advisor. A company that provides professional advice managing portfolios, investment recommendations, and/or research in exchange for a management fee.

Investment Adviser Act of 1940. Federal legislation that sets the standards by which investment companies, such as mutual funds, are regulated in the areas of advertising, promotion, performance reporting requirements, and securities valuations.

Investment Grade. Bonds considered suitable for preservation of invested capital, including bonds rated a minimum of Baa3 by Moody’s, BBB- by Standard & Poor’s, or BBB- by Fitch. Although “BBB” rated bonds are considered investment grade, most public agencies cannot invest in securities rated below “A.”

Liquidity. Relative ease of converting an asset into cash without significant loss of value. Also, a relative measure of cash and near-cash items in a portfolio of assets. Additionally, it is a term describing the marketability of a money market security correlating to the narrowness of the spread between the bid and ask prices.

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). An investment by local governments in which their money is pooled as a method for managing local funds, (e.g., Florida State Board of Administration’s Florida Prime Fund).

Long-Term Core Investment Program. Funds that are not needed within a one-year period.

Market Value. The fair market value of a security or commodity. The price at which a willing buyer and seller would pay for a security.

Mark-to-market. Adjusting the value of an asset to its market value, reflecting in the process unrealized gains or losses.

Master Repurchase Agreement. A widely accepted standard agreement form published by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) that is used to govern and document Repurchase Agreements and protect the interest of parties in a repo transaction.

Maturity Date. Date on which principal payment of a financial obligation is to be paid.

Medium Term Notes (MTN's). Used frequently to refer to corporate notes of medium maturity (5-years and under). Technically, any debt security issued by a corporate or depository institution with a maturity from 1 to 10 years and issued under an MTN shelf registration. Usually issued in smaller issues with varying coupons and maturities and underwritten by a variety of broker/dealers (as opposed to large corporate deals issued and underwritten all at once in large size and with a fixed coupon and maturity).

Money Market. The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptance, etc.) are issued and traded.

Money Market Mutual Fund (MMF). A type of mutual fund that invests solely in money market instruments, such as: U.S. Treasury bills, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, and repurchase agreements. Money market mutual funds are registered with the SEC under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and are subject to “rule 2a-7” which significantly limits average maturity and credit quality of holdings. MMF’s are managed to maintain a stable net asset value (NAV) of $1.00. Many MMFs carry ratings by a NRSRO.

Moody's Investors Service. One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt issues.

Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS). Mortgage-backed securities represent an ownership interest in a pool of mortgage loans made by financial institutions, such as savings and loans, commercial banks, or mortgage companies, to finance the borrower's purchase of a home or other real estate. The majority of MBS are issued and/or guaranteed by GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC. There are a variety of MBS structures with varying levels of risk and complexity. All MBS have reinvestment risk as actual principal and interest payments are dependent on the payment of the underlying mortgages which can be prepaid by mortgage holders to refinance and lower rates or simply because the underlying property was sold.

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities. A pool of residential mortgage loans with the monthly interest and principal distributed to investors on a pro-rata basis. The largest issuer is GNMA.

Municipal Note/Bond. A debt instrument issued by a state or local government unit or public agency. The vast majority of municipals are exempt from state and federal income tax, although some non-qualified issues are taxable.

Mutual Fund. Portfolio of securities professionally managed by a registered investment company that issues shares to investors. Many different types of mutual funds exist (e.g., bond, equity, and money market funds); all except money market funds operate on a variable net asset value (NAV).

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (Negotiable CD). Large denomination CDs ($100,000 and larger) that are issued in bearer form and can be traded in the secondary market.

Net Asset Value. The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a mutual fund. This figure is calculated by totaling a fund's assets including securities, cash, and any accrued earnings, then subtracting the total assets from the fund's liabilities, and dividing this total by the number of shares outstanding. This is calculated once a day based on the closing price for each security in the fund's portfolio. (See below.)

[(Total assets) - (Liabilities)]/(Number of shares outstanding)

NRSRO. A “Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization” (NRSRO) is a designated rating organization that the SEC has deemed a strong national presence in the U.S. NRSROs provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues. Only ratings of a NRSRO may be used for the regulatory purposes of rating. Includes Moody’s, S&P, Fitch, and Duff & Phelps.

Offered Price. See also "Ask Price."

Open Market Operations. A Federal Reserve monetary policy tactic entailing the purchase or sale of government securities in the open market by the Federal Reserve System from and to primary dealers in order to influence the money supply, credit conditions, and interest rates.

Par Value. The face value, stated value, or maturity value of a security.

Physical Delivery. Delivery of readily available underlying assets at contract maturity.

Portfolio. Collection of securities and investments held by an investor.

Premium. The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells above its face value. See also "Discount."

Primary Dealer. A designation given to certain government securities dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Primary dealers can buy and sell government securities directly with the Fed. Primary dealers also submit daily reports of market activity and security positions held to the Fed and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers are the largest buyers and sellers by volume in the U.S. Treasury securities market.

Prime Paper. Commercial paper of high quality. Highest rated paper is A-1+/A-1 by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s.

Principal. Face value of a financial instrument on which interest accrues. May be less than par value if some principal has been repaid or retired. For a transaction, principal is par value times price and includes any premium or discount.

Prudent Expert Rule. Standard that requires that a fiduciary manage a portfolio with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. This statement differs from the “prudent person” rule in that familiarity with such matters suggests a higher standard than simple prudence.

Prudent Investor Standard. Standard that requires that when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency. More stringent than the “prudent person” standard as it implies a level of knowledge commensurate with the responsibility at hand.

Qualified Public Depository - Per Subsection 280.02(26), F.S., “qualified public depository” means any bank, savings bank, or savings association that: 

1. Is organized and exists under the laws of the United States, the laws of this state or any other state or territory of the United States.

2. Has its principal place of business in this state or has a branch office in this state which is authorized under the laws of this state or of the United States to receive deposits in this state.

3. Has deposit insurance under the provision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amended, 12 U.S.C. ss.1811 et seq.

4. Has procedures and practices for accurate identification, classification, reporting, and collateralization of public deposits.

5. Meets all requirements of Chapter 280, F.S.

6. Has been designated by the Chief Financial Officer as a qualified public depository.

Range Note. A type of structured note that accrues interest daily at a set coupon rate that is tied to an index. Most range notes have two coupon levels; a higher accrual rate for the period the index is within a designated range, the lower accrual rate for the period that the index falls outside the designated range. This lower rate may be zero and may result in zero earnings.

Rate of Return. Amount of income received from an investment, expressed as a percentage of the amount invested.

Realized Gains (Losses). The difference between the sale price of an investment and its book value. Gains/losses are “realized” when the security is actually sold, as compared to “unrealized” gains/losses which are based on current market value. See “Unrealized Gains (Losses).”

Reference Bills. FHLMC’s short-term debt program created to supplement its existing discount note program by offering issues from one month through one year, auctioned on a weekly or on an alternating four-week basis (depending upon maturity) offered in sizeable volumes ($1 billion and up) on a cycle of regular, standardized issuance. Globally sponsored and distributed, Reference Bill issues are intended to encourage active trading and market-making and facilitate the development of a term repo market. The program was designed to offer predictable supply, pricing transparency, and liquidity, thereby providing alternatives to U.S. Treasury bills. FHLMC’s Reference Bills are unsecured general corporate obligations. This program supplements the corporation’s existing discount note program. Issues under the Reference program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC discount notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the short-term Agency discount note market.

Reference Notes. FHLMC’s intermediate-term debt program with issuances of 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30-year maturities. Initial issuances range from $2 - $6 billion with re-openings ranging $1 - $4 billion. The notes are high-quality bullet structures securities that pay interest semiannually. Issues under the Reference program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the intermediate- and long-term Agency market.

Repurchase Agreement (Repo). A short-term investment vehicle where an investor agrees to buy securities from a counterparty and simultaneously agrees to resell the securities back to the counterparty at an agreed upon time and for an agreed upon price. The difference between the purchase price and the sale price represents interest earned on the agreement. In effect, it represents a collateralized loan to the investor, where the securities are the collateral. Can be DVP, where securities are delivered to the investor’s custodial bank, or “tri-party” where the securities are delivered to a third-party intermediary. Any type of security can be used as “collateral,” but only some types provide the investor with special bankruptcy protection under the law. Repos should be undertaken only when an appropriate Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) approved master repurchase agreement is in place.

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (Reverse Repo). A repo from the point of view of the original seller of securities. Used by dealers to finance their inventory of securities by essentially borrowing at short-term rates. Can also be used to leverage a portfolio and in this sense, can be considered risky if used improperly.

Safekeeping. Service offered for a fee, usually by financial institutions, for the holding of securities and other valuables. Safekeeping is a component of custody services.

Secondary Market. Markets for the purchase and sale of any previously issued financial instrument.

Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA). The bond market trade association representing the largest securities markets in the world. In addition to publishing a Master Repurchase Agreement, widely accepted as the industry standard document for Repurchase Agreements, the SIFMA also recommends bond market closures and early closes due to holidays.

Securities Lending. An arrangement between and investor and a custody bank that allows the custody bank to “loan” the investors investment holdings, reinvest the proceeds in permitted investments, and shares any profits with the investor. Should be governed by a securities lending agreement. Can increase the risk of a portfolio in that the investor takes on the default risk on the reinvestment at the discretion of the custodian.

Sinking Fund. A separate accumulation of cash or investments (including earnings on investments) in a fund in accordance with the terms of a trust agreement or indenture, funded by periodic deposits by the issuer (or other entity responsible for debt service), for the purpose of assuring timely availability of moneys for payment of debt service. Usually used in connection with term bonds.

Spread. The difference between the price of a security and similar maturity U.S. Treasury investments, expressed in percentage terms or basis points. A spread can also be the absolute difference in yield between two securities. The securities can be in different markets or within the same securities market between different credits, sectors, or other relevant factors.

Standard & Poor's. One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt issues.

STRIPS (Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities). Acronym applied to U.S. Treasury securities that have had their coupons and principal repayments separated into individual zero-coupon Treasury securities. The same technique and "strips" description can be applied to non-Treasury securities (e.g., FNMA strips).

Structured Notes. Notes that have imbedded into their structure options such as step‑up coupons or derivative-based returns.

Supranational. Supranational organizations are international financial institutions that are generally established by agreements among nations, with member nations contributing capital and participating in management. These agreements provide for limited immunity from the laws of member countries. Bonds issued by these institutions are part of the broader class of Supranational, Sovereign, and Non-U.S. Agency (SSA) sector bonds. Supranational bonds finance economic and infrastructure development and support environmental protection, poverty reduction, and renewable energy around the globe. For example, the World Bank, International Finance Corporation (IFC), and African Development Bank (AfDB) have “green bond” programs specifically designed for energy resource conservation and management. Supranational bonds, which are issued by multi-national organizations that transcend national boundaries. Examples include the World Bank, African Development Bank, and European Investment Bank.

Swap. Trading one asset for another.

TAP Notes. Federal Agency notes issued under the FHLB TAP program. Launched in 6/99 as a refinement to the FHLB bullet bond auction process. In a break from the FHLB’s traditional practice of bringing numerous small issues to market with similar maturities, the TAP Issue Program uses the four most common maturities and reopens them up regularly through a competitive auction. These maturities (2, 3, 5, and 10 year) will remain open for the calendar quarter, after which they will be closed, and a new series of TAP issues will be opened to replace them. This reduces the number of separate bullet bonds issued but generates enhanced awareness and liquidity in the marketplace through increased issue size and secondary market volume.

Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA). One of the large Federal Agencies. A wholly owned corporation of the United States government that was established in 1933 to develop the resources of the Tennessee Valley region in order to strengthen the regional and national economy and the national defense. Power operations are separated from non-power operations. TVA securities represent obligations of TVA, payable solely from TVA's net power proceeds, and are neither obligations of nor guaranteed by the United States. TVA is currently authorized to issue debt up to $30 billion. Under this authorization, TVA may also obtain advances from the U.S. Treasury of up to $150 million. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, and callable agency securities.

Total Return. Investment performance measured over a period of time that includes coupon interest, interest on interest, and both realized and unrealized gains or losses. Total return includes, therefore, any market value appreciation/depreciation on investments held at period end.

Treasuries. Collective term used to describe debt instruments backed by the U.S. government and issued through the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Includes Treasury bills, Treasury notes, and Treasury bonds. Also a benchmark term used as a basis by which the yields of non‑Treasury securities are compared (e.g., "trading at 50 basis points over Treasuries").

Treasury Bills (T-Bills). Short-term direct obligations of the United States government issued with an original term of one year or less. Treasury bills are sold at a discount from face value and do not pay interest before maturity. The difference between the purchase price of the bill and the maturity value is the interest earned on the bill. Currently, the U.S. Treasury issues 4-week, 13-week, and 26-week T‑Bills.

Treasury Bonds. Long-term interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. government and issued with maturities of ten years and longer by the U.S. Department of the Treasury.

Treasury Notes. Intermediate interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. government and issued with maturities ranging from one to ten years by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury currently issues 2-year, 3-year, 5-year, and 10-year Treasury Notes.

Trustee. A bank designated by an issuer of securities as the custodian of funds and official representative of bondholders. Trustees are appointed to ensure compliance with the bond documents and to represent bondholders in enforcing their contract with the issuer.

Uniform Net Capital Rule. SEC Rule 15c3‑1 that outlines the minimum net capital ratio (ratio of indebtedness to net liquid capital) of member firms and non‑member broker/dealers.

Unrealized Gains (Losses). The difference between the market value of an investment and its book value. Gains/losses are “realized” when the security is actually sold, as compared to “unrealized” gains/losses which are based on current market value. See also “Realized Gains (Losses).”

Variable-Rate Security. A bond that bears interest at a rate that varies over time based on a specified schedule of adjustment (e.g., daily, weekly, monthly, semi-annually, or annually). See also “Floating Rate Note.”

Weighted Average Maturity (or just “Average Maturity”). The average maturity of all securities and investments of a portfolio, determined by multiplying the par or principal value of each security or investment by its maturity (days or years), summing the products, and dividing the sum by the total principal value of the portfolio. A simple measure of risk of a fixed-income portfolio.

Weighted Average Maturity to Call. The average maturity of all securities and investments of a portfolio, adjusted to substitute the first call date per security for maturity date for those securities with call provisions.

Yield Curve. A graphic depiction of yields on like securities in relation to remaining maturities spread over a timeline. The traditional yield curve depicts yields on U.S. Treasuries, although yield curves exist for Federal Agencies and various credit quality corporates as well. Yield curves can be positively sloped (normal) where longer-term investments have higher yields, or “inverted” (uncommon) where longer-term investments have lower yields than shorter ones.

Yield to Call (YTC). Same as “Yield to Maturity,” except the return is measured to the first call date rather than the maturity date. Yield to call can be significantly higher or lower than a security’s yield to maturity.

Yield to Maturity (YTM). Calculated return on an investment, assuming all cash-flows from the security are reinvested at the same original yield. Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate depending on market rates and whether the security was purchased at a premium or discount. There are different conventions for calculating YTM for various types of securities.

Yield. There are numerous methods of yield determination. In this glossary, see also "Current Yield,” "Yield Curve," "Yield to Call," and "Yield to Maturity."
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

In accordance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, this Policy applies to cash and investments (hereafter “portfolio”) for operating funds under the University’s control in excess of those required to meet current expenses. In addition, a portion of the University’s operating funds may be designated for incremental longer-term growth and allocated to the Florida State University Foundation Long-Term Portfolio (“FSUF LTP”). The FSUF LTP Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives will apply to those funds instead of this Policy. This policy applies only to funds not invested in the FSUF LTP. Funds which have statutory investment requirements conflicting with this Policy are not subject to the provisions of this Policy. Additionally, the Policy does not apply to pension funds, trust funds or funds related to the issuance of debt where there are other existing policies or Indentures in effect for such funds.

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

The University Controller, Controller’s Office Employees, and Investment Committee involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Also, the above personnel and Investment Committee members involved in the investment process shall disclose to the Chief Financial Officer any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business with the University, and they shall further disclose any material personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the University’s investment program. Investment related officers and personnel shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of their entity.

G. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 

The Short-Term Segment, to the extent possible, an attempt will be made to match investment maturities with the University’s known cash needs and anticipated cash flow requirements. Investments of the Short-Term Segment shall have maturities of no longer than twenty-four (24) months. The maximum average duration of the Short-Term Segment is one and a quarter (1.25) years.

Intermediate-Term Segment (“core funds”) shall have a term appropriate to the need for funds. Investment of the Intermediate Term Segment in fixed income maturities shall not exceed five and one-half (5.50) years from the date of settlement. The overall weighted average duration of the core funds shall be less than three (3) years.

[bookmark: _Hlk117251102]The Long-Term Segment has an investment objective based on a long-term investment horizon (“Time Horizon”) of greater than five years. Interim fluctuations should be viewed with appropriate perspective. The University has adopted a long-term investment horizon such that the risks and duration of investment losses are carefully weighed against the long-term potential for appreciation of assets. Maturity and duration requirements do not apply to investments held in mutual funds.

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

1. The Short-Term Segment shall be evaluated in comparison with the weighted average return (net book value rate of return) of the Standard & Poor’s Local Government Investment Pool All 30-Day rate (LGIP30D). The Standard & Poor’s LGIP30D represents Government Investment Pools that maintain a stable net asset value of $1 per share and are rated in Standard & Poor’s two highest money market fund rating categories: “AAAm” and “AAm.”

2. The Intermediate-Term Segment as well as any investments with SPIA shall be evaluated with the annual objective of achieving a comparable total return performance to the ICE BofA 1-3 Year Government Index or ICE BofA 1-5 Year Government Index. These maturity ranges are appropriate benchmarks based on the objectives of the University. The average credit quality shall be no less than “A”.

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

The University Controller will establish a system of internal controls and operational procedures, which will be documented in writing. The controls will be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, and misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees and officers of the university.

P. CONTINUING EDUCATION 

University employees responsible for making investment decisions will annually complete eight hours of continuing education in pertinent subjects or courses of study.

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

5. Any areas of concern warranting possible revisions to current or planned investment strategies. The market values presented in these reports will be consistent with accounting guidelines in GASB Statement(s) 31, 40, and 72.


R. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 

Permitted Investments

Investments should be made subject to the cash flow needs and such cash flows are subject to revisions as market conditions and the University’s needs change. University’s Controller’s Office is responsible for updating cash flow projections and expenditure projections. However, when the invested funds are needed in whole or in part for the purpose originally intended or for more optimal investments, the University Controller or designee and/or the University’s Investment Advisor may sell the investment at the then-prevailing market price and place the proceeds into the proper account at the University’s custodian.

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

Alternatives may consist of non-traditional asset classes such as hedge funds, private equity, real estate and commodities, when deemed appropriate. The total allocation to this category may not exceed 20% of the overall portfolio.

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






ATTACHMENT A: Glossary of Cash and Investment Management Terms



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
















objections.

Thanks,
Kyle



From: Kyle Clark

To: Amy Hecht; Carolyn Egan; Clay Ingram; Dennis Schnittker; James Clark; Janet Kistner; Marissa Langston; Mark
Riley; Marla A Vickers; Michael Alford; Richard McCullough; Stacey Patterson; Susannah Wesley-Ahlschwede

Subject: Policy 4-OP-D-2-H Investments

Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 1:55:15 PM

Attachments: 4-OP-D-2-H Investment Policy 05-2023 Approved Red line.docx

4-OP-D-2-H Investment Policy 05-2023 Approved Clean.docx

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

To: Michael Williams; Beth Lewis
Subject: RE: Project Osceola
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 10:43:00 AM

No..I would prefer July 6 or 7 AM please

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 10:26 AM

To: Beth Lewis <elbell@fsu.edu>

Cc: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: Project Osceola

Beth,

Can you schedule a Zoom meeting for next Wed, July Sth, or soon after, with the following
individuals: Kyle, myself, Michael Alford, Stephen Ponder, Ross Cobb, and J.P. Sinclair? The meeting

is discuss Project Osceola Proforma.

Thank You,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams; Michael Alford

Cc: Stephen Ponder

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 9:17:00 AM
Mr. Williams,

Just confirming, this is the latest version of the document that has been shared many, many times
with everyone with their requested sign off?

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 9:13 AM

To: Michael Alford <Michael Alford@fsu.edu>

Cc: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Michael,

FYl: We have been working with JP Morgan over the past several weeks to help them understand
the amount of funding that will be required to cover Athletics budgeted expenses. JP Morgan
developed the attached spreadsheet and asked for us to drop in the 2024 approved budgeted
figures. As of last night JP and | were still making adjustments.

The attached spreadsheet includes the latest figures, which JP Morgan is asking for us to sign off on.
Please let me know if you approve or if you want to discuss in more detail.

Thank You,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 9:40 PM
To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
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Cc: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, leff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; John Sinclair

<jpsinclair@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Thank you, Michael!

Is this version final and signed-off on internally?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 4:27 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>; John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,

| updated the highlighted revenue figures in columns H and P, based on my conversation with JP.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 10:38 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Thank you, Michael.
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| know they are working through the revenue projection updates.
We're you able to confirm the ‘24E budget with JP?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | gquinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Date: Monday, Jun 26, 2023 at 10:23 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion
Quinn,
| was out of the office last week attending the Board of Governors meetings in Tampa and was not

part of the ||| - <:sc 't me know if you need additional

information from me.

Regards,
Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 5:17 PM

To: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff

<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion
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Thank you, Charles for the update.

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 5:04 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC,
USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Hey Quinn —sorry for the delay.

I’'m working with FSU on some additional information needed on the revenue side. They are hoping
to get me it by end of week.

Charles

Charles Rolston
Sr. Director, Client Strategy

647.889.4824
Charles@NVGT.com

www.NVGT.com

NAVIGATE
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From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 4:33 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>
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

Hi Michael and Charles —
Just following up on the below.
Any update on both the updated revenue projection model and the updated expense budget?

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

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 1:37 PM

To: 'Charles Rolston' <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

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

Charles, Michael and Team —

Can you kindly let us know how the discussion went and if there is an update on anticipated timing
of revised budget, both for revenue items and opex?

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 5:58 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ignhacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun,
Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Hey Quinn,

We have a meeting with JP on Tuesday to review the new projections based off the latest proforma.

Thanks,

Charles

Charles Rolston
Sr. Director, Client Strategy

647.889.4824
Charles@NVGT.com

www.NVGT.com
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From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 5:29 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Caronia, lgnacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;
Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Thank you, Michael! Really appreciate it.
Charles and Tatu — what is latest on updated projection model for revenue?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 1:32 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <gquinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun,
Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae

<Tatu@NVGT.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,

| updated the 2024 file but need to review with JP when he returns to the office next week.
Attached is the draft document.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/nvgt.com/__;!!LGKsHw!td14uu20wxu1pXp0uyVEanYByIGED8GJzyEWDEnU7597FzxjW77SDUSH537xrSi-3Jyil6UataFYow$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.linkedin.com/company/nvgt__;!!LGKsHw!td14uu20wxu1pXp0uyVEanYByIGED8GJzyEWDEnU7597FzxjW77SDUSH537xrSi-3Jyil6XYhAGb0w$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/twitter.com/NVGTInsights__;!!LGKsHw!td14uu20wxu1pXp0uyVEanYByIGED8GJzyEWDEnU7597FzxjW77SDUSH537xrSi-3Jyil6WglTK2tw$
mailto:quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com
mailto:mswilliams@fsu.edu
mailto:jpsinclair@fsu.edu
mailto:ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com
mailto:t.smith@jpmorgan.com
mailto:jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com
mailto:CHARLES@NVGT.com
mailto:Tatu@NVGT.com
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

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 12:08 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;
Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Michael — hope all is well!
Just wanted to check in to see if all okay with the 2024E budget exercise.

We understand J.P. is out this week, but wanted to kindly check in to see if you have a sense of
potential timing on this workstream.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | gquinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 9:39 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,

USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston

<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

I’'m available to meet at 10 am.

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 9:34 AM
To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;

Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>; John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion
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Thank you, Michael.
Can we do 10:00am ET?

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 9:32 AM

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

JP is out of the office this week.

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 9:31 AM

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

JP —are you available as well at this time?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 8:13 AM

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
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I’m available until 11 am this morning.

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, June 09, 2023 5:14 PM

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

Is there a time early Monday that might work for a call on this? Ideally everyone on this thread so we
can ensure all aligned.

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, June 09, 2023 3:25 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>;
Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,

See attachment.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351
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From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, June 09, 2023 11:57 AM

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

Thank you, Michael. That’s helpful.

Are you able to send across the file with the gross figures and then also back out the capital
spending?

We'd like to take another look, and then hopefully schedule a call between this group and JP to
confirm our thinking on the forecast and revenue items that are able to be used to paydown opex.

Once that is aligned, we can look at the 2024E budget and then create an opex forecast throughout
the projection period.

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2023 5:13 PM

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

Correct, it’s the net pledged revenues remaining after paying the annual debt service.

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2023 11:37 AM

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

Got it.

And for our benefit, is the $9.9mm not being used for debt service? Just reserved to guarantee debt
service?

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2023 10:35 AM

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

We are projecting a $730K surplus for the year, when excluding capital contributions and expenses

O revenues outside Newco + [ - J = <Co ne:

loss = $700K).

| can add back in the projected capital contributions and expenses but they will have a zero effect on
the above figures.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2023 10:26 AM
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

When you are report on audit, is revenue restricted for capital projects exclude? We’d ideally like
the gross number including amount for capital projects, then separately back out the total actual
capital project expense to get a sense for actual change in cash.

Additionally, it appears in the file that we are backing out S- of revenue for opex but not
reducing the actual opex figure? So based on attached, if aII- could be used for opex, we
would have a-deficit (instead of a S-deﬁcit), excluding to be determined impact from
capital projects?

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2023 10:03 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,
See attachment.

I’'m not reporting any restricted capital contributions or capital expenses in the overall numbers;
therefore, column H is blank.

The revenues reported in Column P are pledged on the outstanding stadium bonds, with the

exception of the I
I - et revenus in column P can

be used for Opex.

Let me know if you want to discuss.

Michael
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Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 07, 2023 4:08 PM

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

Hi Michael,
Thank you for sending this across! This is really helpful.

We have a few questions on our end, and think the best way to answer would be if you could kindly
take a look at the attached. We do not mean to be overly prescriptive, and if you have a better way
to show it feel free to opine.

In order to better understand the cash position, we’d like to start first with the total gross revenue
that you would expect to report in the FY2023 audit for each respective line item, before any
adjustments for capex, opex, etc.

Then, we’d like to net out the following with intermittent subtotals:
a. The amount reserved and to be used for capital projects;
b. Revenue excluded from NewCo that can be used to pay opex; and
c. Debt service

The resulting total would give us revenue that would flow through NewCo and be distributed to
investor / FSU. This amount would be used to pay any remaining opex.

Let us know if available to discuss today. We defer to you, but it may be helpful to have JP on the call
as well to ensure further alignment.

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

Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2023 1:42 PM

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

| worked with Athletics and- to prepare the attached 2023 projections, for how we expect to
end the year. | added columns H-K to show what revenues would be available for NewCo and what
would remain with Athletics. Please review and let me know if this helps. If so, we will do the same
for FY 2024.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, June 05, 2023 4:18 PM

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

Michael — kindly find attached updated analysis of the opex gap in FY’23.

Let us know if any questions. As discussed, we’d like to work towards finding the source of the
~520mm gap, be it accounting or otherwise, so that we may remedy and apply this methodology to
our projection period.

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
Sent: Monday, June 05, 2023 8:10 AM
To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Cc: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Tatu
Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;

Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Todd,

Yes, 11:30 am today works for me.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Saturday, June 03, 2023 7:07 PM

To: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Caronia, Ignacio D
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Thanks Charles!

Michael - would 11:30am et work for you?


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

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media &
Communications | J.P. Morgan

383 Madison Avenue, 26" Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | JPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

From: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Date: Friday, Jun 02, 2023 at 6:21 PM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>, Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>, Kyle
Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>, Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Re: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Hey team,

Available outside of 10-11:30 & 4 onwards. EST

Sent from my iPhone

OnJun 2, 2023, at 5:17 PM, Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Thanks Michael,

Do you have some time to connect on Monday?

Charles —want to make sure the time works for you as well.

Thanks and hope everyone has a great weekend!
Todd

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
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Sent: Friday, June 02, 2023 1:54 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd
L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA)

<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,

per p, the Boosters [

Athletics has calculated that it will cost an additional S800K (in today’s dollars) for the
Football Operations Facility utilities and cleaning. The building is not scheduled to open
until July 2025.

Please let me know if you need additional information.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 01, 2023 1:20 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Charles
Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Michael —

Following our call this afternoon, please find attached the updated opex build for 2023
and 2024.

Note that a few of the items in red /highlighted yellow are TBC pending your
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confirmation and signoff from JP.

Please let us know if any questions, and we really appreciate your continued focus on
this workstream.

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 4:44 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)

<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA)

<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles
Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Todd,

The projected 2024 || G o~ the new bonds is made up of 2
componerts. I

$8.1M will be paid from Athletics available operating revenues. Based, on this | think

you can recuce NN I

Thank You,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351
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From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:57 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Caronia,
Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Thank you, Michael. Confirming receipt.
We can discuss on the 3:30pm ET call.

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:26 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark
<kvle.clark@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ighacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA)
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Charles
Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

Quinn,

| have a few updates:

FY2024
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recorded in June).

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 9:56 AM

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

All -

Please find attached excel workbook we intend to discuss on the call which compares
budget, actuals, 2024E to 2023E, and opex coverage in 2024E.

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 8:58 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA); Michael Williams; Kyle Clark; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB
IBC, USA); Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA); Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA); Charles Rolston; Tatu
Tiililae

Subject: Project Osceola -- Opex Discussion

When: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US &
Canada).
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Where: Zoom Meeting ID: 972 3658 3943
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Join Zoom Meeting:

1. Click Join
2. Enter Meeting ID 97236583943
3. Click Join
4. Select Audio:
e WIFI - “Call using Internet audio” if on WIFI
e Cell - “Dial in” Select number > auto connects using passcode

Join via Link: https://jpmchase.zoom.us/j/97236583943
Join by SIP: 97236583943 @zoomcrc.com

No access to video — Audio only:

e US: +1 669 900 6833
e UK: +44 330 088 5830
* India: +91 80 712 79440
e HK: +85 258 086 088

e Singapore: +65 3165 1065

e Enter Meeting ID 97236583943 and select #
e For alternate phone options, click HERE https://jpmchase.zoom.us/zoomconference?
M=MjAXMjA4MTcwMA.jpRu2AB_NDvkulK2INBotTjytCskzmOv

One tap mobile
+16699006833,,97236583943# US
+443300885830,,97236583943# UK
+918071279440,,97236583943# INDIA
+85258086088,,97236583943# HK
+6531651065,,97236583943# Singapore

Visit http://go/zoominfo for everything you need to know. If you're sharing your remote workspace

with a family member, a roommate or others, please ensure your work conversation stays private.
You can try to take your meetings in a private space and use your headphones. Read more at
http://go/zoomcalls about protecting the firm's data while working remotely.
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This message is confidential and subject to terms at:
https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including on confidential, privileged
or legal entity information, malicious content and monitoring of electronic
messages. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete this message and
notify the sender immediately. Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Jonathan Fozard
Subject: Fwd: Oracle Support for PeopleSoft through 2034
Date: Monday, June 26, 2023 10:53:53 PM
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Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Aime Martinez <amartin@fiu.edu>

Date: June 26, 2023 at 2:04:50 PM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Oracle Support for PeopleSoft through 2034

Hi Kyle,
So nice to see you this past week. | can’t thank you enough for taking the CAFA charge. You are an excellent leader.

I thought | would pass along information that my CIO shared with me that may explain the rationale as to why FIU is not entertaining
changing ERP systems just yet. My understanding is that Workday doesn’t have Student Financials. We would like to have all the
different functions using the same ERP.

Have a nice rest of your Monday,
Aime

Aime Martinez, C.P.A.
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance and Administration

11200 SW 8! Street, PC 523
Miami, FL 33199

Phone: 305-348-2679

Fax: 305-348-3678

Email: amartin@fiu.edu

From: Robert Grillo <rngrillo@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 1:24 PM

To: Aime Martinez <amartin@fiu.edu>

Subject: Oracle Support for PeopleSoft through 2034

Note: This message originated from outside the FIU Faculty/Staff email system.

Try this:

https://urldefense.com/v3/ https://www.oracle.com/a/ocom/docs/support/apps-unlimited-
letter.pdf :!FjuHKAHQs5udgho!LpBwO0IMIPnTS5cZIJNNTcxcl 0Pmlal. 5600PI3nEgctu2XCW_gl YSGSwSx OMSIXrE2VIZ9nMOQtRSuXI

Robert Grillo
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ORACLE

Maximize Your Investment with

Oracle Applications

Unlimited

Since the beginning, Oracle has delivered the technical support
you need to drive your business.

We See The Big Picture

The Applications Unlimited Products:

@ Oracle E-Business Suite @ Sicbel CRM
‘ JD Edwards EnterpriseOne ‘ Oracle Hyperion

‘ PeopleSoft

Oracle recognizes that Applications Unlimited products are central to your strategy and long-
term roadmap. You've integrated these applications into your business model and we're
committed to help you maximize your investment.

The current Continuous Innovation release for the Applications Unlimited products gives you the
latest features and functionality without major upgrades.





How Applications Unlimited Works

With the latest Continuous Innovation release, we’ve eliminated major upgrades, saving you time
and money that you can apply to your business priorities.

Access new New Fixes and

features without functionality updates are

major upgrades. delivered as cumulative and
updates to the available in most
existing Continuous current releases.
Innovation release.

Our Commitment To Excellence Starts With You
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support that allows time for ’
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Committed to Products: Committed to Innovation:
Customers can rely on our Customers can depend on Oracle to
on-premises applications and continue investing in Continuous

expertise to run their business. Innovation releases.





More than 430,000 customers rely on Oracle Support.

“Oracle Support is our partner—they explain the application
roadmap and we can design our projects around it, building a
holistic strategy and a roadmap for our entire organization.”

Jerome Aiken, Senior Solutions Architect, Cox Enterprises

Secure

Oracle owns the source code and has the tools and
the ability to develop security updates.

“We rely on Oracle to keep us safe, with patches at
the source to secure our systems and best practices
to help us navigate risks.”

Susan Behn, VP, Infosemantics, Inc.





Comprehensive

8 . . “Our relationship with Oracle Support is pivotal. They help us
[ ] i . -7
O O implement correctly, follow best practices, and avoid issues others
. have already found. With Oracle Support, we get even more out of
[ ] . our investment.”

Will Rice, Executive Director, JP Morgan Chase & Co.

You can expect integrated support and product updates with a single
point of accountability.

Gain the flexibility to move your Applications Unlimited products—with your business
customizations—to the Oracle Cloud Infrastructure, as needed by your business.

Oracle Lifetime Support Policy

Get Oracle Premier Support for your Applications Unlimited products
through at least 2034.

Explore the Oracle Lifetime Support Policy

Experience Oracle Applications Unlimited and Oracle Premier Support.

Start Now

Copyright © 2023, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its
affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams; Judd Enfinger
Subject: FW: FSU liquidity management
Date: Monday, June 19, 2023 11:02:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

From: Lovett, Peter M <peter.m.lovett@jpmchase.com>

Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 10:12 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Williams, Ashbel C <ashbel.c.williams@jpmorgan.com>
Cc: Beth Lewis <elbell@fsu.edu>; Fox, Jeffrey A <jeffrey.a.fox@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: FSU liquidity management

Kyle,

| hope your summer is off to a great start. I'm touching base today to see if it would make sense for
us to have a follow up zoom call to allow me to update you on the market, our rates and
products,and our take on the macro environment going forward. Additionally we would love to learn
more about what you are doing with your cash and what may have changed from your perspective.
I'min all week, please let me know if you have time for a call or if there is anything | can provide for
you.

Best Regards,

Peter

Peter Lovett (he/his/him) | Executive Director | J.P. Morgan Asset Management | Global Liquidity
| Work From Home - North Carolina | Phone: 404-218-

3718 | peter.m.lovett@jpmorgan.com | jpmgloballiquidity.com

Alternate Contact - Jill Auteri | Analyst | 212-270-7318 | Jillian.auteri@jpmchase.com

Account Manager: Joe Mako | Client Account Manager | Phone: 1 614 900
9572 | joseph.a.mako@jpmorgan.com

General Trade/Account inquiries: Our dedicated team in Columbus, Ohio 800-766-7722 |
www.jpmagloballiguidity.com

For Canadian clients / prospects, to stop receiving promotional electronic communications, please send a
message with "UNSUBSCRIBE” in the subject line.

JEMorgan

Asset Management

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>
Sent: Friday, December 02, 2022 3:00 PM
To: Williams, Ashbel C (AM, USA) <ashbel.c.williams@jpmorgan.com>; Lovett, Peter M (AM, USA)
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<peter.m.lovett@jpmchase.com>
Cc: Beth Lewis <elbell@fsu.edu>; Fox, Jeffrey A (AM, USA) <jeffrey.a.fox@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: FSU liquidity management

Mr. Williams, thank you for the connection.

Mr. Lovett, it is nice to meet you. If possible, | would like to request Beth to set up a virtual meeting.

Many thanks.

From: Williams, Ashbel C <ashbel.c.williams@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, December 2, 2022 2:54 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Lovett, Peter M <peter.m.lovett@jpmchase.com>
Cc: Fox, Jeffrey A <jeffrey.a.fox@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: FSU liquidity management

Kyle and Peter,

Following up on prior conversations, | would like to introduce you to one another. Kyle
Clark, Senior VP for Finance & Administration, Florida State University, please meet Peter
M. Lovett, Executive Director, J.P. Morgan Investment Management. Kyle is essentially
FSU’s CFO and Peter specializes in liquidity solutions for JP Morgan clients. With that, | am
hopeful this is the beginning of a productive discussion that will be helpful to FSU.

Thanks and best regards,

Ash

Ashbel Williams (he/him/his) | Vice Chairman | J.P. Morgan Asset Management
| 277 Park Ave. | New York, NY 10172 | Phone: +1 917 776 6345 | ashbel.williams@jpmorgan.com
| www.jpmorgan.com/asset-management

JPmorgan

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

To: Peter Collins

Cc: Richard McCullough

Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call
Date: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:12:26 AM
Chairman,

Below are Michael Williams and my initial thoughts.

10.
1.
12.
13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

. Initial Purchase amount — Need to know more about how these funds will be invested to

generate purchaser’s required returns.
Existing liens — alighnment
Future Debt Financing — University can only issue debt with its share of the Cjj i}

I U < Arctos broposo

Applicable term — maintain position at 15

Contributed revenue streams — Need some additional clarity|jj| ||| - \Vant to be
flexible.
Excluded revenue streams — maintain position.

_ Additional purchase amounts - I

Available proceeds — maintain position.

Universiy priorty distrbution

Second step distribution —

Third step distribution — Same as 10. We believe || is too high.

Fourth step distribution — Same as 10.

Governance — Maintain position. We believe both proposals are requesting too much control
of Athletic business operations.

Intellectual Property — alignment

Future Developments — Need more details from Arctos on how they are defining first right of
refusal.

rermination - I

Assignment — assignment to purchaser’s funds and managed accounts seem reasonable.

Many thanks.
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From: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 4:13 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Project OSCEOQOLA -- Arctos Call

Take a look and comment please.

Best,

Peter

Peter H Collins

Managing Principal

Forge Capital Partners, LLC
P) 813.574.6779 (Tampa)
C) 561.213.9779 (cell)

pcollins@forgecapitalpartners.com

From: Azzopardi, Frank J. <frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 6:22 PM

To: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; 'Carolyn Egan' <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>;
'Menell, Eric' <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; 'Caronia, Ignacio D'
<jgnhacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; 'Smith, Todd L' <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; 'Flaks, Quinn'
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; 'Sun, Jeff' <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Kaplan, Michael <michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>;
Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; Florack, James A.
<james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland, Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>

Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Peter, Carolyn and the JPM team:

Attached please find an updated draft of the issues list which reflects the Term Sheet
markup we received from Arctos overnight. You will see that the chart compares the
positions taken by Sixth Street, Arctos and FSU side-by-side with respect to the key terms.

We appreciate that time is of the essence, so we are circulating the chart to the team
simultaneously. We are happy to discuss at your convenience.

Best,

Frank

Frank J. Azzopardi
Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP
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+1 212 450 6277 office
+1 646 413 5607 mobile
frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com

From: Azzopardi, Frank J.

Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 7:16 AM

To: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>;
Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Kaplan, Michael
<michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; Mungovan, Kara L.
<kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; Florack, James A. <james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland,
Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>

Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Thanks Peter.

| totally understand the business justification for our position. What we did say on our call
with Arctos in response to their sensitivity was that the two baskets weren’t designed with a
view to being gamed by the University to circumvent their participation in the upside, but
rather the initial purchase amount and “General Basket” were designed to be a pool of
funds that was not earmarked for any specific purpose and the University had full discretion
as to how those funds could be used.

Best,

Frank
Frank J. Azzopardi

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

+1 212 450 6277 office

+1 646 413 5607 mobile
frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com

From: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 5:02 AM

To: Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; Azzopardi, Frank J.
<frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Kaplan, Michael
<michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; Mungovan, Kara L.
<kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; Florack, James A. <james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland,

Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>
Subject: Re: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

I agree with Eric. This should be clear in the term sheet correct?
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Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 8:17:15 PM

To: Azzopardi, Frank J. <frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com>; Peter Collins
<PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>;
michael.kaplan@davispolk.com <michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian
<brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>;
james.florack@davispolk.com <james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland, Samantha

<samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>
Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Eric Menell

J.P. Morgan | Managing Director

(0) 212.622.4217

(JPM ¢) 917.407.9759 (c) 917.817.6394

From: Azzopardi, Frank J. <frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com>

Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 6:31 PM

To: 'Peter Collins' <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>, Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Menell, Eric (CIB, USA) <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>, Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>, Flaks,
Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>, Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA)
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>, michael .kaplan@davispolk.com <michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>, Wolfe,
Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>, Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>,

james.florack@davispolk.com <james.florack@davispolk.com>, Lefland, Samantha

<samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>
Subject: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Peter and Carolyn:

We had a productive call with Arctos and K&E (Arctos’s counsel) this afternoon where
Davis Polk/JPM responded to the queries they had regarding the approach we took in our
markup of their draft of the term sheet. We responded to most of their queries and we will
also run to ground some debt, tax, accounting and governance questions.

One business question they had is that in our term sheet, we had proposed that for two
years following Closing, FSU could require an additional purchase of for any purpose
(the “General Basket”)
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| appreciate it may be challenging to figure
out where the funds are coming from in that scenario, but it is a nuance to the paradigm
that we will need to address so we wanted to put it on your radar. | don’t think this is an
issue that will hold up our receiving a markup from K&E,.

We will send you an issues list once we receive and have had an opportunity to review
Arctos’s markup of the term sheet.

Best,
Frank

Frank J. Azzopardi

+1 212 450 6277 office
+1 646 413 5607 mobile
frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

Confidentiality Note: This email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged,
confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure. Unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this email or the information herein or
taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email or the information herein, by anyone other than the intended recipient, or an employee or agent
responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender
immediately and destroy the original message, any attachments thereto and all copies. Please refer to the firm's privacy notice for important information
on how we process personal data. Our website is at davispolk.com.

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


mailto:frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.davispolk.com_privacy-2Dnotice&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=jWQLZ3PXwyENaeewznRqpDCJQevbejAml8GWBigrpO9qtY_iS_60UgObRlN-YY9L&m=mwLfAA71hhniZe2MlgJwQIAJtJ1JZtW9HE7yMf809dg&s=pi2UVSSVr5MaQIRIk8JT3ui_VMI4TD1vxPDitNeVkGo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.davispolk.com&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=jWQLZ3PXwyENaeewznRqpDCJQevbejAml8GWBigrpO9qtY_iS_60UgObRlN-YY9L&m=mwLfAA71hhniZe2MlgJwQIAJtJ1JZtW9HE7yMf809dg&s=Wi54fpamR4MfhkWEBr0P0SBh0oC4vJb39fL6-vFkRZ0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.jpmorgan.com_emaildisclaimer&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=3L_cBIVyy1AYY-8elxlhjy0jJecTAHvTVD2Gz8ZUrGUMZbWxX79Vdzs3DY8RDazf&m=5bstvM420rcBGPVU-cEI8i70IK03I3FzBMlVEXvoSv8&s=3grF-HJAAAVxhahtECEyO2kg5P_hW8Zm_iMFAA5S-c8&e=

From: Kyle Clark

To: Stacey Patterson; James Clark

Subject: Fwd: FSU & KPMG Continued Discussions

Date: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 12:12:15 PM

Attachments: Elorida Medical Practice Plan and KPMG Diagnostic Assessment 6.13.2023 Mtg.pdf

Per our discussion.
Appreciate y’all’s thoughts!
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Manning, Lindsey" <lindseymanning@kpmg.com>

Date: June 13, 2023 at 12:07:23 PM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Alma Littles <alma.littles@med.fsu.edu>,
Christopher Mulrooney <chris.mulrooney@med.fsu.edu>, Renata McCann
<renata.mccann@med.fsu.edu>, Dawn Snyder <dawn.snyder@med.fsu.edu>, Beth
Lewis <elbell@fsu.edu>, Maria Cicciarelli <maria.cicciarelli@med.fsu.edu>, Patty
Ballantine <patty.ballantine@med.fsu.edu>

Cec: "Nelson, Ross R" <rossnelson@kpmg.com>, "Bandy, Chad D"
<cbandy@kpmg.com>

Subject: RE: FSU & KPMG Continued Discussions

All — Please find attached a short document to guide our discussion this afternoon.

Thanks,
Lindsey

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, June 9, 2023 9:37 AM

To: Kyle Clark; Manning, Lindsey; Bandy, Chad D; Alma Littles; Christopher Mulrooney;
Dawn Snyder

Cc: Renata McCann; Maria Cicciarelli; Beth Lewis; Nelson, Ross R; Patty Ballantine
Subject: FSU & KPMG Continued Discussions

When: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:00 PM-5:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US &
Canada).

Where: https://fsu.zoom.us/j/99076312424

-]
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Hi there,

Kyle Clark is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting

One tap mobile: US: +13052241968..99076312424+# or +13092053325..99076312424#

Meeting URL: https://fsu.zoom.us/j/99076312424
Meeting ID: 990 7631 2424

Join by Telephone

For higher quality, dial a number based on your current location.
Dial: +1 305 224 1968 US

+1 309 205 3325 US

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

+1 646 931 3860 US

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

+1 719 359 4580 US

+1 253 205 0468 US

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 360 209 5623 US

+1 386 347 5053 US

+1 507 473 4847 US

+1 564 217 2000 US

+1 669 444 9171 US

+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

+1 689 278 1000 US

Meeting ID: 990 7631 2424

International numbers

Join from an H.323/SIP room system

H.323: 162.255.37.11 (US West)
162.255.36.11 (US East)
115.114.131.7 (India Mumbai)
115.114.115.7 (India Hyderabad)
213.19.144.110 (Amsterdam Netherlands)
213.244.140.110 (Germany)
103.122.166.55 (Australia Sydney)
103.122.167.55 (Australia Melbourne)
149.137.40.110 (Singapore)
64.211.144.160 (Brazil)
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149.137.68.253 (Mexico)
69.174.57.160 (Canada Toronto)
65.39.152.160 (Canada Vancouver)
207.226.132.110 (Japan Tokyo)
149.137.24.110 (Japan Osaka)

Meeting ID: 990 7631 2424
SIP: 99076312424@zoomcrc.com

CAUTION: This email originated from outside KPMG. Do not click links, open attachments or
forward unless you recognize the sender, the sender’s email domain and you know the

content is safe. Please report suspicious emails using the "Report Suspicious" button at the
top right corner of the email in Outlook or forward as an attachment to US-KPMG SPAM
Collection Mailbox (spam@KPMG.com).

The information in this email is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. Access to this email by anyone else is
unauthorized. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying,
distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited
and may be unlawful. When addressed to our clients any opinions or advice
contained in this email are subject to the terms and conditions expressed in the

governing KPMG client engagement letter.
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From: Kyle Clark
To: Beth Lewis
Subject: Fwd: You're Invited to a J.P. Morgan Webinar Event: And Then There Was AI and ChatGPT

Date:

Monday, June 12, 2023 6:55:32 PM

Attachments: image001.png

image005.png

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Date: June 12, 2023 at 5:23:48 PM EDT

To: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: You're Invited to a J.P. Morgan Webinar Event: And Then There Was Al and ChatGPT

PLEASE JOIN US

And Then There Was Al and ChatGPT:
What Does It Mean For Your Organization?

Artificial intelligence is no longer a distant future but our present reality. Join us to learn more
about what Al is and to hear practical applications from industry leaders.

Friday, June 23, 2023
1:30 - 2:30 p.m. ET

Zoom Details
Calendar invite to be sent upon R.S.V.P.

R.S.V.P. HERE

Moderator

Katherine Bobroske
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: Fwd: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Date: Monday, June 12, 2023 5:03:25 PM

Attachments: Project Osceola - Issues List and Comparison Chart.DOCX

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>
Date: June 12, 2023 at 4:14:52 PM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

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

To: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; 'Carolyn Egan'
<cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; 'Menell, Eric' <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; 'Caronia,
Ignacio D' <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; 'Smith, Todd L'
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; 'Flaks, Quinn' <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; 'Sun, Jeff'
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Kaplan, Michael <michael. kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian
<brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>;
Florack, James A. <james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland, Samantha
<samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>

Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Peter, Carolyn and the JPM team:


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
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Attached please find an updated draft of the issues list which reflects the Term
Sheet markup we received from Arctos overnight. You will see that the chart
compares the positions taken by Sixth Street, Arctos and FSU side-by-side with
respect to the key terms.

We appreciate that time is of the essence, so we are circulating the chart to the
team simultaneously. We are happy to discuss at your convenience.

Best,

Frank

Frank J. Azzopardi

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLpP

+1 212 450 6277 office

+1 646 413 5607 mobile
frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com

From: Azzopardi, Frank J.
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 7:16 AM
To: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; Menell, Eric

<eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn <gquinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Kaplan, Michael <michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe,

Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; Mungovan, Kara L.
<kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; Florack, James A. <james.florack@davispolk.com>;

Lefland, Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>
Subject: RE: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call

Thanks Peter. Yes, it's clear from the language of the term sheet

| totally understand the business justification for our position. What we did say
on our call with Arctos in response to their sensitivity was that the two baskets
weren’t designed with a view to being gamed by the University to circumvent
their participation in the upside, but rather the initial purchase amount and
“General Basket” were designed to be a pool of funds that was not earmarked
for any specific purpose and the University had full discretion as to how those
funds could be used.

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
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff
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
Get Outlook for iOS

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

<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; michael.kaplan@davispolk.com

<michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>;

Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; james.florack@davispolk.com
<james.florack@davispolk.com>; Lefland, Samantha

<samantha.lefland @davispolk.com>
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

To: 'Peter Collins' <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>, Carolyn Egan

<cegan@admin.fsu.edu>
Cc: Menell, Eric (CIB, USA) <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>, Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC,
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USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA)
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>, Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>,

Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>, michael . kaplan@davispolk.com
<michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>, Wolfe, Brian <brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>, Mungovan,

Kara L. <kara.mungovan(@davispolk.com>, james.florack(@davispolk.com
<james.florack@davispolk.com>, Lefland, Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>

Subject: Project OSCEOLA -- Arctos Call
Peter and Carolyn:

We had a productive call with Arctos and K&E (Arctos’s counsel) this afternoon
where Davis Polk/JPM responded to the queries they had regarding the
approach we took in our markup of their draft of the term sheet. We responded
to most of their queries and we will also run to ground some debt, tax,
accounting and governance questions.

One business question they had is that in our term sheet, we had proposed that
for two years following Closing, FSU could require an additional purchase of
for any purpose (the “General Basket”)

appreciate it may be challenging to figure out where the funds are coming from
in that scenario, but it is a nuance to the paradigm that we will need to address
so we wanted to put it on your radar. | don’t think this is an issue that will hold
up our receiving a markup from K&E,.

We will send you an issues list once we receive and have had an opportunity to
review Arctos’s markup of the term sheet.

Best,

Frank

Frank J. Azzopardi

+1 212 450 6277 office
+1 646 413 5607 mobile
frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLp

Confidentiality Note: This email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure. Unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this email
or the information herein or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email or the information herein, by anyone other than
the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, is strictly prohibited.
If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the original message, any attachments
thereto and all copies. Please refer to the firm's privacy notice for important information on how we process personal data. Our
website is at davispolk.com.
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
To: Katie Perkins
Subject: Fwd: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - May 2023
Date: Thursday, June 8, 2023 6:42:31 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

image006.png

image007.png

image008.png

image009.png

image010.png

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: John Carrigan <jcarrigan@foundation.fsu.edu>
Date: June 8, 2023 at 4:17:30 PM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Marla A Vickers
<Marla.Vickers@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - May 2023

Good afternoon all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for May 2023. Please let me know if you
have any questions.

Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:06 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - April 2023

Good morning all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for April 2023. Please let me know if you
have any questions.


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
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Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 1:44 PM

To: 'Kyle Clark' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - March 2023

Good afternoon all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for March 2023. Please let me know if you
have any questions.

Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 3:07 PM
To: 'Kyle Clark' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>

Cc: 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - February 2023

Good afternoon all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for February 2023. Please let me know if
you have any questions.

Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan
Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 4:00 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
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Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - January 2023
Good afternoon all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for January 2023. Please let me know if
you have any questions.

Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan
Sent: Tuesday, January 10, 2023 3:53 PM
To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - December 2022

Good afternoon all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for December 2022. Please let me know if
you have any questions.

Thanks,

John

From: John Carrigan

Sent: Tuesday, December 13, 2022 9:02 AM

To: 'Kyle Clark' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; 'Marla A Vickers' <Marla.Vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - November 2022

Good morning all,

We noticed that the recent_ was not included in the

outstanding commitments schedule. This has been updated in CRM and the updated
Legacy Hall Report is below. Going forward, we will reconcile the changes in total
commitments vs outstanding commitments in CRM to verify the data in the system has
completely updated prior to sending this report. Please let me know if you have any
qguestions.
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From: John Carrigan

Sent: Monday, December 12, 2022 9:55 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla A Vickers <Marla.Vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - November 2022

Good morning Kyle and Marla,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for November 2022. Please let me know if
you have any questions.

Thanks,

John

John Carrigan, CPA

Chief Financial Officer

Florida State University Foundation
(850) 644-0766
jcarrigan@foundation.fsu.edu

foundation.fsu.edu
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: Fwd: Project Osceola -- Issues List

Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 7:52:29 AM

Attachments: Project Osceola - Issues List and Comparison Chart.DOCX

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>
Date: May 30, 2023 at 7:48:28 AM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Project Osceola -- Issues List

Take a look please.

From: Lefland, Samantha <samantha.lefland@davispolk.com>

Sent: Monday, May 29, 2023 9:26 PM

To: Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; Peter Collins
<PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>

Cc: Azzopardi, Frank J. <frank.azzopardi@davispolk.com>; Wolfe, Brian
<brian.wolfe@davispolk.com>; '‘Menell, Eric' <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>; Caronia,
Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Kaplan, Michael
<michael.kaplan@davispolk.com>; Florack, James A. <james.florack@davispolk.com>;
Mungovan, Kara L. <kara.mungovan@davispolk.com>; Flaks, Quinn
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Project Osceola -- Issues List

Peter, Carolyn,

Please find attached an issues list / comparison chart based on Sixth Street’s
latest markup of the term sheet. Once we receive a markup from Arctos, we will
update the attached chart to also reflect the positions taken by Arctos. Let us
know if you have any questions or if it would be helpful to discuss the attached
issues.

Best,
Sam

Samantha Lefland

+1 212 450 4807 office
+1 516 987 3004 mobile
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samantha.lefland@davispolk.com

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
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Call
Date: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 10:05:00 AM

| know you are remote today. | think he meant today. | don’t know if that was your way of saying
you are tied up today.

Thanks.

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 9:48 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Call

Quinn,

I’m available tomorrow morning for a call.
Michael

Michael Williams, CPA

Associate Vice President

Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 2:58 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Project Osceola -- Call

Hi Michael, Kyle —
Do you have availability tomorrow to hop on a call?

We have a few things we’d like to discuss on the financials. Would be great if we could speak in the
morning / early afternoon.
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

To: Brad Adams
Cc: Mike Robert Materna; Sadie Greiner; Michael Williams
Subject: RE: Dunlap Football Center
Date: Friday, May 19, 2023 10:48:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png

Michael and | totally missed those.

Many thanks.

From: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, May 19, 2023 9:59 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Mike Robert Materna <mrm22p@fsu.edu>; Sadie Greiner <sg22cy@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Dunlap Football Center

Budget Summary - Hard Construction Costs
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From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, May 19, 2023 8:39 AM

To: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Mike Robert Materna <mrm22p@fsu.edu>; Sadie Greiner <sg22cy@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Dunlap Football Center

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Friday, May 19, 2023 8:33 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Dunlap Football Center
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From: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 2:14 PM
To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Stuart Armstrong <sarmstrong@catalysthre.com>; Benjamin Zierden <bzierden@admin.fsu.edu>; Doug
Doucette <ddoucette@catalysthre.com>

Subject: Fwd: Dunlap Football Center

Begin forwarded message:

From: Stuart Armstrong <sarmstrong@catalysthre.com>
Date: May 17, 2023 at 1:45:14 PM EDT

To: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Benjamin Zierden <bzierden@admin.fsu.edu>, Doug Doucette <ddoucette@catalysthre.com>
Subject: RE: Dunlap Football Center

STUART ARMSTRONG
Senior Vice President, Dcvclopmcm & Construction | Catalyst Healthcare Real Estate
t: (850) 607-6069 Ext.105 e: >(@catalysthre.com

catalysthre.com
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From: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 12:14 PM
To: Stuart Armstrong <sarmstrong@catalysthre.com>

Cc: Benjamin Zierden <bzierden@admin.fsu.edu>
Subject: Fwd: Dunlap Football Center

I ssocc:

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Date: May 17, 2023 at 1:05:49 PM EDT

To: Brad Adams <jbadams@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Dunlap Football Center

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 5:42 AM

To: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>

Cc: Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Sadie Greiner <sg22cy@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford
<Michael. Alford @fsu.edu>; Benjamin Zierden <bzierden@admin.fsu.edu>; Brad Adams
<jpbadams@fsu.edu>; Mike Robert Materna <mrm22p@fsu.edu>; Chad Henderson
<chenderson@catalysthre.com>

Subject: Re: Dunlap Football Center
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On May 15, 2023, at 4:00 PM, John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu> wrote:

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 6:32 PM

To: John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>

Cc: Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Sadie Greiner <sg22cy@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford

<Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>
Subject: Re: Dunlap Football Center

On May 12, 2023, at 4:16 PM, John Sinclair
<jpsinclair@fsu.edu> wrote:
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Brad Adams

Cc: Mike Robert Materna; Sadie Greiner
Subject: RE: Dunlap Football Center

Date: Friday, May 19, 2023 8:38:00 AM
Attachments: DFC Cost Breakdown - Hard&Soft 051023.pdf
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: Fwd: Dunlap Football Center
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 6:02:42 PM
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Sun, Jeff

Cc: Michael Williams; Caronia, Ignacio D; Smith, Todd L; Flaks, Quinn
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 1:38:00 PM

Hi Jeff,

| will need Michael to review this when he returns to the office later this week. He was more involved in the model.

Many thanks.

From: Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:52 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Kyle,

We compared the distribution numbers in the file against those provided by Navigate in our model and on Form
990s as below. When convenient, could you kindly provide some context on these differences? Thank you.

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Total Revenue Distribution per ACC 40,617,479 36,911,236 34,499,146 29,592,207
Model 40,344,759 37,162,169 34,049,496 30,094,293
990s 35,945,682 32,527,056 27,717,724

Best,
Jeff

Jeffrey Sun | Media & Communications Investment Banking | 3.P. Morgan
383 Madison Ave, 26 Floor, New York, NY 10179 | Office: (212) 622-7485 | JPM Mobile: (917) 731-3371 | Mobile: (646)
509-6189 | jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 8:47 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;
Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpomorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

From: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Saturday, May 13, 2023 10:05 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmaorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
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Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Hi Kyle,

That should work.

Do you happen to have some time Monday for a brief call? Might be helpful to talk through below and one other
item we had for you.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Saturday, May 13, 2023 9:09 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>;
Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpomorgan.com>
Subject: Re: Project Osceola -- Questions

Hey Quinn,

Thanks for the follow up. Sorry, I'm neck deep in the University’s Operating Budget and Legislative Session.

Can we send this information on Monday?

Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone

On May 12, 2023, at 4:14 PM, Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Team — just following up on below.

In addition to these two questions, have a few others we would appreciate some guidance on:

1. What will be the go-forward impact of Learfield restructuring issues on model and revenue to
FSU?

Our Athletic Director reports we may have a dip in year 1. However, we are still evaluating and will be
able to discuss new proposals from all vendors. The Athletic Director does not see an impact long
term.

2. Do you have the historical split of different components of the conference distributions by sub-
category?
1. Could you also please confirm if conference distribution is conference cash flow, e.g.
post-capex, or more revenue-like (want to understand if increased conference capex
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stunts distribution)
Please see attached.

Thanks, and have a great weekend!

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2023 2:09 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA)
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Project Osceola -- Questions
Hi Kyle, Michael —
Long time no talk, hope all is well!
We have two questions on Project Osceola:
1. Is the Form 990 for FY22 available yet? If not, when does it typically become available?

2. Do you have any details available on FY23 actuals and how we are tracking to our projections?
1. Any amount of guidance will be appreciated
2. At some point, investors will likely want some sort of flash update with results for key line
items

We are speaking with an investor at 4:30pm ET and would appreciate any amount of guidance on
either of these two questions you are able to give quickly!

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan | 383 Madison Avenue, New York,
NY 10179 | O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

This message is confidential and subject to terms at:
https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including on confidential, privileged or legal entity
information, malicious content and monitoring of electronic messages. If you are not the
intended recipient, please delete this message and notify the sender immediately. Any
unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

This message is confidential and subject to terms at: https:/www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including
on confidential, privileged or legal entity information, malicious content and monitoring of electronic
messages. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete this message and notify the sender immediately.
Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.
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This message is confidential and subject to terms at: https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including
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

Subject: FW: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - April 2023
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 1:37:00 PM
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From: John Carrigan <JCarrigan@foundation.fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:06 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Marla A Vickers <marla.vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - April 2023

Good morning all,

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for April 2023. Please let me know if you have any

questions.
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

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for March 2023. Please let me know if you have any
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

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for February 2023. Please let me know if you have any
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

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for January 2023. Please let me know if you have any
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

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for December 2022. Please let me know if you have any
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

We noticed that the recent_ was not included in the outstanding

commitments schedule. This has been updated in CRM and the updated Legacy Hall Report is below.
Going forward, we will reconcile the changes in total commitments vs outstanding commitments in
CRM to verify the data in the system has completely updated prior to sending this report. Please let
me know if you have any questions.
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

Here is the Legacy Hall Commitment Report for November 2022. Please let me know if you have any
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

FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY
FOUNDATION
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Ross Cobb; John Sinclair

Subject: Fwd: Project Osceola -- Questions
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 11:12:38 AM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Sun, Jeff" <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Date: May 15, 2023 at 10:52:05 AM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cec: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>, "Caronia, Ignacio D"
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, "Smith, Todd L" <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>, "Flaks, Quinn"
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Kyle,

We compared the distribution numbers in the file against those provided by Navigate in our model and on
Form 990s as below. When convenient, could you kindly provide some context on these differences? Thank

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

Jeffrey Sun | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan
383 Madison Ave, 26" Floor, New York, NY 10179 | Office: (212) 622-7485 | JPM Mobile: (917) 731-3371 | Mobile:
(646) 509-6189 | jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 8:47 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA)
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB
IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

From: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Saturday, May 13, 2023 10:05 AM
To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith,
Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
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Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Hi Kyle,

That should work.

Do you happen to have some time Monday for a brief call? Might be helpful to talk through below and one
other item we had for you.

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

On May 12, 2023, at 4:14 PM, Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Team — just following up on below.

In addition to these two questions, have a few others we would appreciate some guidance on:

1. What will be the go-forward impact of Learfield restructuring issues on model and
revenue to FSU?

Our Athletic Director reports we may have a dip in year 1. However, we are still evaluating and
will be able to discuss new proposals from all vendors. The Athletic Director does not see an
impact long term.

2. Do you have the historical split of different components of the conference distributions
by sub-category?
1. Could you also please confirm if conference distribution is conference cash flow,
e.g. post-capex, or more revenue-like (want to understand if increased conference
capex stunts distribution)
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

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB
IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

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

2. Do you have any details available on FY23 actuals and how we are tracking to our
projections?
1. Any amount of guidance will be appreciated
2. At some point, investors will likely want some sort of flash update with results for
key line items

We are speaking with an investor at 4:30pm ET and would appreciate any amount of guidance
on either of these two questions you are able to give quickly!

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan | 383 Madison Avenue,
New York, NY 10179 | O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

This message is confidential and subject to terms at:
https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including on confidential, privileged or legal
entity information, malicious content and monitoring of electronic messages. If you are
not the intended recipient, please delete this message and notify the sender immediately.
Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

This message is confidential and subject to terms at: https: jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer
including on confidential, privileged or legal entity information, malicious content and monitoring of
electronic messages. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete this message and notify the
sender immediately. Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

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

To: Flaks, Quinn

Cc: Michael Williams; Caronia, Ignacio D; Smith, Todd L; Sun, Jeff
Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 8:46:00 AM

Attachments: ACC Annual Distributions.xlsx

From: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Saturday, May 13, 2023 10:05 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Caronia, Ignacio D
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Hi Kyle,
That should work.

Do you happen to have some time Monday for a brief call? Might be helpful to talk through below
and one other item we had for you.

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
Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Re: Project Osceola -- Questions

Hey Quinn,

Thanks for the follow up. Sorry, I’'m neck deep in the University’s Operating Budget and Legislative
Session.

Can we send this information on Monday?

Thanks.
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FSU

		Atlantic Coast Conference

		Revenue Distribution

		Florida State



				2022-23		2021-22		2020-21		2019-20		2018-19		2017-18		2016-17		2015-16		2014-15

		Revenue

		TV: ACC-ESPN Multi-Media Base		20,392,839		19,514,679		17,266,667		17,870,176		19,920,000		19,218,000		16,635,418		15,964,802		15,387,203

		TV: ACC-ESPN Network		11,660,344		10,830,100		8,722,072		4,823,765		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACC Football Championship		135,000		208,065		207,045		200,000		260,000		181,000		65,891		242,325		90,266

		Bowl Revenue- CFP		5,348,643		5,504,799		4,785,908		5,110,000		4,655,000		4,546,819		4,525,474		4,609,157		3,868,521

		Bowl Revenue- Orange Bowl		1,947,344		- 0		1,755,314		1,740,000		21,492		1,642,277		1,650,477		- 0		1,382,615

		Bowl Revenue- Non-CFP Bowls		300,000		(138,460)		124,482		245,000		250,000		368,440		586,318		452,993		380,368

		ACC Men's Basketball Tournament		250,000		249,367		- 0		278,949		275,000		125,000		122,798		165,321		196,279

		NCAA Men's Basketball Tournament		1,936,832		2,078,380		2,316,987		760,531		1,938,000		1,703,772		1,573,182		1,311,955		1,169,488

		NCAA Sports Sponsorship		345,313		340,428		334,066		105,272		340,994		334,005		327,235		320,803		312,277

		NCAA Grants-in-Aid		923,275		925,257		912,784		282,449		911,727		887,544		- 0		841,905		827,427

		NCAA Academic Enhancement		142,003		141,650		140,920		43,850		140,227		- 0		- 0		- 0		74,849

		NCAA Academic Performance Fund		113,118		104,320		65,282		10,872		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		NCAA Supplemental Distribution				252,820		- 0		152,381		142,952		209,657		- 0		139,041		322,084

		NCAA SA Opportunity Fund				320,835		330,598		94,776		313,067		- 0		299,090		285,612		298,900

		NCAA Special Assistance Fund				72,126		73,419		23,562		77,321		- 0		73,016		65,912		71,152

		NCAA Royalty				42,539		52,096		20,380		17,483		29,369		7,009		32,899

		ACC Extra Production Stipend				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		56,000		- 0		- 0

		New Member Entry Fee				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		57,143		275,325		275,325

		Maryland Settlement - Exit Fee				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		2,615,572

		Total Revenue		43,494,711		40,446,905		37,087,640		31,761,960		29,263,263		29,301,883		25,923,051		24,708,050		27,272,326

		Less: ACC Budget		(2,877,232)		(2,689,002)		(2,386,738)		(2,169,754)		(2,530,751)		(2,441,862)		(1,953,685)		(1,823,194)		(1,596,545)

		Less: Board Approved Withholding				(846,667)		(201,756)		- 0		- 0		- 0		(187,990)		(206,624)		(93,552)

		Total Revenue Distribution per ACC		40,617,479		36,911,236		34,499,146		29,592,207		26,732,511		26,860,021		23,781,376		22,678,232		25,582,229



		Non-Revenue Distribution

		Bowl Travel Allowance				- 0		- 0		1,366,000		- 0		1,133,000		2,000,000		2,080,000		2,000,000

		Men's NCAA BB Travel Allowance				- 0		85,000		- 0		95,000		95,000		40,000		- 0		- 0

		Women's NCAA BB Travel Allowance				25,000		25,000		- 0		25,000		- 0		25,000		50,000		25,000

		ACCN Production Stipend				1,002,100		716,500		365,500		301,100		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		NCAA Grant - Drug Education				- 0		- 0		3,000		2,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		NCAA Grant - Subgrant Program				- 0		- 0		10,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACC Supplemental				127,997		17,284		500,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Total Non-Revenue Distribution		- 0		1,155,097		843,784		2,244,500		423,100		1,228,000		2,065,000		2,130,000		2,025,000



		Withholdings

		Fall Officiating Fees				316,479		254,722		291,568		279,863		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Winter Officiating Fees				330,900		228,100		327,150		343,700		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Spring Officiating Fees				218,042		206,759		105,119		268,950		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Total Officiating Fees		- 0		865,421		689,581		723,837		892,513		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Bowl Ticket Obligation				- 0		- 0		142,250		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACC MBB Tickets				553,768		49,196		130,592		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACC WBB Tickets				6,446		- 0		8,250		5,975		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		Additional Withholdings (with direction from school)										6,778

		Total Withholdings		- 0		1,425,635		738,777		1,004,929		905,266		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0





		Total Distribution Due		40,617,479		36,640,698		34,604,153		30,831,777		26,250,346		28,088,021		25,846,376		24,808,232		27,607,229








Sent from my iPhone

On May 12, 2023, at 4:14 PM, Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Team — just following up on below.

In addition to these two questions, have a few others we would appreciate some
guidance on:

1. What will be the go-forward impact of Learfield restructuring issues on model
and revenue to FSU?

Our Athletic Director reports we may have a dip in year 1. However, we are still
evaluating and will be able to discuss new proposals from all vendors. The Athletic
Director does not see an impact long term.

2. Do you have the historical split of different components of the conference
distributions by sub-category?
1. Could you also please confirm if conference distribution is conference
cash flow, e.g. post-capex, or more revenue-like (want to understand if
increased conference capex stunts distribution)

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

1. Isthe Form 990 for FY22 available yet? If not, when does it typically become
available?

2. Do you have any details available on FY23 actuals and how we are tracking to
our projections?
1. Any amount of guidance will be appreciated
2. At some point, investors will likely want some sort of flash update with
results for key line items

We are speaking with an investor at 4:30pm ET and would appreciate any amount of
guidance on either of these two questions you are able to give quickly!

Thanks,
Quinn

Quinn Flaks | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan | 383 Madison
Avenue, New York, NY 10179 | O: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 |
quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

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

To: Mi iliams; Judd Enfi

Cc: Beth Lewis

Subject: Fwd: WEBINAR: Debt Ceiling Update | May 15 @ 11am ET
Date: Sunday, May 14, 2023 8:38:01 AM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Date: May 14, 2023 at 8:32:48 AM EDT

To: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: FW: WEBINAR: Debt Ceiling Update | May 15 @ 11am ET

We thought you all might find this meeting interesting. Please feel free to pass this invitation to other team
members for pre-registration as you see fit. | hope that you are having a great weekend and Happy Mother’s Day
to all the moms!

All the Best,
Mark

Mark W. Meyer | Relationship Executive | Healthcare, Higher Education, Nonprofit | Commercial
Banking | 450 S Orange Ave, Floor 10 | Orlando, FL 32801 | T: 407 236 5385 | M: 407 790 6907
| Assistant: 407 236 5383 | mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com | jpmorganchase.com/commercial

JPmorgan

2]

J.P MOI‘gaIl North America Economic Research

US Debt Ceiling Update

Join J.P. Morgan’s Chief U.S. economist, Michael Feroli and Jay Barry, Co-Head of US Rates
Strategy, as they discuss the US debt ceiling with Bob Cusack, Editor in Chief of The Hill.

J.P. Morgan Speakers:
Jay Barry — Co-Head of US Rates Strategy
Michael Feroli — Chief US Economist

Featuring:
Bob Cusack — Editor in Chief of The Hill

Monday, May 15 @ 11:00am ET / 16:00 UK
Pre-registration Required: Please register your attendance here to receive connection details

Click here to submit questions

Economic and Policy Research
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Michael Feroli A
(1-212) 834-5523

michael.e.feroli@jpmorgan.com
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA

Fixed Income Strategy

Jay Barry AC
(1-212) 834-4951
john.f.barry@jpmorgan.com
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC

You are receiving this email because it may be of interest to you based on research content you are currently
subscribed to on J.P. Morgan Markets.

Visit J.P. Morgan Markets for more market-leading research and financial solutions across the full trade and
investment lifecycle.

You received this e-mail because the content matches one of your saved preferences.
You can modify your preferences or subscription here.

If you no longer wish to receive these e-mails then click here to unsubscribe www.jpmorganmarkets.com

A history of J.P. Morgan investment recommendations disseminated during the preceding 12 months can be accessed on the Research & Commentary
page of http://www.jpmorganmarkets.com where you can also search by analyst name, sector or financial instrument.

J.P. Morgan Research may, from time to time, write on issuers or securities targeted by economic or financial sanctions imposed or administered by the
governmental authorities of the U.S., EU, UK or other relevant jurisdictions (Sanctioned Securities). Nothing in this report is intended to be read or
construed as encouraging, facilitating, promoting or otherwise approving investment or dealing in such Sanctioned Securities. Clients should be aware of
their own legal and compliance obligations when making investment decisions.

Any digital or crypto assets discussed in this research report are subject to a rapidly changing regulatory landscape. For relevant regulatory advisories on
crypto assets, including bitcoin and ether, please see https://www.jpmorgan.com/disclosures/cryptoasset-disclosure.

The author(s) of this research report may not be licensed to carry on regulated activities in your jurisdiction and, if not licensed, do not hold themselves
out as being able to do so.

Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs): J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“JPMS”) acts as authorized participant for substantially all U.S.-listed ETFs. To the
extent that any ETFs are mentioned in this report, JPMS may earn commissions and transaction-based compensation in connection with the distribution
of those ETF shares and may earn fees for performing other trade-related services, such as securities lending to short sellers of the ETF shares. JPMS
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Flaks, Quinn

Cc: Michael Williams; Caronia, Ignacio D; Smith, Todd L; Sun, Jeff
Subject: Re: Project Osceola -- Questions

Date: Saturday, May 13, 2023 9:08:57 AM

Hey Quinn,

Thanks for the follow up. Sorry, I'm neck deep in the University’s Operating Budget and
Legislative Session.

Can we send this information on Monday?
Thanks.
Sent from my iPhone

On May 12, 2023, at 4:14 PM, Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
wrote:

Team — just following up on below.

In addition to these two questions, have a few others we would appreciate some
guidance on:

e What will be the go-forward impact of Learfield restructuring issues on model
and revenue to FSU?

¢ Do you have the historical split of different components of the conference
distributions by sub-category?
o Could you also please confirm if conference distribution is conference
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
a. Any amount of guidance will be appreciated
b. At some point, investors will likely want some sort of flash update with
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

guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

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

To: Ross Cobb
Subject: Fwd: Project Osceola -- Questions
Date: Saturday, May 13, 2023 8:46:33 AM

Can you answer number 2.
I have 1 from alford
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Flaks, Quinn" <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Date: May 12, 2023 at 4:14:40 PM EDT

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Cc: "Caronia, Ignacio D" <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, "Smith, Todd L"
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>, "Sun, Jeff" <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola -- Questions

Team — just following up on below.

In addition to these two questions, have a few others we would appreciate some
guidance on:

o What will be the go-forward impact of Learfield restructuring issues on model
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

To: Michael Alford

Subject: Fwd: Project Osceola -- Questions
Date: Friday, May 12, 2023 6:40:45 PM
See below.

Not sure how you want us to answer number 1.
We have number 2.

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
messages. [f you are not the intended recipient, please delete this message and
notify the sender immediately. Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.
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From: Kyle Clark
To: Katie Perkins
Subject: FW: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - March 2023
Date: Friday, April 21, 2023 11:16:00 AM
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
guestions.
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

To: 'Kyle Clark' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; '"Marla A Vickers' <Marla.Vickers@fsu.edu>
Cc: 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Legacy Hall Commitment Report - November 2022

Good morning all,

We noticed that the recent ||| GGG 2 ot included in the outstanding

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

To: Menell, Eric
Subject: Re: Zoom in AM
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 8:43:14 PM

Haha. Great minds...

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 29, 2023, at 8:39 PM, Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Ok - I will send a planner for 930am

Eric Menell

J.P. Morgan | Managing Director

(0) 212.622.4217

(JPM ¢) 917.407.9759 (c) 917.817.6394

From: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>

Date: Wednesday, Mar 29, 2023 at 5:35 PM

To: Menell, Eric (CIB, USA) <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>, 'Kyle Clark
(kyle.clark@fsu.edu)' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: Re: Zoom in AM

Between 9-10 yes.
Get Outlook for i0S

From: Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 8:25:21 PM

To: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>; 'Kyle Clark
(kyle.clark@fsu.edu)' <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; 'Michael Williams' <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: Zoom in AM

Hi guys - have 20 mins in the morning for a quick zoom?

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

Cc: Menell, Eric; Michael Williams

Subject: Re: Zoom in AM

Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 8:39:58 PM

I can juggle and make 9:30 work if that’s ok?
Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 29, 2023, at 8:35 PM, Peter Collins
<PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com> wrote:

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

To: Caronia, Ignacio D

Cc: Michael Williams; Flaks, Quinn; Smith, Todd L; Sun, Jeff
Subject: Re: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough
Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 5:08:09 PM

I’ve asked our team to send you what we can tonight/ tomorrow.

Although the formats will be different hopefully the team will see we are working diligently
on the request.

Thanks.
Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 21, 2023, at 3:55 PM, Caronia, Ignacio D
<ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Hi Michael,

Do you think we can commit with investors to send this information by tomorrow
morning? They are going to their respective Investment Committees shortly and they
need the information asap ahead of that.

Thanks,
Nacho

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 8:38 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd
L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA)
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough

Quinn,

I’'m working with Athletics and- on the Sixth Street and Arctos follow up
guestions. | hope to have responses to you soon but it won’t be by today.

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
Sent: Monday, March 20, 2023 4:44 PM

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

Hi Michael —

Just tried your office line. We wanted to check in to see if you've heard back from
Athletics on the opex details.

We are scheduled to speak with Sixth Street tomorrow, and want to ensure we have
this squared away prior to the call or we will have to postpone.

Thanks!
Quinn

Quinn Flaks
J.P. Morgan Media and Communications Investment Banking

0: (212) 622-1820 | M: (646) 279-1028 | guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com

From: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, March 17, 2023 10:33 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA)
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn

(CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough

Perfect — thanks so much!

Have a great weekend and talk soon!

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media &
Communications | J.P. Morgan

383 Madison Avenue, 26" Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | IPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com
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From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Friday, March 17, 2023 9:57 AM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA)
<jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn
(CIB IBC, USA) <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough

Jeff / Todd,

| sent the file to Athletics and asked for them to add some notes for each line item.
Their CFO is out this week but he should be able to work on this first thing Monday.

Regards,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, March 17, 2023 9:25 AM

To: Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough

Morning Michael,

If easier for you to type out some notes in the excel for each line item that works for us
as well.

Appreciate your help!
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

From: Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 1:05 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd
L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: Project Osceola - Historical Opex Walkthrough

Hi Michael,

Hope all is well. When convenient, could you let us know if you have some time
tomorrow or Monday to walk through the historical opex file attached? Sixth Street
asked us about the types of expenses within each line and their fixed / variable
designation.

Best,
Jeff

Jeffrey Sun | Media & Communications Investment Banking | J.P. Morgan
383 Madison Ave, 26" Floor, New York, NY 10179 | Office: (212) 622-7485 | JPM Mobile:
(917) 731-3371 | Mobile: (646) 509-6189 | jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com

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
Subject: Fwd: 10am ET Today - JPM Conference Call with Senior Bank Research Analyst on Regional Bank Views / Fed Announcement

Date:

A h
Attac

Monday, March 13, 2023 9:44:15 AM
JPM U S Banks Bold Move 2023-03-13 4358008.pdf

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Date: March 13, 2023 at 9:39:27 AM EDT

To: "Meyer, Mark W" <mark.w.meyer@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: FW: 10am ET Today - JPM Conference Call with Senior Bank Research Analyst on
Regional Bank Views / Fed Announcement

1. Feel free to join the call this morning covering the recent events in the market.

Mark Meyer | Executive Director | 407.435.6952

From: Noble, Brendan (CIB S&M, USA) <brendan.noble@jpmorgan.com>

Date: Monday, Mar 13, 2023 at 8:03 AM

Cc: Noble, Brendan (CIB S&M, USA) <brendan.noble(@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: 10am ET Today - JPM Conference Call with Senior Bank Research Analyst on Regional Bank Views / Fed
Announcement

Good morning —

A lot to digest over the past 72hrs, and as expected, the market reaction has been an immediate flight to quality
and wiping off any more Fed hikes in the near term. The Fed debate is certainly becoming more and more
interesting — with a few banks already pulling back their call for a hike next week. However, JPMorgan’s view, at
the moment, is that the Fed continues on with their hiking path, with 25bps at the next meeting to combat a still
growing inflation concern. Our research team’s core view is that in lieu of addressing these so-far isolated
incidents of financial stress through easing policy rates, they instead move forward with different tools to directly
address the issue / sector at hand —thus far by initiating it’s new Bank Term Funding Program (see JPM research
writeup from last night at the bottom of this note). Regardless, the market is still quite jittery this morning with
the idea of financial sector stress returning to the headlines, and markets have quickly moved in lockstep with that
sentiment (10Y UST now back below 3.50%).

This morning, at 10am EST, our senior US bank credit analyst, Kabir Caprihan, will be hosting a Zoom webinar to
provide perspectives around developments in the banking system and recent Fed actions. Attached is his write-up
published this morning on the topics. We invite you to register for this call by clicking the following link (note you
must pre-register). https://openexc.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_MFQ5NkucSNGS2TNjly-Cvw

Feel free to reach out with any questions as we make our way through what will undoubtedly be a bumpy week.

Brendan
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J P M North America Credit Research
ol o Organ 13 March 2023

U.S. Banks

Bold Moves from Regulators, and Now We Wait

e We began writing this note with several scenarios based on all the outcome we US Credit Research
could have had overnight. While it was interesting discussing those scenarios
with some of you over the weekend, we are fortunate that the Monday mayhem
has been avoided, but the question remains whether the broader, structural issue
has been fixed.

Kabir Caprihan, CFA AC
(1-212) 834-5613
kabir.x.caprihan@jpmorgan.com
Nikita Dyatlov

. . 0 (1-212) 272-4014
e We are holding a zoom webinar at 10am on Monday, March 13" to answer nikita dyatiov@jpmorgan.com

questions and give additional perspectives. Please use the following link to J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
register.

e To recap, both Silicon Valley Bank and Signature Bank were placed under
FDIC receivership, all depositors (insured and uninsured) will be made whole
and have access to funds on Monday. Any losses borne by the FDIC on the
deposit side will be funded through the Deposit Insurance Fund and ultimately
recouped through higher assessment fees for the system.

e The Federal Reserve also announced the Bank Term Funding Program (BTFP),
a liquidity facility that accepts eligible collateral at par value vs market value
and the rate will be 1yr OIS +10bp. The facility will be funded with $25bn by
the Treasury ESF fund, and the other unknown is how much leverage is the Fed
willing to put on the $25bn. Most facilities that were put in place during COVID
were leveraged 10x — so call this $250bn, but it is notable the Federal Reserve
did not announce a size, so they could lever it 20x, if they choose. In our note
published on Friday, we highlighted that this was a structural issue for regional
banks driven by QT, and in just a single program, the Fed could basically
reverse 50% of QT (Federal balance sheet is down about $500bn from a year

ago).

e Is this enough? It sends a signal, provides liquidity, but will uninsured, large
depositors at small regional banks remain due to the announcement of SIVB and
SBNY, or was the angst over the last 48hrs enough that money would move to
the larger regional and GSIBs? We expect continued deposit flow out of the
regionals, but the key will be the pace.

o It has become pretty evident that regulation at smaller regional banks will
need to become more stringent. The inability to resolve SIVB and SBNY
without making a statement about deposit holders is evident that bridge bank
resolution is not likely. Acquirers are not willing to buy banks in resolution, and
while depositors are not suffering any loss, they are indirectly being
compensated upfront by the rest of the banking sector. We would hope this
experience would imply a quick decision on regional bank TLAC and it
should be expanded towards category 4 and other firms. Furthermore,
smaller banks will also likely be subject to LCR and other liquidity rules like
GSIBs, which should imply continued issuance.

e In this report we address the recent announcement, prospect of all-encompassing
deposit insurance, impact on capital if HTM marks are realized, insured vs
uninsured deposits, and the capacity of GSIBs to absorb deposits.

See page 9 for analyst certification and important disclosures.

J.P. Morgan does and seeks to do business with companies covered in its research reports. As a result, investors should be aware that the
firm may have a conflict of interest that could affect the objectivity of this report. Investors should consider this report as only a single factor in
making their investment decision.

www.jpmorganmarkets.com




https://markets.jpmorgan.com/research/email/-6flqgta/hq_E-6BsUiRMFyXzQ7P4aw/GPS-4356565-0

https://secureweb.jpmchase.net/readonly/https:/openexc.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_MFQ5NkucSNGS2TNjIy-Cvw



Kabir Caprihan, CFA
(1-212) 834-5613
kabir.x.caprihan@jpmorgan.com

North America Credit Research
13 March 2023 J.P Morgan

Recent Announcement

In a joint statement issued by the Federal Reserve, Department of Treasury, and
FDIC released yesterday evening (click here), depositors at Silicon Valley Bank will
have access to all of their balances today, and no losses will be incurred by the U.S.
taxpayer. Furthermore, SIVB’s management has been removed, shareholders and
“certain” unsecured bondholders are to be wiped out, and any losses realized by the
Deposit Insurance Fund (DIF) to cover uninsured depositors would be recouped by a
“special assessment” on U.S. banking industry. Similar action was taken on
Signature Bank, as the NY State Department of Financial Services shut down the
bank and placed it under FDIC receivership, also mentioning that all depositors will
be covered (click here).

Notably, the Federal Reserve in a separate announcement (click here) created a new
funding facility called the Bank Term Funding Program (BTFP), a mechanism
designed to provide additional liquidity to any FDIC insured depository institutions
in the form of one year advances. Eligible collateral generally includes U.S.
Treasuries, mortgage-backed securities, agency debt, and other qualifying assets,
which will be valued at par. BTFP advances can be borrowed until at least March 11,
2024 and there is no prepayment penalty. The rate for BTFP advances is the one-year
overnight index swap rate plus 10bp. Other relevant qualifying assets that are eligible
as collateral for advances are listed in Table 1 and must have been owned as of
March 12, 2023 (click here for the full list).

The BTFP program is a meaningful liquidity backstop for a number of U.S. regional
banks with large HTM marks in their securities portfolio compared to capital. As
shown in Table 3, FRC, TFC, SCHW, SIVB, and USB had HTM marks greater than
or equal to 25% of their CET1 capital as of YE22 among U.S. regional banks.

Table 1: BTFP Eligible Collateral

Eligible Collateral for Advances as per 12 CFR 201.108(b)

U.S. Treasuries

Federal Intermediate Credit Bank debentures;

Federal Home Loan Bank notes and bonds;

Federal Land Bank bonds;

Bank for Cooperative debentures;

Federal National Mortgage Association notes, debentures and guaranteed certificates of participation;
Obligations of or fully guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association;

Merchant Marine bonds;

© O N o o B~ W N -

Export-Import Bank notes and guaranteed participation certificates;
Farmers Home Administration insured notes;

—_
o

Notes fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Small Business Administration;

-
-

12 Federal Housing Administration debentures;

13 Tennessee Valley Authority bonds and notes;

14  Commodity Credit Corporation certificates of interest in a price-support loan pool;

15 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation notes, debentures, and guaranteed certificates of participation;

16 U.S.Postal Service obligations.

Source: U.S. Government Publishing Office, J.P. Morgan.



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2022-title12-vol2/pdf/CFR-2022-title12-vol2-sec201-108.pdf

https://www.federalreserve.gov/newsevents/pressreleases/monetary20230312a.htm

https://www.fdic.gov/news/press-releases/2023/pr23018.html
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HTM Marks Relative to Capital

This is hot button topic; we don’t think it is very valid especially if banks have a
stable and robust deposit base. That said, we have been asked the question and hence,
the impact to capital would be meaningful for several issuers. Table 2 lists the pro-
forma CET1 ratios for such a scenario and compares it to their CET1 ratio
requirement as of 4Q’22. Within the large regional bank cohort, USB would
experience the greatest decline in its CET1 ratio, considering the mark in its HTM
securities portfolio was 26% of its CET1 capital as of YE22. Among GSIBs, the
impact on pro-forma CET1 ratios would be most significant for BAC and WFC, as
their HTM marks stood at 60% and 31% of their CET1 capital, respectively.

Table 2: PF CET1 Capital for HTM Losses vs Requirement

. PF CET1 .
Ticker CET1Ratio  patio (inc Delta Required Buffer
(YE22) o CET1 Ratio
SIVB 12.1% 1.3% 13.3% 7.0% 8.3%
BAC 11.2% 45% 6.8% 10.4% 5.9%
WFC 10.6% 7.3% 3.3% 9.2% 1.9%
c 12.2% 10.1% 2.1% 11.5% 1.4%
BK 11.2% 7.3% 3.8% 8.5% 1.2%
FRC 9.2% 6.0% 3.4% 7.0% 1.0%
USB 8.4% 6.2% 2.2% 7.0% 0.8%
STT 13.6% 7.2% 6.3% 8.0% 0.8%
MS 15.3% 13.0% 2.4% 13.3% 0.3%
TFC 9.0% 6.7% 2.3% 7.0% 0.3%
HBAN 9.4% 7.7% 1.6% 7.8% 0.1%
MTB 10.4% 9.7% 0.8% 9.2% 0.5%
PNC 9.1% 8.0% A1.4% 7.4% 0.6%
ASB 9.4% 7.6% A.7% 7.0% 06%
Gs 14.4% 14.2% 0.2% 13.3% 0.9%
VLY 9.0% 8.0% 1.0% 7.0% 1.0%
NTRS 10.8% 8.4% 2.5% 7.0% 1.4%
FCNCA 10.1% 8.4% A.7% 7.0% 1.4%
CFG 10.0% 9.6% 0.4% 7.9% 1.7%
KEY 9.1% 8.7% 0.4% 7.0% 1.7%
ALLY 9.3% 9.2% 0.1% 7.0% 22%
FITB 9.3% 9.3% 0.0% 7.0% 23%
RF 9.6% 9.6% 0.0% 7.0% 2.6%
SBNY 10.4% 9.6% 0.8% 7.0% 2.6%
SNV 9.6% 9.6% 0.0% 7.0% 2.6%
ZION 9.7% 9.8% 0.2% 7.0% 28%
CMA 10.0% 10.0% 0.0% 7.0% 3.0%
BKU 11.0% 11.0% 0.0% 7.0% 40%
SCHW 219% 11.8% 10.1% 7.0% 48%
COF 12.5% 12.5% 0.0% 7.6% 49%
BPOP 16.4% 16.1% 0.3% 7.0% 9.1%

Source: Company filings, S&P Capital 1Q, J.P. Morgan. Note: regulatory minimum CET1 ratio requirement as of 4Q'22.
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Table 3: Securities Marks, Deposit Change, FHLB Funding, and CRE Exposure

AFS .
Ticker AFSI\';::EOHO 5?:36 PoHr;rfhonIio ChsEszi;\ce Mca El.(r 1% H"./I.;MC II\EII'?{ ‘ C?\Zp:iige I::I.IL;BS:?\?:T Ofvsfr-l:)?cl:lsp i(:d, ";:leolr;)ceasI:isc
YE21 Mark Capital Capital 2Q'22 ($bn)  YE21 ($bn)  multi-family, $bn) Loans

HBAN 84% -16% 87% -14% 34% 17% 25 1.7 11.6 10%
ALLY 85% -15% 83% -20% 36% 1% 11.9 0.0 1.7 1%
FITB 89% -14% 100% 0% 38% 0% 25 4.3 8.8 %
SNV 86% -13% 32% 0% 0.2 39 12.2 28%
VLY 88% -13% 87% -13% 4% 12% 38 -0.5 17.3 37%
TFC 85% -13% 83% 7% 31% 25% -11.3 28.8 309 9%
CMA 86% -13% 38% 0% 4.4 32 74 14%
KEY 86% -13% 93% 9% 44% 4% -3.3 6.0 8.9 %
COF 88% -12% 23% 0% 25.1 0.0 19.5 6%
RF 89% -12% 94% -12% 28% 0% 6.5 0.0 78 8%
ZION 88% 1% 101% 1% 25% 2% -14 741 11.9 21%
usB 90% 1% 88% -12% 21% 26% NA 3.3 308 8%
FRC 88% -11% 83% -22% 3% 34% 10.8 10.3 14.1 8%
SBNY 87% -10% 90% 9% 29% 8% -15.5 8.6 13.6 18%
PNC 91% -10% 95% -12% 1% 12% -4.5 321 256 8%
FCNCA 90% -10% 86% -13% 1% 16% 0.1 36 12.1 17%
CFG 91% 9% 92% -10% 13% 4% 1.8 84 19.9 13%
BPOP 91% 9% 99% 2% 31% 2% 4.1 0.2 5.3 20%
ASB 91% -8% 86% -19% 8% 18% 1.1 2.7 55 19%
SIVB 91% -8% 83% -16% 18% 111% -14.8 15.0 26 4%
WFC 93% -8% 86% -14% 6% 31% -41.2 27.0 96.6 10%
SCHW 92% 7% 92% 40% 46% -75.3 0.0 0.0 0%
BK 93% 1% 89% -11% 33% 34% -46.8 0.0 38 6%
MTB 96% 7% 91% -10% 3% % 6.8 0.0 293 22%
BKU 93% 1% 99% -8% 24% 0% -1.0 35 47 19%
MS 94% 6% 86% -14% 8% 15% 9.5 0.0 13.7 6%
GS 93% 5% 97% 6% 4% 1% 4.7 0.0 10.9 5%
NTRS 96% -4% 91% -8% 1% 23% 9.7 0.0 35 9%
BAC 98% -3% 83% -16% 3% 60% -54.0 0.4 48.0 5%
STT 97% -3% 90% -10% 9% 47% 6.4 0.0 20 %
C 98% 2% 91% 9% 4% 17% 441 14.0 17.4 4%

Source: Company filings, S&P Capital IQ, J.P. Morgan estimates.
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The Uninsured vs Insured Debate?

Memorandum Item 2 under the Schedule RC-O in the call report was the most
searched item on the internet this weekend. Yes, you guessed it, “estimated
amount of uninsured deposits™, a line item that we have not looked up in 23 years
of covering banks became our friend and foe. Honestly, we do not have any context
for the right level and mix, and we know that 90% is bad and 10% sounds great. But
what about in the middle? Is 62% at CMA high and thus should we prefer Regions at
37%? We think the answer is a little more nuanced since a bank like CMA is more
corporate focused and understandably has higher deposit balances. The list below is
the most requested piece of information from PMs and traders. Institutions with
uninsured deposits above 60% of their total deposit base include SBNY, SIVB, FRC,
and CMA. Uninsured deposits as a percentage of total deposits on average was 43%
for GSIBs, 46% for large regional banks, and 60% for small regionals. The ratio was
lowest for consumer finance companies, such as ALLY, SYF, and DFS, which stood
at 19% on average.

Table 4: Estimated Uninsured Deposits at Selected U.S. Banks

Ticker Bank Level Name Uninsured Deposits Total Deposits % Total

($mn) ($mn) Deposits
SBNY Signature Bank 79,459 88,613 90%
SIVB Silicon Valley Bank 151,592 175,378 86%
FRC First Republic Bank 119,471 176,437 68%
CMA Comerica Bank 45,492 73,391 62%
WAL Western Alliance Bank 31,089 53,918 58%
ZION Zions Bancorporation, National Association 37,634 71,652 53%
WFC Wells Fargo Bank, National Association 721,102 1,420,842 51%
SNV Synovus Bank 25,078 49,415 51%
USB U.S. Bank National Association 234,336 464,821 50%
MTB Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 79,357 165,981 48%
GS Goldman Sachs Bank USA 167,986 362,009 46%
PNC PNC Bank, National Association 200,039 441,984 45%
COF Capital One, National Association 158,743 355,084 45%
TFC Truist Bank 189,579 424,773 45%
BAC Bank of America, National Association 909,261 2,042,255 45%
JPM JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 1,057,867 2,440,722 43%
C Citibank, N.A. 598,195 1,399,631 43%
RF Regions Bank 49,317 133,792 37%
MS Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A. 54,005 177,356 30%
ALLY Ally Bank 18,881 156,058 12%
SYF Synchrony Bank 8,227 74,271 11%
DFS Discover Bank 8,939 94,876 9%

Source: FFEIC, Company filings, S&P Capital IQ, J.P. Morgan .Note: data as of YE22.
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Deposit Insurance Fund Overview

There was a lot of discussion over the weekend whether the FDIC will guarantee all
deposits to prevent a run on the bank. While they did not guarantee the deposits, they
did make them whole for the two-bank failures, and losses will be borne by the DIF
and a special assessment on the banks. The DIF, which also resolves failing banks. It
is primarily funded by the FDIC through assessment fees on banks and interest
earned from investments in U.S. government obligations. As of late December 2022,
the DIF balance stood at $128bn, representing a 1.3% reserve ratio to ~$10tn of total
insured deposits, as shown in Table 5. Uninsured deposits of ~§7tn accounted for
43% of total domestic U.S. deposits, and U.S. GSIBs alone accounted for ~$3.5tn or
46% of total estimated uninsured deposits as of YE22. Assuming a reserve ratio of
about 2%, it would translate to a $154bn backstop, the question is whether that is
enough for uninsured deposits. The answer obviously depends upon the asset side of
the balance sheet that is placed under receivership, SVB has a relatively clean
balance sheet; hence, losses will be low. Conversely, losses to the fund from
IndyMac , which cost the fund over $12.3bn or nearly ~50% of its asset base.
Whether the FDIC creates a new fund for uninsured depositors or increases the limit,
they have already shown the willingness to pass on the costs to the banking system
through higher assessment fees. We would expect these fees to increase going
forward as the FDIC looks to increase the reserve ratio and recoup any losses from
SVB and SBNY.

Table 5: DIF Balance Relative to Insured and Uninsured Deposits

($ mn) Estimates
Date  DIF Balance Insured Deposits DD‘;’:::I‘:: %’:32:;‘:" o
219 $110.347 $7,824,654 13,262,843 5438180 108,764
320 113,206 8,181,082 14,351,881 6170799 123416
620 114,651 8,840,599 15,563,637 6723038 134461
920 116434 8,926,807 15,716,702 6780895 135798
1200 117,897 9,128,608 16,339,026 7210418 144208
321 119,362 9,519,014 16,980,411 7461397 149,228
621 120547 9,493,550 17,203,426 7700876 154,198
921 121935 9,588,373 17,677,035 8088662 161,773
1221 123441 0,743,587 18,237,199 8493612 169,872
322 123,039 9,972,566 18,426,384 8453818 169,076
6122 124458 9,912,197 18,127,766 8215560 164311
922 125457 9,925,602 17,941,721 8016119 160,322
1222 128218 10,067,996 17,778,227 7710231 154,205

Source: FDIC, J.P. Morgan.
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Can the BTFP Fund the Uninsured
Deposit Outflow?

In Table 6, we compare the size of estimated uninsured deposits for a number of
GSIBs and large regional banks to their available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities portfolios at cost. Except for MS, ALLY, and DFS, the remainder of banks
in the table below have estimated uninsured deposits greater than the sum of their
HTM and AFS securities portfolios as of YE22.

The table below compares the size of estimated uninsured deposits for a number of
GSIBs and large regional banks to their available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities portfolios at cost. Note that we have not included other forms of liquidity
available include the FHLB fund. We do believe that is a strong and reliable source
of liquidity but obviously hard to estimate given the lack of disclosure on the single-
family loan book or assets that can be pledged to the FHLB. So, with that caveat, we
do acknowledge our numbers are on the low side. Given the rapid decline in SIVB
and SBNY, both of which that touted their liquidity days prior to their receivership,
we think the market will focus on banks identifiable liquidity.

Table 6: Uninsured Deposits and Securities Portfolios by Issuer

Ticker Uninsured Sel-tlzzlrviltie AF.S.
($mn) Deposits s S::r‘:;::;s
Portfolio
BAC 909,261 632,863 225,483
WFC 721,102 297,144 121,731
C 598,195 268,983 251,412
USB 234,336 88,740 81,450
PNC 200,039 95,183 48,710
TFC 189,579 57,713 84,056
GS 167,986 51,438 52,655
COF 158,743 NA 87,048
SIVB 151,592 91,327 28,602
FRC 119,471 28,359 3,817
SBNY 79,459 7,780 21,071
MTB 79,357 13,532 11,193
MS 54,005 75,668 89,773
RF 49,317 801 31,365
CMA 45,492 NA 22,045
ZION 37,634 11,125 13,538
WAL 31,089 1,289 7,973
SNV 25,078 NA 11,273
ALLY 18,881 1,062 34,877
DFS 8,939 221 12,167
SYF 8,227 NA 5,001

Source: J.P. Morgan estimates, Company data. Note: HTM and AFS securities
portfolios listed at cost.
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How much deposit capacity can GSIBs
and large regional banks absorb?

When analyzing the ability for GSIBs and super regionals to absorb deposits, the
question is of practicality and capacity. We know that during COVID and the PPP
program, banks onboarded several clients in an expedited manner, whether they are
able to the same during this crisis is one that is beyond the scope of our analysis.
What we can look at is capital ratios and the capacity of GSIBs to add leverage
assets. From that standpoint, the recent decline in leverage asset for GSIBs gives
them the capacity, as reflected in Table 7, to add more assets.

Our analysis is quite simple, we took the binding constraint SLR or Tier 1 leverage
and calculated capacity. The first question that pops up is why SLR and CET1 given
that banks are CET1 constrained. Note that we just assumed that if the banks were
taking in deposits, they could just park the assets in t-bills or treasuries which would
not have an impact on CET]1 capital but only leverage. From that standpoint, the
GSIBs have plenty of capacity to add assets, over $1.5tn. There is a flaw in our math
since we did not consider the impact on GSIB scores from becoming larger and a
subsequent impact on GSIB surcharges. That said, our capacity number is on the low
end since we did not include WFC (asset cap constraint) and a GSIB that we do not
cover. Hence, this overall market capacity at $1.5tn is a very conservative estimate.

Finally, if leverage assets at GSIBs increase materially, then issuance needs will go
up for the GSIBs. We don’t expect a material jump since it will obviously be very

path dependent.

Table 7: Asset Intake Capacity Among GSIBs and Large Regionals

($bn) Malzt:::et Binding Constraint
WFC 827 SLR
COF 795 T1 Leverage
BAC 645 SLR
TFC 604 T1 Leverage
USB 602 T1 Leverage
PNC 584 T1 Leverage
C 390 SLR
GS 304 SLR
MS 144 SLR
BK 121 SLR
NTRS 113 T1 Leverage
STT 93 SLR

Source: Company filings, S&P Capital IQ, J.P. Morgan.
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Fed Brings Out Another Toolkit

By Michael Feroli

Click here for the full Note and disclaimers

This evening, the Fed took two steps to staunch any contagion from the troubles of Silicon Valley
Bank seeping into other insured depository institutions. First, it teamed up with Treasury and FDIC
to announce that all depositors of Silicon Valley Bank and Signature Bank would be made whole
(this “systemic risk exception” to also protect uninsured depositors needs to be recommended by
the FDIC and Federal Reserve Board and approved by the Treasury Secretary in consultation with
the President). Second, it created a new facility—the Bank Term Funding Program (BTFP)—to
provide an additional source of liquidity to the covered group. The BTFP will provide funding with
recourse up to one-year secured by Treasuries, agencies, and agency MBS at a rate of 1-year
OIS+10bp, with no haircuts or fees. The Treasury is using the Exchange Stabilization Fund (ESF)
to provide $25 billion of credit protection to the Fed in the unlikely event the program loses money
for the Fed. While the terms of the BTFP are generous, truly funding-stressed institutions with
good collateral already had several sources of reasonably priced access to Fed liquidity. So, it
looks like instilling confidence and highlighting the Fed’s resolve are major aims of this program.

At first glance, it may seem a bit incongruous that the Fed’s been laboring to tighten financial
conditions, and then at the first hint of stress, it pulls out the stops to prevent that from
metastasizing further. Appearances aside, we are sympathetic to the idea that this might be a
good case of Bernanke’s dictum to “use the right tool for the job.” While the Fed wants tighter
financial conditions to restrain aggregate demand, they don’t want that to occur in a non-linear
fashion that can quickly spiral out of control, perhaps to the detriment of the taxpayer. And while
they want credit to become more expensive, they shouldn’t want creditworthy borrowers to be shut
out at any price. If they indeed have used the right tool to address financial contagion risks (time
will tell), then they can also use the right tool to continue to address inflation risks—higher interest
rates. So, we continue to look for a 25bp hike at next week’s meeting. Even before the problems
flared up in the banking sector, we thought a 50bp move would be ill-advised, and we still think
that is the case.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams
Subject: Read: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Date: Wednesday, March 8, 2023 2:47:49 AM

Your message
To: Smith, Todd L; Flaks, Quinn; Kyle Clark; Michael Williams
Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D; Sun, Jeff
Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Sent: 2/21/2023 3:45 PM
was read on 2/21/2023 7:35 PM.
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Stephen Ponder

Cc: Michael Williams; Michael Alford

Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 11:56:00 AM

Michael Williams can you please call Stephen today.

Thanks.

From: Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 11:56 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>
Subject: Re: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups

Happy to help answer but would like to have a convo about the questions.

Stephen Ponder
President & CEO
Seminole Boosters

FSU

Cell 662-832-7613
Direct 850-644-4431

On Feb 21, 2023, at 11:54 AM, Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu> wrote:

Good morning,

We are continuing to receive follow up from JP Morgan on this request. We will
assume you all agree with their materials should we not hear back today.

We understand how busy you both are. Just need to advance the process. They have
been waiting to post the documents until FSU signed off.

Thanks.

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 11:59 AM

To: Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>; Stephen Ponder
<Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>

Cc: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
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Michael / Stephen,

I’'m following up on the below request for information. JP Morgan reached out again
this morning wanting approval to upload the attached documents. Please let me know
if you're okay with them sharing.

Thank You,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

<image001.jpg>

From: Michael Williams

Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2023 11:47 AM

To: Michael Alford <Michael. Alford @fsu.edu>; Stephen Ponder
<Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>

Cc: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups

Michael / Stephen,
We received the below follow up request from Sixth Street, through JP Morgan:

1. They plan to post the attached files to the VDR and want our signed-off. Please
let me know if you approve.

N

w

Thank you,
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

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 10:30 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups

Kyle and Michael —

Thank you for all of your time and work on the diligence requests to date. There were
some follow-ups that came out of our call yesterday, and we have put together the
attached files (referenced in-line below in red) to begin to address some of the follow-
ups:

4. Build of total contributions between NIL, Restricted, and Unrestricted Attached
‘Historical and Projected Contributions by Type’

5. Upload debt agreements to the VDR Attached ‘2015 FSU Bonds’
6. Detailed opex build Attached ‘Historical Opex Detail’

We plan to post these files to the VDR. Can you kindly let us know if you are signed-off
on this approach?

In addition to the above, they have also requested the following items which we would
greatly appreciate your help in compiling:

7. Remaining debt documents for the 2 Athletic Dept Loans and for the

5. Average sce o
1. They want to diligence how much, on average, ||| GGG
e
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this can just be 2 verbal overview.

_While interesting and can provide a lens into donor type, |
think a quick soundbite/overview suffices — we’ll have more detailed
historicals to pull and don’t want to burn time here

Please let us know if any questions on the above, and thanks again for all of your help!

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

To: Michael Williams; Michael Alford; Stephen Ponder
Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 11:54:00 AM

Good morning,

We are continuing to receive follow up from JP Morgan on this request. We will assume you all
agree with their materials should we not hear back today.

We understand how busy you both are. Just need to advance the process. They have been waiting
to post the documents until FSU signed off.

Thanks.

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 11:59 AM

To: Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>; Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>
Cc: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups

Michael / Stephen,

I’'m following up on the below request for information. JP Morgan reached out again this morning
wanting approval to upload the attached documents. Please let me know if you're okay with them
sharing.

Thank You,

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Michael Williams

Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2023 11:47 AM

To: Michael Alford <Michael.Alford @fsu.edu>; Stephen Ponder <Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>
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

1. They plan to post the attached files to the VDR and want our signed-off. Please let me know if
you approve.

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

Kyle and Michael -

Thank you for all of your time and work on the diligence requests to date. There were some follow-
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ups that came out of our call yesterday, and we have put together the attached files (referenced in-
line below in red) to begin to address some of the follow-ups:

4. Build of total contributions between NIL, Restricted, and Unrestricted Attached ‘Historical
and Projected Contributions by Type’

5. Upload debt agreements to the VDR Attached ‘2015 FSU Bonds’
6. Detailed opex build Attached ‘Historical Opex Detail’

We plan to post these files to the VDR. Can you kindly let us know if you are signed-off on this
approach?

In addition to the above, they have also requested the following items which we would greatly
appreciate your help in compiling:

7. Remaining debt documents for the 2 Athletic Dept Loans and for the Collegetown Debt

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
Subject: Read: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Date: Wednesday, March 8, 2023 2:47:46 AM

Your message
To: Michael Alford; Stephen Ponder
Cc: Kyle Clark; Michael Williams
Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Sent: 2/20/2023 11:59 AM
was read on 2/21/2023 11:52 AM.


mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CCF6D61D92BE4687816765186FA33B4D-CLARK, KYLE
mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=12028F0894544199BBC40A0CAE066C46-WILLIAMS, M

From: Kyle Clark

To: Smith, Todd L; Flaks, Quinn; Michael Williams
Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D; Sun, Jeff

Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups
Date: Monday, February 20, 2023 1:14:00 PM

We are following up with Athletics and the Boosters again. Stand by.

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 11:53 AM

To: Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola | Sixth Street Follow-Ups

Hi Kyle and Michael,
Hope you had a great weekend! | know some of the follow ups are still in process, but do you think

you can get approval to upload the docs we sent over? It’s ok to upload these in chunks, but
definitely want to keep up momentum.

Thanks,
Todd

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media &
Communications | J.P. Morgan

383 Madison Avenue, 26 Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | JPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

From: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Date: Wednesday, Feb 15, 2023 at 10:29 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA)
<t.smith@jpmorgan.com>, Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
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

e Build of total contributions between NIL, Restricted, and Unrestricted Attached ‘Historical
and Projected Contributions by Type’

e Upload debt agreements to the VDR Attached ‘2015 FSU Bonds’
e Detailed opex build Attached ‘Historical Opex Detail’

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

« Remaining debt documents for the 2 Athletic Dept Loan < GGG

|

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
Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions
Date: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 10:38:00 AM

would ask Dustin. [

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 10:36 AM
To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Project Osceola Questions

How would you respond to the below question?

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 10:34 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn
<guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Got it — was the first one. In the model it was rounded to $2 — my confusion!

So quick follow up question. Does the- technically own the stadium?_

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media &
Communications | J.P. Morgan

383 Madison Avenue, 26t Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | IPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 10:32 AM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)
<guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Todd,
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I’m not sure what rent you are referring too, so I'll explain both scenarios.

Let me know if this doesn’t answer your question.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 8:41 AM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Michael,

Thanks agan for al your help vesterdoy. I
ey

forget.

Appreciate your help as always,
Todd
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Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media & Communications |

383 Madison Avenue, 26t Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | JPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Date: Monday, Feb 13, 2023 at 4:17 PM
To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

J.P. Morgan

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>, Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)

<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>, Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

See Attachment.

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>
Sent: Monday, February 13, 2023 3:36 PM
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

Thanks Michael!

Do you have the historical season ticket renewal rates as well?

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

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2023 12:41 PM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>
Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Todd,

As a follow up to this morning’s meeting, I- below additional information on the-
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- agreements and attached the historical Football ticket information.

Michael

Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351




From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 5:36 PM

To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>; Flaks, Quinn <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>;
Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Stephen Ponder
<Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford <Michael.Alford@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Thanks Michael,

| can be flexible to everyone’s schedule. Preference for the AM so we have time to incorporate and
prepare ahead of Tuesday.

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

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 5:25 PM

To: Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA) <quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC,
USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Tatu Tiililae
<Tatu@NVGT.com>; Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Stephen Ponder
<Stephen.Ponder@fsu.edu>; Michael Alford <Michael. Alford@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Project Osceola Questions

Quinn,
I’'m available Monday morning to discuss. | think it would be helpful to have someone from the
Boosters participate as well. | copied VP Alford and Stephen Ponder, to see if they want to join the

conversation.

Regards,

Michael
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Michael Williams, CPA
Associate Vice President
Florida State University
850.644.7351

From: Flaks, Quinn <guinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 4:35 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>;
Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>; Tatu Tiillae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Charles Rolston
<CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Subject: Project Osceola Questions

Hi Kyle and Michael —

On Project Osceola, we are speaking with Sixth Street on Tuesday to walk through the model and
assumptions in greater detail. Below we’ve laid out a few questions for which we’d greatly
appreciate your input. Please let us know if there is anything below you are unable to provide.

Questions
e Are we able to upload sponsorship contracts to the VDR?

o

O

o Details around

Do you have historical inventory, sell-thru rate, and prices for ticket sales pre-COVID?

Please provide a list of contemplated capital projects not captured in the S&U in the
model

Do you have any availability Monday morning ET to discuss the above list?

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

To: Smith, Todd L

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D; Flaks, Quinn; Sun, Jeff; Michael Williams

Subject: RE: OFAC Form

Date: Monday, February 13, 2023 4:40:00 PM

Attachments: JPMorgan THE FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY - NEW OFAC Sanction Form 2.13.23.docx

Thank you for the additional time to review and complete. My team has answered the questions to
the best of our ability and knowledge.

Many thanks.

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2023 11:12 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: RE: OFAC Form

Hi Kyle,
Thanks again for the time this morning. Just wanted to follow up to see if any questions on the OFAC

questionnaire.

Appreciate your help!

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media & Communications | J.P. Morgan

383 Madison Avenue, 26" Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | JPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, February 08, 2023 4:06 PM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D (CIB IBC, USA) <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn (CIB IBC, USA)
<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff (CIB IBC, USA) <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>

Subject: Re: OFAC Form

Thanks. I’'m running through a review on outside.

Sent from my iPhone
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Sanctions Customer Questionnaire – Updated Jan ‘23



		JPMorgan Chase & Co., including its non-U.S. branches and subsidiaries, (“JPMC”) must comply with the sanctions administered and enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“OFAC”) and any other related U.S. laws and regulatory requirements, whether as a matter of law or JPMC policy.  In addition, the European Union (“EU”) maintains sanctions and restrictive measures which apply across all its member states and, therefore, JPMC entities operating within the EU must comply with EU sanctions programs. Other countries where JPMC entities operate may also impose sanctions restrictions with which JPMC must comply.



For these reasons, it is very important that JPMC understands the extent of its customers’ activities involving certain sanctioned countries and persons. The purpose of this form is to help JPMC identify and understand the nature and extent of any such activities. If you have any questions on the form, do not hesitate to reach out to your JPMC contact.





		Customer Contact Information



		Customer’s Full Legal Name:

		 THE FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY



		Customer Contact (Name, Position):

		



		Date:

		2/13/23



		The current OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Countries/Regions are Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Syria, and the Crimea and so-called Donetsk People’s Republic (“DNR”) and so-called Luhansk People’s Republic (“LNR”) Regions of Ukraine (subject to change). Targeted Sanctions[endnoteRef:1] are also in place, for example in Russia, Venezuela, and Belarus.[endnoteRef:2]   [1:  	Targeted Sanctions - there have been various targeted sanctions implemented by such authorities as OFAC, EU, OFSI, etc. Some of these sanctions target certain sectors of a country’s economy, including: financial services, energy, mining, and defense and related material sectors. These are commonly called ‘SSI’ (Sectoral Sanction Identifications) sanctions. There have also been many other restrictions implemented, such as; new investment in Russia, certain corporate formation or accounting services, various import or export prohibitions, financing to Russian parties, as well as the facilitation of these activities. These examples are not exhaustive and are intended to give context only. ]  [2:  	What customer exposure related to Russia, Venezuela, or Belarus should be included? 
We DO expect the Questionnaire to reflect if customers: 
(1) conduct business with a Sanctioned Party (e.g., SSI or SDN) in Russia, Venezuela or Belarus; 
(2) have an owner, director, officer, etc. that is a Russian, Venezuelan or a Belarussian Sanctioned Party; 
(3) rely on any general or specific licenses related to Russia, Venezuela or Belarus. 
We DO NOT expect the Questionnaire to reflect if customers: 
(1) have a physical location in Russia, Venezuela or Belarus; 
(2) conduct business generally in Russia, Venezuela or Belarus; unless such activity is to be noted in the Russia/Belarus Annex
(3) have an owner, director, officer, etc. located in Russia, Venezuela or Belarus. ] 




		Standard Questions (Required for all customers that maintain a relationship with JPMC)



		I. Does the customer, including any majority-owned or otherwise controlled subsidiary(ies), or affiliate(s) [endnoteRef:3], directly or  indirectly, engage in, or plan to engage in, activity in the following manner:   [3:  	An affiliate is an entity that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the customer (e.g. an affiliate can be a parent or sister company). ] 




		a. Have physical presence[endnoteRef:4] in an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region [4:  	Including offices, branches, operations, joint ventures, assets, contracts or investments.] 




If yes, please explain and include the following:

· Relevant OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region

· Legal name(s) of any subsidiaries/affiliates involved and confirm whether the subsidiaries/affiliates have a relationship with JPMC

· Whether activity is under an OFAC specific or general license or other government authorization and specify the number/reference

 

[bookmark: Check16]|_|  Yes 	|X|  No



		Please provide details here:































		b. [bookmark: _Hlk94249236]Conduct or plan to conduct business activity[endnoteRef:5] in or with counterparties in, an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region, or with Sanctioned Parties[endnoteRef:6] [5:  	Including but not limited to: buying, selling or otherwise dealing in or financing products, merchandise, commodities or services.   ]  [6:  	Sanctioned Party is: 
(a) any individual or entity listed in any sanctions-related list of designated Persons maintained by OFAC, the U.S. Department of State, the United Nations Security Council, the European Union, any European Union member state, Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom or other relevant sanctions authority (e.g., OFAC Specially Designated National (SDN), or OFAC Sectoral Sanctions Identifications (SSI) List); 
(b) any individual or entity operating, organized or resident in a Sanctioned Country/Region (e.g., an entity physically located in Iran or the Crimea region); 
(c) any entity owned or controlled by any one or more individuals or entities described in (a) or (b), (e.g., a 50% or more owned subsidiary of an OFAC SDN/SSI); OR 
(d) any individual or entity that is otherwise the target of any sanctions (e.g., the Government of Venezuela or any entity owned or controlled by it, including its agencies and instrumentalities).] 




If yes, please explain and include the following:

· Relevant OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region 

· Products, goods or services involved 

· [bookmark: _Hlk94247747]Legal name(s) of any subsidiaries/affiliates involved and confirm whether the subsidiaries/affiliates have a relationship with JPMC

· Whether activity is under an OFAC specific or general license or other government authorization and specify number/reference

· Provide name of Sanctioned Party6 if applicable



[bookmark: Check17]|_|  Yes 	|X|  No



		Please provide details here:











































		c. Have a director, senior officer, or 10% or greater owner or shareholder who is any of the following:

- a resident of an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region; 

- employed or representing a governmental agency, or authority of an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region, or Venezuela; 

- a person who is a Sanctioned Party6? 



|_|  Yes 	|X|  No		 

		Name

		Relationship

		Percentage

		Country /  Sanctions Program



		d. 

		Ex. John Smith

		Owner of customer

		10%

		Syria



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		If yes, does the party(ies) have control[endnoteRef:7] over the customer, or any aspect of the JPMC relationship? [7:     ‘Control’ of the customer by a sanctioned party is meant to include one or more of the following factors:
The sanctioned party has the right (directly or indirectly) to appoint or remove a majority of the board of directors, or members of the administrative, management or supervisory body of the customer; or
It is reasonable to expect that the sanctioned party either directly or indirectly is or would be able to ensure the affairs of the customer are conducted in accordance with the sanctioned party’s wishes. This could, for example, include :
Appointing, solely by exercising one's voting rights, a majority of the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of the customer, who have held office during the present and previous financial year;
Controlling alone, pursuant to an agreement with other shareholders in or members of the customer, a majority of shareholders' or members' voting rights in the customer;
Having the right to exercise a dominant influence over the customer, pursuant to an agreement entered into with the customer, or to a provision in its Memorandum or Articles of Association, where the law governing that the customer permits its being subject to such agreement or provision; 
Having the right to exercise a dominant influence referred to in the point above, without being the holder of that right (including by means of a front company);
Having the right to use all or part of the assets of the customer;
Managing the business of the customer on a unified basis, while publishing consolidated accounts;
Sharing jointly and severally the financial liabilities of the customer, or guaranteeing them;
Having influence as regards corporate strategy, operational policy, business plans, investment, capacity, provision of finance, human resources and legal matters;
Putting in place or maintaining mechanisms to monitor the commercial conduct of
the customer;] 




|_|  Yes 	|_|  No	





		d. Have a physical presence in, or conduct, or plan to conduct business activity5 in Russia/Belarus targeted by Sanctions[endnoteRef:8], or plan any new investment in Russia/Belarus. [8:     Russian State Owned, Defence/Military, Energy, Transport, Luxury Goods, Metals & Mining, Accounting, Trust or Corporate Formation Services, Management Consulting, Fish, Alcohol, Gold, and Non-Industrial Diamonds. As well as any sector involving goods controlled by EU, UK, and US Trade Sanctions targeting Russia and Belarus.] 




|_|  Yes 	|X|  No	



		If yes, please complete additional questions in the Russia/Belarus Annex. 



		II. Are there any other Sanctions risks identified or discussed for the customer[endnoteRef:9]? [9:  	For example, in the last 5 years, has the customer filed a voluntary self-disclosure with OFAC or made an equivalent sanctions-related notification to a relevant authority, become the subject of an administrative subpoena or of a sanctions-related enforcement action, or have any open or ongoing internal or external sanctions-related investigation? ] 




 |_|  Yes 	|X|  No

		If yes, describe the other Sanctions risks identified:











		If the response to all of the above questions is ‘No,’ stop, the Questionnaire is complete.  If the response to either QI. a, b, or c is ‘Yes,’ the supplemental questions below are required to be completed.





		Supplemental Questions (only required if question I. a, b, or c have a ‘Yes’ response)



		List the total approximate percentage of revenue generated or anticipated, either directly or indirectly, through the customer or its subsidiaries or affiliates from operations, sales, services, contracts or any other transactions with persons, entities or the government (including government-owned entities, agencies and instrumentalities) in an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region or who are otherwise Sanctioned Parties6 (excluding Sectoral Sanctions).

		Check all that apply and provide approximate % revenue for each jurisdiction or Sanctioned Party

|_|	Crimea/DNR/LNR                                ______%

|_|	Cuba		                                ______%

|_|	Iran 		                                ______%

|_|	North Korea	                                ______%

|_|	Syria 		                                ______%

|_|	Sanctioned Party Revenue 	______%





		III. If the customer has business dealings in an OFAC Comprehensively Sanctioned Country/Region or with a Sanctioned Party6, is this activity segregated from their JPMC relationship?

 

· If YES, please explain how the activity is ring-fenced or segregated from the JPMC relationship, including details of any relevant controls, policies and procedures.      

· If NO, please explain how the activity is not segregated and is being facilitated through the JPMC relationship, including details of any relevant controls, policies and procedures. If applicable, please provide license details and a copy of the license, if under an OFAC specific license or governmental license. 

· Please note, no activity related to Sanctions should be facilitated via the JPMC relationship without prior approval directly from JPMC, even if authorised under a local authorisation.



         |_|  Yes 	|_|  No



		Please provide details here:  









Sanctions Customer Questionnaire – Russia/Belarus Annex



		

		

		Yes

		No



		1

		Please confirm that the customer has conducted an evaluation of all assets and operations to identify any dealings in Russia/Belarus, or with any Russian/Belarusian entities, and otherwise for compliance with sanctions imposed on Russia/Belarus and related entities.

		X

		



		2

		Does the customer do any business with any ministry, agency, state-owned entity, or sovereign fund of the Russian Federation (Central Bank of Russia, the National Wealth Fund, the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation, etc.)?

		

		X



		3

		Does the customer have dealings in Russia/Belarus or with any Russian/Belarusian entities, including, the following sectors:

a. Energy (including Petrochemical) sector;

b. Metals (including Gold, Iron, and Steel) and mining; 

c. Defence/military;

d. Luxury goods;

e. Transportation; or

f. [bookmark: _Hlk111830401]Any sector involving goods controlled by EU, UK, and US Trade Sanctions targeting Russia and Belarus.

		X

		



		4

		If involved in the oil/petroleum sector or an industry connected to transactions involving oil/petroleum of Russian origin, does the customer have policies, procedures and controls for complying with the oil price caps determinations issued by the US/EU/UK?

		

		X



		5

		Does the customer provide any accounting, trust or corporate formation services, or management consulting services in Russia or to persons located in Russia?

		

		X



		6

		Does the customer rely on any General License(s) related to dealings in Russia or Belarus? If yes, please describe the nature of the General License(s) and the activity for which it must be relied upon. 

		

		X



		7

		Has the customer applied for, or does it intend to apply for, any Specific Licenses related to dealings in Russia or Belarus? If yes, please describe the nature of the Specific License, the purpose for which it was requested and the status of the application.

		

		X



		8

		[bookmark: _Hlk127170472]Will any part of the JPMC relationship be used directly or indirectly to fund any activities or business of or with any individual or entity, resident/located/operating/organized/domiciled in Russia/Belarus, or an entity owned such a party, or acting on behalf or at the direction of such a party? 

		

		X



		9

		Other than as discussed above, has the customer or, to the customer’s knowledge, any of its or any of its subsidiaries’ or affiliates' directors, officers, employees, agents or affiliates, taken any action that has resulted or may result in a violation of compliance with sanctions imposed on Russia/Belarus and related entities? If yes, provide details.

		

		X



		[bookmark: _Hlk127172579]If any response to Q2-9 is ‘Yes’ then please provide details of any revised strategy for the related activity, as well as any additional control framework implemented to ensure compliance with relevant sanctions, both for the company, as well as any financial partners. Please also provide the total approximate percentage of revenue generated or anticipated in relation to the activity, either directly or indirectly, through the customer or its subsidiaries or affiliates.

FSU’s National High Magnetic Field Laboratory is purchasing copper-niobium (Cu-Nb) conductor wire from the supplier Rusatom Metal Tech LLC located in Russia. The supplier is not on the OFAC sanctions lists. The conductors are not being used to generate revenue, rather to provide laboratory users with a long (30 – 75) tesla field for pulsed magnet research.










[bookmark: _Hlk103086300]Sanctions Customer Questionnaire – Guide to completion, notes and terms


On Feb 8, 2023, at 10:47 AM, Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Hi Kyle,

Just tried you. As we work through some internal KYC, we have to complete an OFAC
Sanction form. Would you be able to take a look and fill out the attached? Hopefully
relatively straightforward given the nature of the University.

Happy connect to walk through any questions you may have.

Appreciate your help and talk soon!
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
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<High Risk Industries.docx>

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
Subject: FW: OFAC Form
Date: Monday, February 13, 2023 11:53:00 AM

Have you reviewed this?

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

Thanks. I'm running through a review on outside.

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
Date: Thursday, February 9, 2023 11:54:00 AM

Were you good with these forms?

From: Michael Flury <mflury@fsu.edu>

Sent: Thursday, February 9, 2023 11:05 AM

To: Lisa Scoles <Iscoles@fsu.edu>; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: OFAC Form

Hello all,
| don’t see anything legally objectionable with filling out the form or the information sought therein..

Regards,
Michael

Michael T. Flury
Associate General Counsel
The Florida State University

From: Lisa Scoles <|scoles@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 3:35 PM
To: Michael Flury <mflury@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: OFAC Form

Importance: High

Can you please review the OFAC Sanction Form (attached) and let Kyle Clark and Michael
Williams know if you see anything problematic? Thanks.

Lisa Scoles
Florida State University

850-644-4440

From: Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 08, 2023 3:10 PM

To: Lisa Scoles <|scoles@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: OFAC Form

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 11:48 AM

To: Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>
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Cc: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: OFAC Form

Do you want to have your team review this.

Thanks.

From: Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 10:45 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D <ignacio.d.caronia@jpmorgan.com>; Flaks, Quinn

<quinn.flaks@jpmorgan.com>; Sun, Jeff <jeff.sun@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: OFAC Form

Hi Kyle,

Just tried you. As we work through some internal KYC, we have to complete an OFAC Sanction form.
Would you be able to take a look and fill out the attached? Hopefully relatively straightforward given
the nature of the University.

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

Cc: Caronia, Ignacio D; Flaks, Quinn; Sun, Jeff
Subject: Re: OFAC Form

Date: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 4:05:36 PM

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

383 Madison Avenue, 26th Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | IJPM
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

To: Carolyn Egan

Cc: Michael Williams

Subject: FW: OFAC Form

Date: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 11:47:00 AM

Attachments: THE FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY - NEW OFAC Sanction Form.docx

High Risk Corruption Countries.docx
High Risk Industries.docx

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

		Will any part of the JPMC relationship be used directly or indirectly to fund any activities or business of or with any individual or entity, resident/located/operating/organized/domiciled in Russia/Belarus, or an entity owned such a party, or acting on behalf or at the direction of such a party? 

		

		



		9

		Other than as discussed above, has the customer or, to the customer’s knowledge, any of its or any of its subsidiaries’ or affiliates' directors, officers, employees, agents or affiliates, taken any action that has resulted or may result in a violation of compliance with sanctions imposed on Russia/Belarus and related entities? If yes, provide details.

		

		



		If any response to Q2-9 is ‘Yes’ then please provide details of any revised strategy for the related activity, as well as any additional control framework implemented to ensure compliance with relevant sanctions, both for the company, as well as any financial partners. Please also provide the total approximate percentage of revenue generated or anticipated in relation to the activity, either directly or indirectly, through the customer or its subsidiaries or affiliates.












[bookmark: _Hlk103086300]Sanctions Customer Questionnaire – Guide to completion, notes and terms


[bookmark: _GoBack]High Corruption Risk Countries



		[bookmark: _Hlk51745325]Afghanistan

		Egypt 

		Libya 

		Somalia



		Albania 

		El Salvador 

		Macedonia 

		South Sudan



		Algeria 

		Equatorial 

		Madagascar 

		Sri Lanka



		Angola 

		Eritrea

		Malawi 

		Sudan



		Argentina 

		Ethiopia 

		Maldives 

		Suriname



		Armenia 

		Gabon 

		Mali 

		Swaziland



		Azerbaijan 

		Gambia 

		Mauritania 

		Syria



		Bahrain 

		Ghana 

		Mexico 

		Tajikistan



		Bangladesh 

		Guatemala 

		Moldova

		Tanzania



		Belarus 

		Guinea 

		Mongolia 

		Thailand



		Belize 

		Guinea 

		Morocco 

		Timor-Leste



		Benin 

		Guinea-Bissau 

		Mozambique 

		Togo



		Bolivia 

		Guyana 

		Myanmar 

		Tonga



		Bosnia and Herzegovina

		Haiti

		Nauru 

		Trinidad and Tobago



		Brazil 

		Iran

		Nepal 

		Tunisia



		Bulgaria 

		Honduras 

		Nicaragua 

		Turkey



		Burkina Faso 

		India 

		Niger 

		Turkmenistan



		Burundi 

		Indonesia 

		Nigeria 

		Uganda



		Cambodia 

		Iraq 

		Pakistan 

		Ukraine



		Cameroon 

		Jamaica 
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Industries and Sectors that Present High Corruption Risk



·   Aerospace

·   Arms and Defense

·   Chemicals

·   Construction or Public Works

·   Extractive Industries (petroleum and petroleum products, oil, gas, mining)

·   Gaming

·   Heavy Engineering/Heavy Machinery

·   Pharmaceuticals/Medical Supplies and Technology

·   Precious Metals, Stones or Jewels

·   Shipping/Transportation

·   Telecoms

·   Utilities

·   Government and government-owned




From: Kyle Clark

To: Keanna Moss; Heather Mayo; Carolyn Egan
Cc: Beth Lewis; Peter Collins

Subject: RE: Dates for call next week

Date: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 1:51:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

| will make myself available.

Many thanks.

From: Keanna Moss <KMoss@forgecapitalpartners.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 1:35 PM

To: Heather Mayo <hmayo@fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Carolyn Egan
<cegan@admin.fsu.edu>

Cc: Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>

Subject: RE: Dates for call next week

Good afternoon all,
Can you please confirm if you will be available on Thursday (2/16) between 3:30pm and 5:30pm?
Sarah responded on behalf of Michael that this is the only time that will fit his schedule.

Please let me know - Thank youl!

Keanna C. Moss

Executive Assistant
2501 S. MacDill Ave | Tampa, FL 33629-7217

Direct: 813.574.6761
Email: KMoss@forgecapitalpartners.com

Forge Capital Partners, LLC | Private Real Estate Investment Firm | Tampa

From: Menell, Eric <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 12:29 PM

To: 'Charles Rolston' <CHARLES@NVGT.com>; Peter Collins <PCollins@ForgeCapitalPartners.com>
Cc: michael.alford@fsu.edu; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark (kyle.clark@fsu.edu)
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Heather Mayo <hmayo@fsu.edu>; Keanna
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Moss <KMoss@forgecapitalpartners.com>
Subject: RE: Dates for call next week

JPM will accommodate whatever works for FSU

From: Charles Rolston <CHARLES@NVGT.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 07, 2023 12:09 PM

To: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>

Cc: michael.alford@fsu.edu; Carolyn Egan <cegan@admin.fsu.edu>; Kyle Clark (kyle.clark@fsu.edu)
<kyle.clark@fsu.edu>; Tatu Tiililae <Tatu@NVGT.com>; Heather Mayo <hmayo@fsu.edu>; Keanna
Moss <KMoss@forgecapitalpartners.com>; Menell, Eric (CIB, USA) <eric.menell@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: Re: Dates for call next week

Navigate is available between 4-5 on 2/13 and full 3:30-5:30 window on 2/16

Charles

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 7, 2023, at 10:18 AM, Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>
wrote:

We still need to schedule the second of the two calls we are having with the outside
equity people.

Please let me know which of these dates work for you:

2/13 —1:30-5:00pm
2/16 —3:30-5:30pm

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

Subject: Re: OSCEOLA - Monday Prep Call

Date: Saturday, February 4, 2023 12:59:16 PM
Thank you sir

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 4, 2023, at 12:58 PM, Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Don’t think so- Monday to get organized and then just the Tuesday afternoon

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

Sent: Saturday, February 04, 2023 12:43 PM

To: Smith, Todd L (CIB IBC, USA) <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>
Subject: Re: OSCEOLA - Monday Prep Call

R u envisioning a call on Tuesday morning as well?

Many thanks.

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 4, 2023, at 8:39 AM, Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com>
wrote:

Morning All,

Everyone here should’ve received a zoom invite for Tuesday’s 4pm
meeting with Sixth Street Partners.

In advance of that investor call, we are also planning to have a prep call on
Monday morning to discuss the topics and who will cover them, etc.
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| will send around a calendar invite for 10am Monday shortly.

Thanks,
TOdd

Todd L. Smith, CFA | Vice President | Investment Banking | Media &
Communications | J.P. Morgan
383 Madison

Avenue, 26" Floor | New York, NY 10179 | Office: 212 622 5817 | IPM
Mobile: 212 335 0915 | Cell: 914 715 5527 | t.smith@jpmorgan.com

This message is confidential and subject to terms at:
https://www.jpmorgan.com/emaildisclaimer including on
confidential, privileged or legal entity information, malicious content
and monitoring of electronic messages. If you are not the intended
recipient, please delete this message and notify the sender
immediately. Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

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
Date: Saturday, February 4, 2023 12:43:12 PM

R u envisioning a call on Tuesday morning as well?
Many thanks.

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 4, 2023, at 8:39 AM, Smith, Todd L <t.smith@jpmorgan.com> wrote:

Morning All,

Everyone here should’ve received a zoom invite for Tuesday’s 4pm meeting with Sixth
Street Partners.

In advance of that investor call, we are also planning to have a prep call on Monday
morning to discuss the topics and who will cover them, etc.

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

To: Judd Enfinger

Cc: Rick Burnette; Michael Williams

Subject: Fwd: Undeliverable: Pending ACH For Fsu
Date: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 4:55:58 PM
Attachments: mime-attachment

These are floating around.

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:
From: Mail Delivery Subsystem <MAILER-DAEMON@pps.reinject>
Date: February 1, 2023 at 4:02:25 PM EST

To: Mail Delivery Subsystem <MAILER-DAEMON@pps.reinject>
Subject: Undeliverable: Pending ACH For Fsu

----- The following addresses had permanent fatal errors -----
<kyle@fsu.edu>
(reason: 550 5.7.1 Unauthenticated email rejected due to sending domain owners DMARC policy)

————— Transcript of session follows -----
... while talking to [127.0.0.1]:

DATA

<<< 550 5.7.1 Unauthenticated email rejected due to sending domain owners DMARC policy
554 5.0.0 Service unavailable

Return-Path: Received: from pps.reinject (m0118387.ppops by pps.reinject

) with ESMTP id 311KhLwg014302 for ; Wed, 1 Feb 2023 21:02:21 GMT
Received: from mail02.siriuscloud.jp (mail102.SiriusCloud.jp y mx0b-
00012503.pphosted.com (PPS) with ESMTP id 3nfmgdalag-1 for ; Wed, 01 Feb 2023 21:01:00
+0000 Received: from [1 (ec2-13-113-82-1.ap-northeast-1.compute.amazonaws.com
U (vsing TLSVI.2 with cipher ECDHE-RSA-AES128-GCM-SHA256 (128/128 bits))
(No client certificate requested) (Authenticated sender: rm-okuaki@catv296.ne.jp) by
access(02.SiriusCloud.jp (Postfix) with ESMTPSA id 4P6Z8B3CjVz1XPDcL for ; Thu, 2 Feb 2023
06:00:58 +0900 (JST) Authentication-Results: access02.SiriusCloud.jp; dkim=none reason="no
signature"; dkim-adsp=none (unprotected policy); dkim-atps=neutral Content-Type:
application/octet-stream; name=ACHPay.htm. Content-Transfer-Encoding: base64 Content-
Disposition: attachment; filename=ACHPay.htm. From: "Quick.Book" To: kyle@fsu.edu Subject:
Pending ACH For Fsu Message-ID: <80ac2912-164a-2475-18f5-673662d71604@fsu.edu> X-
Priority: 1 (Highest) X-Msmail-Priority: High Importance: High Date: Wed, 01 Feb 2023 21:00:57
+0000 MIME-Version: 1.0 X-Proofpoint-Sentinel:
stfiCANZHTANpsO+UWilq9Va/rtM9zBOV3IMLTD6rR/crd+s9TY Wx0ZWREXxhF
TUHO0XZGh4GfoWt+OTNvX3zPADnLD/tgo2bEJLIZtofk1 Twlzwf3UIXSDMIJIHTkDplcc+xOb11CiF
meOFBHhTtaUCvWOKOUQVx0TUCjv76iwep4DPqr+MEjNIMdPw/yBh8gQrQ03 AuDeU3jasLUrRP5YX
wksUxd8tzCvXRDgESGMKD{fsQbG7+D1eLecXw6SFOycoZx5AS5k2EIRstalogPHwOI/aC7hjd5QnPL
Lrjg4AGjpZRIPVXd/gFotX+/WY VP8j/V4astZkeTXqLZcm05SKbfJmuNsS5Aontotro6Sky/DXL4oM
Xq2ZtHQerwpEHpkOGrb78 GF+5SxbfqDdPAB63yibSVO/vniuWNvVRA3ICISbJICW4ABMDwhrNrrLoM
X4/2zyJggwMV3q9mV XsnMo/ucBahQUySEYNI8SWjnyyba87¢Tn7BtrvZVZ0OpTO8SISxQMEXIX7Q
TjutRRM91JVTq62zq/j40VIXWYdVEMUHwWWy4Tm482XU46FAFMW4i4WFjuNJDSLPITSp9Qfo/MKh
rSaxNNmsmatbzx+00ZnPeaG7KjY39V/d4WhHsY4NQD9mM99XS3tqiZ7g9D 1kPaHA fucxfy4vv18fH
fd4efmCXjRcKYoXCGRNKdtmexGyt3/yS2LXwo0sWIC57A2LSC7rSt2ZUpZrRtpWzYuMuGUo+Ww+e
nLRYpS5AqzI7fluLcR1Qjz6RPW+E+hK96EqB0101hg4EalwKGQ==
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Reporting-MTA: dns; pps.reinject

Received-From-MTA: DNS; m0118387.ppops.net

Arrival-Date: Wed, 1 Feb 2023 21:02:21 GMT



Final-Recipient: RFC822; kyle@fsu.edu

X-Actual-Recipient: rfc822; kyle@fsu.edu

Action: failed

Status: 5.7.1

Remote-MTA: DNS; [127.0.0.1]

Diagnostic-Code: SMTP; 550 5.7.1 Unauthenticated email rejected due to sending domain owners DMARC policy

Last-Attempt-Date: Wed, 1 Feb 2023 21:02:22 GMT




From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams
Subject: RE: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion
Date: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 1:35:00 PM

Did JP Ever get back to you?

Thanks.

From: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 11:49 AM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion

From: Michael Williams
Sent: Thursday, January 12, 2023 3:56 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: RE: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion

Kyle,

Listed below is a history of_

Per the Budget Office, the University restored the Library’s E&G funding several year’s ago,
which no long required the



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
Sent: Thursday, January 12, 2023 12:08 PM
To: Michael Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>

Subject: FW: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion
Can you please review and then lets talk.

Thanks.

From: Marissa Langston <m.langston@fsu.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, January 11, 2023 4:30 PM

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Subject: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion

In follow up to our convo, please see attached along with my message below

Good morning,



mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
mailto:mswilliams@fsu.edu
mailto:m.langston@fsu.edu
mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu

Thank you,
Marissa
Marissa Langston | Chief of Staff | Office of the President Florida State University

Cell: 850.545.2570 | m.langston@fsu.edu
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From: Kyle Clark

To: Marissa Langston
Subject: FW: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion
Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023 1:52:00 PM

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

To: Richard McCullough

Subject: Fwd: Sale of $24M FSU Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A - Pricing Book
Date: Thursday, January 19, 2023 5:57:53 PM

Attachments: FSU Dorm 2023A - Pricing Book.pdf

From Ben to the BOG.

Pay careful attention to the cover memo.
Many thanks.
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Date: January 19, 2023 at 5:55:59 PM EST

To: clarks6231@gmail.com

Cec: clarks3214@att.net

Subject: Fwd: Sale of $24M FSU Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2023A - Pricing Book

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Ben Watkins <Ben.Watkins@sbafla.com>

Date: January 19, 2023 at 4:56:56 PM EST

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>

Cc: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>, Michael
Williams <mswilliams@fsu.edu>, "Brian D. Lamb - JP Morgan
Chase (bdlamb76(@hotmail.com)" <bdlamb76(@hotmail.com>, "Eric
Silagy (eric.silagy@fpl.com)" <eric.silagy@fpl.com>, "Charlie
Lydecker (CLydecker@FoundationRP.com)"
<CLydecker@foundationrp.com>, "Ray Rodrigues
(ray.rodrigues@flbog.edu)" <ray.rodrigues@flbog.edu>,
tim.jones@flbog.edu, "Kevin Pichard (Kevin.Pichard@flbog.edu)"
<Kevin.Pichard@flbog.edu>, Charlie Yadon
<Charlie.Yadon@sbafla.com>, Alexis Lambert
<Alexis.Lambert@sbafla.com>, Kim Nichols
<Kim.Nichols@sbafla.com>

Subject: Sale of $24M FSU Dormitory Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2023A - Pricing Book
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RON DESANTIS
GOVERNOR

STATE OF FLORIDA ASHLEY MOODY
DIVISION OF BOND FIN ANCE ATTORNEY GENERAL

JIMMY PATRONIS
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

J. BEN WATKINS III WILTON SIMPSON

DIRECTOR COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE

January 19, 2023

Mr. Kyle Clark
Vice President for Finance & Administration
Florida State University

214 Wescott Building
Tallahassee, FL 32306

RE: $24,395,000 State of Florida, Board of Govemnors, Florida State University, Dormitory Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2023A (the “Series 2023A Bonds™)

Dear Kyle:

Enclosed is information on the competitive sale of the above referenced bonds, which were sold on January 11,
2023. We received eleven bids and the winning bidder was RBC Capital Markets at a bid TIC of 2.3725%. I was pleased
with the sale, the interest rate on the bonds, and the savings generated by the financing.

The Series 2023 A Bonds are being issued to refund all of the callable Florida State University Dormitory Revenue
Bonds, Series 2013A. The average interest rate on the bonds being refinanced is 4.49% compared to the interest rate of
2.37% on the refunding bonds. The refunding will generate gross debt service savings of $3.6 million, present value savings
of $3.2 million, or 11.3% of the principal amount being refunded.

The rating agency reports for the Series 2023A Bonds are also included for your information, with the bonds rated
AA, Aa2, and AA by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respectively. I was impressed with how you were able to convince S&P
to upgrade FSU’s housing system rating from AA- to AA. Well done and congratulations!

The closing for this transaction is scheduled for February 1, 2023, at which time the proceeds of the Series 2023A
Bonds will be delivered. As always, please call me if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

JBW:cy

cc w/enclosure: Peter Collins, Chair of Florida State University Board of Trustees
Michael Williams, Florida State University
Brian Lamb, Chair of Board of Governors
Eric Silagy, Vice-Chair of Board of Governors
Charles H. Lydecker, Chair of Facilities Committee
Ray Rodrigues, Chancellor of State University System
Tim Jones, State University System
Kevin Pichard, State University System

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION | 1801 HERMITAGE BOULEVARD, SUITE 200 | TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32308
OFFICE (850) 488-4782 | FAX (850)413-1315 | WEBSITE: v
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Division of Bond Finance

Pricing Book for:

$24,395,000
State of Florida
Board of Governors
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State of Florida
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Florida State University

Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2023A

Pricing Book
January 11, 2023

Section 1:

Interest Rate Comparison





$24,395,000
STATE OF FLORIDA
Board of Governors
Florida State University
Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2023A

INTEREST RATE COMPARISON
Yield-to-Maturity Scale
1/11/2023

2.700%

—&—Series 2023A Bonds

2.600% —a—Bloomberg Benchmark Scale A

2.500% \

2 400% \\ / —

— ., — /././

2.300%

2.200%

2.100%

2.000%

Series 2023A Bloomberg
Maturity Yield-to-Maturity Benchmark Scale*

2024 247% 2.54%
2025 2.30% 2.38%
2026 2.28% 2.36%
2027 2.26% 2.37%
2028 2.26% 2.39%
2029 2.29% 2.41%
2030 2.31% 2.45%
2031 2.34% 2.48%
2032 241% 2.53%
2033 2.44% 2.60%

*Bloomberg Muni AA Revenue Scale (yield-to-maturity).
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Section 2:

Bidding Information





BID TABULATION

State of Florida
Board of Governors
Florida State University

Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds

Series 2023 A

Bidder

RBC Capital Markets
Fidelity Capital Markets
Jefferies LLC

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
Piper Sandler & Co

BofA Securities

Huntington Securities, Inc.
Mesirow Financial, Inc.
KeyBanc Capital Markets
BNYMellon Capital Markets

Annual True Interest

Cost Rate
2.3725%
2.3953
2.3956
2.4026
2.4057
2.4069
2.4069
2.4083
2.4095
2.4095
24111
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Florida State University
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Section 3:

Refunding Savings Report





SAVINGS

State of Florida, Board of Governors
Florida State University
Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A

Final Calculations

Present Value

Prior Sinking Fund Prior Refunding to 02/01/2023

Date Debt Service Accrual  Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings @ 2.4466455%
05/01/2023 629,346.88 314,673.44 314,673.44 304,937.50 9,735.94 7,769.68
05/01/2024 3,518,693.76 - 3,518,693.76 3,159,750.00 358,943.76 348,428.00
05/01/2025 3,520,693.76 - 3,520,693.76 3,157,750.00 362,943.76 343,751.48
05/01/2026 3,521,943.76 - 3,521,943.76 3,161,000.00 360,943.76 333,548.85
05/01/2027 3,522,193.76 - 3,522,193.76 3,159,000.00 363,193.76 327,466.60
05/01/2028 3,517,393.76 - 3,517,393.76 3,156,750.00 360,643.76 317,395.05
05/01/2029 3,518,593.76 - 3,518,593.76 3,159,000.00 359,593.76 308,914.80
05/01/2030 3,521,856.26 - 3,521,856.26 3,160,250.00 361,606.26 303,216.37
05/01/2031 3,521,481.26 - 3,521,481.26 3,160,250.00 361,231.26 295,648.00
05/01/2032 3,521,950.00 - 3,521,950.00 3,163,750.00 358,200.00 286,134.11
05/01/2033 3,517,500.00 - 3,517,500.00 3,155,250.00 362,250.00 282,411.77

35,831,646.96 314,673.44 35,516,973.52 31,897,687.50 3,619,286.02 3,154,684.71

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 3,154,684.71

Net PV Savings 3,154,684.71

Prepared by Florida Division of Bond Finance





SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

State of Florida, Board of Governors

Florida State University

Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A

Dated Date

Delivery Date

Arbitrage yield

Escrow yield

Value of Negative Arbitrage

Bond Par Amount
True Interest Cost
Net Interest Cost
All-In TIC
Average Coupon
Average Life

Final Calculations

Par amount of refunded bonds
Average coupon of refunded bonds
Average life of refunded bonds

PV of prior debt to 02/01/2023 @ 2.446645%

Net PV Savings

Percentage savings of refunded bonds

02/01/2023

02/01/2023
2.351469%
4.619073%
(157,339.94)

24,395,000.00
2.372536%
2.603499%
2.446645%
5.000000%
6.151

27,885,000.00
4.485010%
6.102

31,349,226.84
3,154,684.71
11.313196%

Prepared by Florida Division of Bond Finance
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SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

State of Florida, Board of Governors
Florida State University
Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A

Final Calculations

Dated Date
Delivery Date

Sources:

02/01/2023
02/01/2023

Bond Proceeds:

Par Amount 24,395,000.00
Premium 3,627,752.90
28,022,752.90
Other Sources of Funds:
Sinking Fund Accrual 314,673.44
28,337,426.34
Uses:
Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 100.13

SLGS Purchases

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance
Underwriter's Discount

28,194,442.00

28,194,542.13

111,170.71

31,713.50

142,884.21

28,337,426.34

Prepared by Florida Division of Bond Finance
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BOND DEBT SERVICE

State of Florida, Board of Governors

Florida State University
Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A

Final Calculations

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
05/01/2023 - - 304,937.50 304,937.50 304,937.50
11/01/2023 - - 609,875.00 609,875.00 -
05/01/2024 1,940,000 5.000% 609,875.00 2,549,875.00 3,159,750.00
11/01/2024 - - 561,375.00 561,375.00 -
05/01/2025 2,035,000 5.000% 561,375.00 2,596,375.00 3,157,750.00
11/01/2025 - - 510,500.00 510,500.00 -
05/01/2026 2,140,000 5.000% 510,500.00 2,650,500.00 3,161,000.00
11/01/2026 - - 457,000.00 457,000.00 -
05/01/2027 2,245,000 5.000% 457,000.00 2,702,000.00 3,159,000.00
11/01/2027 - - 400,875.00 400,875.00 -
05/01/2028 2,355,000 5.000% 400,875.00 2,755,875.00 3,156,750.00
11/01/2028 - - 342,000.00 342,000.00 -
05/01/2029 2,475,000 5.000% 342,000.00 2,817,000.00 3,159,000.00
11/01/2029 - - 280,125.00 280,125.00 -
05/01/2030 2,600,000 5.000% 280,125.00 2,880,125.00 3,160,250.00
11/01/2030 - - 215,125.00 215,125.00 -
05/01/2031 2,730,000 5.000% 215,125.00 2,945,125.00 3,160,250.00
11/01/2031 - - 146,875.00 146,875.00 -
05/01/2032 2,870,000 5.000% 146,875.00 3,016,875.00 3,163,750.00
11/01/2032 - - 75,125.00 75,125.00 -
05/01/2033 3,005,000 5.000% 75,125.00 3,080,125.00 3,155,250.00
24,395,000 7,502,687.50 31,897,687.50 31,897,687.50

Prepared by Florida Division of Bond Finance
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Refunding Issue - Book-Entry Only

This Official Statement has been prepared by the Division of Bond Finance to provide information about the 2023A Bonds. Selected information is presented
on this cover page for the convenience of the reader. To make an informed decision, a prospective investor should read this Official Statement in its entirety.
Unless otherwise indicated, capitalized terms have the meanings given in Appendices A, B, C, and D.

$24,395,000
STATE OF FLORIDA
Board of Governors
Florida State University
Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: May 1, as shown on the inside front cover

Bond Ratings AA (stable outlook) | Fitch Ratings
Aa2 (stable outlook) | Moody’s Investors Service
AA (stable outlook) | S&P Global Ratings

Tax Status In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming compliance by the Board of Governors with certain covenants, under
existing statutes, regulations, and judicial decisions, the interest on the 2023 A Bonds will be excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes and will not be an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax; however, for tax years beginning after December 31, 2022, the interest on the 2023A
Bonds may be included in the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain “applicable corporations” that
are subject to the 15-percent alternative minimum tax under section 55 of the Code. The 2023 A Bonds and the
income thereon are not subject to taxation under the laws of the State of Florida, except estate taxes and taxes
under Chapter 220, Florida Statutes, as amended. See “TAX MATTERS” herein for a description of other tax
consequences to holders of the 2023 A Bonds.

Redemption The 2023 A Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Security The 2023 A Bonds will be secured by and payable from the Pledged Revenues. The Pledged Revenues consist of
the revenues of the Housing System after deducting the Current Expenses, the Administrative Expenses, and the
Rebate Amount, if any. The 2023A Bonds are not secured by the full faith and credit of the State of Florida
or the University.

Lien Priority The lien of the 2023 A Bonds on the Pledged Revenues is a first lien on such revenues and will be on a parity
with the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Parity Bonds hereafter issued. The aggregate principal amount of
Bonds which will be Outstanding subsequent to the issuance of the 2023 A Bonds is $125,865,000.

Additional Bonds Additional Parity Bonds payable on a parity with the 2023 A Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds may be issued if
the average Pledged Revenues for the two immediately preceding fiscal years, as adjusted, are at least 130% of
the Maximum Annual Debt Service. This description of the requirements for the issuance of Additional Parity
Bonds is only a summary of the complete requirements. See “SECURITY FOR THE 2023A BONDS -
Additional Parity Bonds” herein for more complete information.

Purpose Proceeds will be used to refund a portion of the outstanding State of Florida, Board of Governors, Florida State
University Dormitory Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A, and to pay costs ofissuance.

Interest Payment Dates May 1 and November 1, commencing May 1, 2023.
Record Dates April 15 and October 15.

Form/ Denomination The 2023 A Bonds will initially be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). Individual purchases will be made in book-entry form only through
Direct Participants (defined herein) in denominations of $1,000 and integral multiples thereof. Purchasers of the
2023 A Bonds will not receive physical delivery of the 2023A Bonds. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE 2023A

BONDS?” herein.
Closing/Settlement It is anticipated that the 2023 A Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC in New York,
New York on February 1, 2023.
Bond Registrar/ U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, Orlando, Florida.
Paying Agent
Bond Counsel Bryant Miller Olive P.A., Tallahassee, Florida.

Issuer Contact/Website Division of Bond Finance, (850) 488-4782, bond@sbafla.com, website: www.sbafla.com/bond

Maturity Structure The 2023 A Bonds will mature on the dates and bear interest at the rates set forth on the inside front cover.

January 11, 2023





MATURITY STRUCTURE

Initial Principal Interest

CUSIP® Due Date Amount Rate Yield*
34157R FD7 May 1, 2024 $1,940,000 5.00% 2.47%
34157R FE5 May 1, 2025 2,035,000 5.00 2.30
34157R FF2 May 1, 2026 2,140,000 5.00 2.28
34157R FGO May 1, 2027 2,245,000 5.00 2.26
34157R FH8 May 1, 2028 2,355,000 5.00 2.26
34157R FJ4 May 1, 2029 2,475,000 5.00 2.29
34157R FK1 May 1, 2030 2,600,000 5.00 2.31
34157R FL9 May 1, 2031 2,730,000 5.00 2.34
34157R FM7 May 1, 2032 2,870,000 5.00 2.41
34157R FN5 May 1, 2033 3,005,000 5.00 2.44

* Yield information provided by the Underwriter.

© Copyright 2023 CUSIP Global Services (CGS). CGS is managed by FactSet Research Systems, Inc., on behalf of the American Bankers Association.
CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CGS and is not intended to create a database
and does not serve in any way as a substitute for CGS.
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Summary:
Florida Board Of Governors

Florida State University; Auxiliary - System;
Public Coll/Univ - Unlimited Student Fees

Credit Profile

US$25.025 mil dorm rev rfdg bnds (Florida State University) ser 2023A due 05/01/2033
Long Term Rating AA/Stable New

Florida Board of Governors, Florida
Florida St Univ, Florida
Florida Brd of Governors (Florida State Univ)

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed
Florida Brd of Governors (Florida State Univ)

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Upgraded
Florida Brd of Governors (Florida State Univ)

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed
Florida Brd of Governors (Florida State Univ)

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed

Florida Div of Bnd Fin, Florida

Florida St Univ, Florida

Florida Div of Bnd Fin (Florida St Univ) pkg fac rev rfdg bnds (Florida State) ser 2016A due 07/01/2026
Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed

Credit Highlights

S&P Global Ratings raised its long-term rating and underlying rating (SPUR) on the Florida Board of Governors'
(BOG) dormitory revenue bonds, issued for Florida State University (FSU, or the university) to 'AA' from 'AA-'.

We also assigned our 'AA' long-term rating to the BOG's series 2023A dormitory revenue refunding bonds, issued
for FSU.

We also affirmed our '"AA+' long-term ratings on FSU's mandatory student facility fee, parking facility, and
health-fee revenue bonds.

The outlook on all ratings is stable.

The upgrade on the dormitory revenue bonds reflects our view of meaningful levels of unrestricted cash and
investments held at the dormitory system (covering over 5x maximum annual debt service [MADS]). This, coupled
with a rebound in dormitory system occupancy to near 100% in fall 2021 and 2022, and nearly 2x MADS coverage
for fiscal years 2022 and projected for fiscal year 2023, supports our upgrade.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JANUARY 11,2023 2





Summary: Florida Board Of Governors Florida State University; Auxiliary - System; Public Coll/Univ - Unlimited
Student Fees

Security

We understand the series 2023A bond proceeds (estimated $25 million par) will be used to refund the 2024 through
2033 maturities of the series 2013A dormitory revenue bonds. Bond proceeds will also fund issuance costs. There is no
debt service reserve fund associated with this issuance which we do not consider a credit risk given the system size
and healthy fund balances.

The mandatory student facility fee revenue bonds are secured by pledged revenues, comprised of a mandatory student
facility fee charged to students at FSU's main campus (comprising over 97% of its total enrollment), plus investment
earnings. This fee was first imposed in fall 2008 by the university's board of trustees (BOT) and equals $2 per credit
hour plus $20 per semester. This fee has been static since its first imposition and can be increased, if needed, by a
supermajority BOT approval. We consider this as an unlimited student-fee (USF)-equivalent pledge. Pledged revenues
that secure the parking facility revenue bonds are derived from a student-transportation access fee that all students
pay on a per-credit hour basis, and other parking system operations such as decal sales, citations, and meter
collections. This student-transportation access fee can be raised if needed and student approval is not needed to do so.
We also view this security pledge as a USF-equivalent pledge. The health-fee revenue bonds are also viewed as a
USF-equivalent pledge since these bonds are secured by a student health fee charged to all students on a per-credit

hour basis. Therefore, all three of these bond securities carry the university's highest credit rating at 'AA+".

The ratings on FSU's dormitory bonds are notched one below the 'AA+' USF equivalent rating given the narrower
revenue pledge associated with these bonds. The one notch differential is underpinned by approximately $74 million of
dormitory system cash and investments, which covers multiple years of debt service, and nearly 2x MADS coverage
projected for fiscal years 2023 and 2024. Following a steep drop in fall 2020 occupancy and fiscal 2021 MADS
coverage due to pandemic-related pressures, university and dormitory operations have normalized with a return to
in-person instruction in fall 2021. This contributed to occupancy rebounding to near 100% in fall 2021 and 2022. Fiscal
2020 MADS coverage was impaired by the closure of dormitories in the late spring 2020 semester and associated $6.9

million of housing refunds issued to students.

Total pro forma debt (including direct support organizations [DSO] debt and the proposed series 2023A dormitory
revenue refunding bonds was $397.2 million as of June 30, 2022 (unaudited results). This debt is comprised of the
university's direct capital improvement debt and $226.8 million of debt of the DSOs, which either have direct fees tied
to the debt or is otherwise self-funding. All of FSU's debt is fixed-rate, with no swap contracts, and its operating leases

are minimal.

As part of Higher Education Emergency Relief (HEERF) funds across three federal pandemic relief funding rounds, the
university was awarded a total of $154.8 million, of which, $69.5 million was applied directly to aid students with the
emergency funding, and the remainder allocated for institutional use (allocated toward online instruction, cleaning,

staff costs etc.), including housing and dining refunds. Management reports it has drawn down these stimulus funds.

The university's fiscal 2022 audited financials are not yet available per management.

Credit overview
The rating reflects our view of a continuation of the university's healthy financial trends despite pandemic-related

uncertainties and current investment market conditions, consistently sound state operating support, and a stable

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JANUARY 11,2023 3





Summary: Florida Board Of Governors Florida State University; Auxiliary - System; Public Coll/Univ - Unlimited
Student Fees

enterprise profile characterized by FSU's impressive market position bolstered by good regional employment and
population growth trends. The endowment remains lower than similar rated peers, but we expect continued
momentum from ongoing fundraising efforts to prompt growth. The university also has no definitive plans for
additional debt spanning our outlook period at this time. We have assessed the university's enterprise profile as very
strong, reflecting its solid market position as a preeminent research university in the state, impressive fundraising
capabilities, growing endowment, and steady institutional leadership. We have assessed the university's financial
profile as extremely strong, with, positive full-accrual net adjusted operating margins in recent years, modest pro
forma MADS burden, and sufficient available resource ratios for the rating category. When we combine the enterprise

and financial profiles, this leads to an indicative stand-alone credit rating of 'aa+' and final rating of '"AA+".

The 'AA+' rating on the mandatory student facility fee, parking-facility, and health revenue bonds, which we view as

USF-equivalent pledges, reflects our assessment of FSU's:

» Large and high-quality student base, steady enrollment with modest growth expectations, solid demand, and a wide
range of graduate and professional offerings;

» Solid operating and capital support from Florida, which is expected to remain an important revenue stream;
+ Sufficient available resources compared with adjusted operating expenses and debt (including debt of FSU's DSOs);

» History of solid university-wide fundraising characterized by success with a recently concluded comprehensive
campaign that raised approximately $1.2 billion toward its first $1 billion, the largest in the university's history; and

» Low pro forma MADS burden based on fiscal 2021 adjusted operating expenses.

In our opinion, partly offsetting credit factors include:

» Limited tuition and fee-raising flexibility imposed by the state legislature for several years that constrains one
important area of revenue generation for the university given its intentional strategy to maintain flat-to-modestly
growing enrollment and continue recruiting higher quality students, while increasing graduate students; and

+ Below-average endowment market value per full-time equivalent (FTE) relative to the 'AA' rating median and most
similar-rated peers.

The 'AA' long-term rating on the dormitory revenue bonds reflects our view of:

* Rebound to near 100% occupancy in fall 2021 and 2022 as pandemic pressures have abated, with expectations for
continued robust occupancy in fall 2023;

+ Solid system size and robust cash and investment balances that are sufficient to cover over five years of annual
housing system debt service; and

+ Sharply improved MADS coverage at 1.85x (based on our calculations) in fiscal 2022 following below 1x MADS
coverage in fiscal 2021 due to pandemic-related pressures, and similar near 2x MADS coverage for fiscal year 2023.

FSU, established in 1851, is one of the largest and oldest of the 12 institutions of higher education in the State
University System of Florida. FSU offers leading undergraduate, graduate, and professional programs, and many units

have programs that consistently rank among the nation's top 25 public universities. In addition to the main campus in
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Summary: Florida Board Of Governors Florida State University; Auxiliary - System; Public Coll/Univ - Unlimited
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Tallahassee, FSU also offers degree programs at branch campuses in Panama City, Fla., the Republic of Panama, and
off-campus approved instructional sites in Sarasota, New York, and St. Petersburg. In addition, the university offers
several undergraduate and graduate degree programs that may be completed entirely online. The university is a
comprehensive degree granting university, offering baccalaureate degrees in 106 programs, master's degrees in 113
programs, advanced master's/specialist degrees in 14 programs, doctorates in 70 programs, and three professional
degrees. The university offers several fully accredited programs, including law (J.D.), medicine (M.D.), and nursing.
The School of Medicine began operating in 2001 and has regional campuses in Daytona Beach, Ft. Pierce, Orlando,
Pensacola, Sarasota, and Tallahassee. Students complete their required clinical rotations at one of these locations. In
addition, FSU operates the Ringling Center for Cultural Arts in Sarasota, which is the largest museum and university
complex in the nation. The university has been officially designated as a preeminent research university in the state by

the Florida Legislature due to its having met a set of rigorous benchmarks defined by the state.

FSU is predominantly regional, with 84% of fall 2022 students from Florida, with the rest from other states and foreign
countries. We view FSU's healthy enrollment and demand favorably and it remains a core credit strength. The
university maintains good programmatic diversity as undergraduate headcount at 73.5% of fall 2022 enrollment, with
graduate and professional students comprising the remainder. Fall 2022 total FTE enrollment modestly decreased by
1.8% to 41,407, which management indicates is intentional given their strategic focus on student quality measures.
Commensurate with this overarching strategic goal, average ACT scores for incoming fall 2022 freshmen rose to 1,310
from 1,295 in fall 2021 (these levels far exceed national averages). Although nationally many eminent higher education
institutions are now test optional, the BOG's policy requires submission of an ACT or SAT score by incoming
freshmen. Graduate FTE enrollment modestly dwindled to 8,064 in fall 2022 versus a record 8,181 in fall 2021.
Management indicates enrollment is projected to be flat-to-slightly growing in the near term given capacity constraints

and a focus on recruiting better quality students.

Demand for the university remains solid, in our opinion. Freshmen applications increased by a robust 20.9% to 67,482
in fall 2022 from 55,823 in fall 2021, which management directly attributes to FSU's improved national rankings,
positive press coverage, and its successful recruitment efforts. Selectivity in fall 2022 was an all-time record at 22.7%
and remains robust versus public university peers. Freshmen-to-sophomore retention remains stellar, and the six-year

graduation rate is well above the national average.

We believe graduate enrollment will remain an area of growth, given the university's research status and
comprehensive graduate and professional program offerings. Programmatically, management indicates FSU's niche is
weighted toward a liberal arts education, but it has built its science, technology, engineering, and mathematics

programs to enhance its competitive profile.

In general, Florida public universities are the second-lowest-priced (after Wyoming) higher education option in the U.S.
The university's annual tuition for in-state undergraduates was kept flat again (versus fall 2021) at $6,517 for fall 2022.
This represents the ninth consecutive year of flat tuition continuing the state and public university system's mandate to
remain affordable to students in return for higher state appropriations. Management indicated that in 2014, the state
legislature repealed universities' ability to increase differential tuition for undergraduate students, permitting most

public universities to impose only the tuition rate passed by the legislature. In our view, this constrains an area of
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Summary: Florida Board Of Governors Florida State University; Auxiliary - System; Public Coll/Univ - Unlimited
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revenue generation for the university. Fall 2023 tuition and fees are indeterminate at this point.

Environmental, social, and governance

We view the risks posed by COVID-19 to public health and safety as a social risk under our environment, social, and
governance factors. Despite pandemic-related pressures challenging the higher education sector, FSU has grown
enrollment since fall 2020 and maintained exceptional demand metrics. While not located directly on the coast, we still
consider environmental risks to be somewhat elevated for FSU, given its location in Florida that could be more
susceptible to weather events and the effects of climate change. Despite the elevated social and environmental risk, we

believe FSU's governance risk are line with our view of the sector as a whole.

Outlook

The stable outlook on the university USF-equivalent bond rating reflects our expectation that during the outlook
period, the university's enterprise profile will remain stable, state operating support will remain favorable, net adjusted
financial operations, and available resource ratios will be preserved around current assessment levels. The rating
outlook on the dormitory revenue bonds reflects our opinion of continued solid occupancy, near 2x MADS coverage in

fiscal 2023, and maintenance of dormitory system exceptional cash and investment balances.

Downside scenario

While unlikely in our view, factors that could result in a negative rating action over our outlook period include a trend
of material enrollment declines, deterioration in full-accrual operating results, or erosion of available resources to
levels incompatible with the current ratings. In our view, credit factors that could result in a negative rating action on
the dormitory revenue bonds include dwindling (versus current levels) of dormitory system cash and investment

balances, occupancy, and MADS coverage.

Upside scenario

We could consider a positive rating action for the USF-equivalent rating if its university's endowment and available
resources grow to levels more consistent with 'AAA' rated peers, and it preserves other core credit characteristics
around current assessment levels, specifically enrollment and demand metrics and net adjusted financial operations.
With this upgrade, a positive rating action on the dormitory revenue bonds is unlikely given the university's

USF-equivalent ratings.

(For more information, see our full analysis on Florida State University published Jan. 11, 2023, on RatingsDirect.)

Related Research

Through The ESG Lens 3.0: The Intersection Of ESG Credit Factors And U.S. Public Finance Credit Factors, March 2,
2022

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed
to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for
further information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating
action can be found on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left column.
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MooODY'S

Rating Action: Moody's assigns Aa2 to Florida State University's
Series 2023A dormitory revenue refunding bonds; outlook stable

05 Jan 2023

New York, January 05, 2023 - Moody's Investors Service has assigned a Aa2 rating to the Florida
State University's proposed approximately $25 million Florida State University Dormitory Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A. The bonds will have final maturity in calendar year 2033. The
bonds will be issued through the State of Florida Board of Governors. Moody's maintains a Aa1l
issuer rating on Florida State University and Aa2 ratings on the university's dormitory, parking and
mandatory student fee revenue bonds. The outlook is stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

Florida State University's Aa1 issuer rating incorporates excellent strategic positioning as a
prominent comprehensive university with notable student demand strength aided by strong
operating and capital support from the Aaa-rated State of Florida. Other strengths include donor
support, total wealth of $2.1 billion, a low debt burden, strong operating performance, and well
diversified revenues including gains in sponsored research. Offsetting factors include political
limits on tuition and fee price setting and expected ongoing capital needs.

The assignment and maintenance of the Aa2 limited pledge ratings for all of the various revenue
bonds, including the Florida State University Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A,
incorporate Moody's expectations of continued active management of the pledged revenues as a
mitigant to potential volatility in the various gross and net revenue pledges as well as the
presence of financial reserves.

RATING OUTLOOK

The stable outlook incorporates Moody's expectation of strong operating performance and state
support. It also reflects expectations of excellent student demand and active management of
revenues supporting debt service.

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE OF THE RATING

-Substantial increase in total cash and investments and revenue diversity

-Ongoing gains in revenue diversity

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE OF THE RATING

-Material weakening of operating performance

-Sustained decline in unrestricted liquidity

-Weakening of pledged revenue streams





LEGAL SECURITY

The Florida State University Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A are secured by
and payable from the net operating revenues of FSU's housing system. The housing system had
$49.4 million in gross operating revenues in fiscal 2022, with pledged revenues of $29.8 million
covering annual debt service 2.04x. Other security features for the rated series include an
additional bonds test (preceding two fiscal year's net revenues greater than or equal to 130% pro
forma maximum annual debt service) and a sum sufficient rate maintenance covenant. Current
guidance for fiscal 2023 projects 1.88x coverage. The housing system held $73.7 million in
current cash and investments (compared to annual debt service of around $14 million) as of
June 30, 2022 that would be one of the more likely sources of active debt service support in the
event of a disruption to dormitory net revenue performance.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Proceeds from the Series 2023A bonds will be used to refund all or a portion of the Florida State
University Dormitory Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A and to pay costs of issuance.

PROFILE

Florida State University is a public comprehensive research university with 18 separate colleges
that offer 284 undergraduate, graduate, doctoral, professional and specialist degree programs.
The university enrolled 44,597 students on a headcount basis as of fall 2022.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was Higher Education Methodology published in
August 2021 and available at https://ratings.moodys.com/api/rmc-documents/72158.
Alternatively, please see the Rating Methodologies page on https://ratings.moodys.com for a
copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For further specification of Moody's key rating assumptions and sensitivity analysis, see the
sections Methodology Assumptions and Sensitivity to Assumptions in the disclosure form.
Moody's Rating Symbols and Definitions can be found on https://ratings.moodys.com/rating-
definitions.

For ratings issued on a program, series, category/class of debt or security this announcement
provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond
or note of the same series, category/class of debt, security or pursuant to a program for which
the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance with Moody's rating
practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support provider and in
relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from
the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive
rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the
transaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating
in a manner that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the issuer/
deal page for the respective issuer on https://ratings.moodys.com.

The rating has been disclosed to the rated entity or its designated agent(s) and issued with no
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amendment resulting from that disclosure.

This rating is solicited. Please refer to Moody's Policy for Designating and Assigning Unsolicited
Credit Ratings available on its website https://ratings.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable,
the related rating outlook or rating review.

Moody's general principles for assessing environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks in
our credit analysis can be found at https://ratings.moodys.com/documents/PBC_1288235.

The Global Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of
Moody's affiliates outside the EU and is endorsed by Moody's Deutschland GmbH, An der Welle 5,
Frankfurt am Main 60322, Germany, in accordance with Art.4 paragraph 3 of the Regulation (EC)
No 1060/2009 on Credit Rating Agencies. Further information on the EU endorsement status and
on the Moody's office that issued the credit rating is available on https://ratings.moodys.com.

The Global Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of
Moody's affiliates outside the UK and is endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Limited, One
Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5FA under the law applicable to credit rating agencies
in the UK. Further information on the UK endorsement status and on the Moody's office that
issued the credit rating is available on https://ratings.moodys.com.

Please see https://ratings.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst
and to the Moody's legal entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the issuer/deal page on https://ratings.moodys.com for additional regulatory
disclosures for each credit rating.

Dennis Gephardt

Lead Analyst

Higher Education

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
7 World Trade Center

250 Greenwich Street

New York 10007
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1212 553 1653

Rachael McDonald

Additional Contact

Housing

JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

Releasing Office:

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

US.A

JOURNALISTS: 1212 553 0376
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Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

© 2023 Moody's Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their
licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT
OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR
DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION
PUBLISHED BY MOODY'’S (COLLECTIVELY, “PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT
OPINIONS. MOODY'’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS
CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED
FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE MOODY'S
RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF
CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT
RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY
RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT
ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS"), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S
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RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC.
AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND
MOODY'’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR
SECURITIES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY
PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND
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EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING,
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MOODY'’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
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FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS
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ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
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MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
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REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM
BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be
accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other
factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any





kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a
credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including,
when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and
cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating
process or in preparing its Publications.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect,
special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection
with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information, even
if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or
suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or damages, including but not
limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where
the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by
MOODY'’S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses
or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but
excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the avoidance of doubt,
by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of,
MOODY'’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or
suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or
inability to use any such information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT RATING,
ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY
FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s
Corporation (“MCO"), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate
and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to
Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it fees
ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s Investors Service also
maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody'’s Investors Service
credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may
exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings
from Moody’s Investors Service and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest
in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor
Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to
the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY'S affiliate, Moody'’s Investors Service Pty
Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody'’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94
105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended to be provided only to
“wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By
continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'’S that you
are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither
you nor the entity you represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its
contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001.
MOODY'’S credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer,
not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail
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investors.
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FitchRatings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Rates Florida State Univ's
Dormitory Rev Rfdg Bonds
Series 2023A 'AA’; Outlook
Stable

Fri06 Jan, 2023 - 3:26 PMET

Fitch Ratings - New York - 06 Jan 2023: Fitch Ratings has assigned a 'AA' rating to
approximately $25.0 million of Florida State University (FSU) dormitory revenue refunding
bonds to be issued by the State of Florida Board of Governors (BOG) on behalf of FSU.

Fitch has an outstanding 'AA+' Issuer Default Rating (IDR) for FSU and outstanding 'AA'

ratings on the following limited revenue pledge bonds issued by the State of Florida on
behalf of FSU:

--$122 million State of Florida BOG (FL) FSU dormitory rev bonds, series 2013A, 2014A,
2015A, and 2021A.

The Rating Outlook is Stable.

RATING ACTIONS

ENTITY/DEBT < RATING = PRIOR =
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VIEW ADDITIONAL RATING DETAILS

The FSU series 2023A revenue bonds are expected to sell competitively on or about the
week of Jan. 9. Bond proceeds will be used to refund (for debt service savings) a portion of
the series 2013A outstanding bonds, maturing in the years 2024 through 2033, and to pay
costs of issuance. The bonds will have a final maturity of 2033.

SECURITY

The FSU dormitory revenue refunding bonds will be secured by a pledge of and a first lien
on net revenues of FSU's student housing system.

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

FSU's 'AA+' IDR and 'AA' dormitory revenue bond ratings are attributable to the
university's very strong financial profile combined with its 'aa' revenue defensibility and 'a'
operating risk profile assessments, together with the housing system's good annual debt
service coverage and strong reserves. As a comprehensive flagship university, FSU has a
statewide and even national draw for students and has considerable fundraising

capabilities.

The Stable Outlook reflects Fitch's expectation that the university will sustain adjusted
cash flow margins, as defined in Fitch's criteria, in line with historical trends, and that
balance sheet strength will be maintained and improve over time.

The 'AA' ratings on FSU's rated housing/dormitory revenue bonds reflect the considerable
strength of the university and the fundamental importance of the auxiliary functions to FSU
operations. Ratings on securities with narrower or limited revenue pledges may be notched
below the parent's IDR rating. Debt service coverage for the housing bonds are generally

sufficient as discussed in more detail below.





The series 2023A bonds will be structured to generate level debt service savings, and
following the refunding estimated annual debt service coverage is about 2.0x in each year.
An Additional Bonds Test will require 1.30x maximum annual debt service coverage based
on average pledged revenues over the prior two fiscal years. Pledged revenue is estimated
at $28 million for fiscal 2024 and projected to remain approximately level thereafter
through fiscal 2027.

KEY RATING DRIVERS

Revenue Defensibility: 'aa’
Flagship University with Broad Reach

FSU's revenue defensibility is consistent with an 'aa’ assessment. The university is a
comprehensive flagship research institution with broad statewide, regional and even
national/international draw. Retention rates and average SAT scores are very high.
Enrollment has remained solid through the pandemic, with steady selectivity and
matriculation levels. Fitch views FSU's enrollment demand as reasonably inelastic to tuition
rates, although the State of Florida maintains limits on tuition rate increases. FSU manages
its endowment spend rates at sustainable levels.

Operating Risk: 'a’
Track-Record of Sufficient Adjusted Cash Flow Margins

FSU's operating risk profile is consistent with an 'a' assessment. The university has a track-
record of sufficient cash flow margins, which have steadied in recent years. Fitch calculates
the adjusted cash flow margin at 11.5% in fiscal 2021 and preliminary fiscal 2022 unaudited
results reflect stability. FSU's capital spending needs have been somewhat limited in recent
years but are ramping back up near-term, including construction of the new student union.

There are no major capital projects planned for the Housing System in the next five years.
FSU continues to focus on elevated lifecycle investment needs, including deferred
maintenance. Housing System capex for repair and replacement averages $3.35 million per
year and are funded by Housing operating revenues.

The outstanding FSU revenue bonds rated by Fitch are supported by auxiliary enterprises,
each of which typically generates adequate cash flow to provide sufficient debt service
coverage, except for insufficient housing system coverage of 0.94x in fiscal 2021 as aresult





of temporary reductions in demand due to the pandemic. Management reports a return to
housing system annual historical coverage levels in fiscal 2022 at or near 2.00x.

Financial Profile: 'aa’

Very Strong Leverage Ratios

FSU's financial profile is very strong. Capital-related ratios are expected to remain solid,
including through the cycle in Fitch's stress case scenario. Available funds (AF) measured a
robust $1.266 billion at FYE 2021, including $396 million of available FSU Foundation
funds. Fitch defines available funds as cash and investments less non-expendable restricted
net assets. Unaudited fiscal 2022 results reflect modest growth in AF.

FSU's adjusted debt, measured as direct debt plus adjusted Net Pension Liability (NPL),
measures nearly $676 million at FYE 2021, but decreased significantly in fiscal 2022 largely
due to areduction in the adjusted NPL. The university's available funds to adjusted debt
measured 187.2% at FYE 2021 and is expected to be improved in fiscal 2022 (unaudited).
Fitch expects further improvement over time in Fitch's base case scenario, including the
current financing as well as additional bank debt incurred in fiscal 2022 for the research
foundation, unless additional and unplanned debt is issued.

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations

There are no asymmetric risk factors affecting the ratings.

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to positive rating action/upgrade:

--Sustained improvement in the university's adjusted cash flow margin above 15%;

--Material and continuous improvement in FSU's available funds/adjusted debt at or above
300% could lead to a rating upgrade;

--Improvement in FSU's competitive demand profile, which supports improved and
sustained coverage on any or all of its limited pledge bonds.

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to negative rating action/downgrade:





--Narrowing in the university's adjusted cash flow margin at or below 6% for a sustained
period;

--Material weakening in the university's available funds/adjusted debt at or below 100%
could lead to a rating action;

--Significant unplanned debt issuance could pressure the rating, particularly if compounded
with FSU's weaker operations or liquidity;

--Weakening in FSU's competitive demand profile, which supports materially weaker
coverage on any or all of its limited pledge bonds.

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and Infrastructure issuers
have a best-case rating upgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of rating
transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three notches over a three-year rating
horizon; and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of
rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of three notches over three years. The
complete span of best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories
ranges from 'AAA' to 'D'. Best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings are based on historical
performance. For more information about the methodology used to determine sector-
specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit
https://www.fitchratings.com/site/re/10111579.

CREDIT PROFILE

FSU is a public comprehensive, graduate-research and flagship research university with its
main campus located in Tallahassee, a 25-acre branch campus in Panama City, and a
community-based/primary-care focused College of Medicine with locations around the
state. FSU's regional accreditation with the Southern Association of Colleges and
Universities was reaffirmed in 2014 for another 10-year term. FSU's 16th president began
his term in early fiscal 2022. Total headcount enrollment in fall 2022 measured 44,597,
including 33,348 undergraduates, of which 3,661 were first time in college (FTIC) students.

FSU has on-campus housing for approximately 6,707 students, the vast majority being
undergraduate students. Approximately 89% of undergraduates attend full-time, and
although 84% of students are from Florida, a majority of in-state students are from central
and south Florida rather than the Tallahassee area. The current on-campus capacity of
6,707 is enough space to accommodate all FTIC students and approximately 18.3% of the





university's full-time students; however, existing demand for on-campus housing by
students exceeds the number of beds available. The university does not have a policy

requiring any students to live on campus.

Historically, applications for housing largely exceeds capacity and actual fall occupancy is at
least 98.9% of capacity, with the exception of fall 2020, where occupancy was 78.0% of
capacity due to the impact of COVID-19. The waiting list for the fall 2022 semester
exceeded 380 students at the end of May. Due to the length of the waiting list, housing
applications were not accepted after May 1. The university estimates several hundred
students are turned away from applying for on-campus housing each year due to this
deadline. As of Aug. 17,2022, 6,639 students live on campus for the fall 2022 semester,

resulting in an occupancy rate of approximately 99%.

In fiscal 2021, the university received a Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental
Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF 11)
allocation of $45.4 million, with $14.7 million for students and $30.7 million for
institutional support which boosted federal grant and contract revenue that year.
Additionally, the university received an American Rescue Plan (ARPA) allocation under
HEERF Il in the amount of $80.0 million, with $40.2 million for student and $39.8 million
for institutional support. In fiscal 2022, an increase of about $69 million in grants and
contract revenue resulted primarily due to a drawdown of the institutional portion of funds
under the HEERF grant program.

REVENUE DEFENSIBILITY

FSU's strong demand profile is evidenced by record student success rates with a four-year
graduation rate among the highest for public universities in the nation and the highest in
the state at 73.6% in fall 2021 and 72.7% in fall 2022 according to management. The six-
year graduation rate is also very high at 83.2%. FSU is a top research institution supporting
a very strong and growing graduate and doctoral program. Since FSU is very strategically
focused on top-quality enrollment and retention, it is not likely that undergraduate
enrollment will grow significantly, though freshmen applications continue to demonstrate
strong growth.

Management believes that the increase is driven from increased positive press and
improvement in various national rankings combined with the implementation of the
Coalition application platform in 2018, so students may complete either institutional or
coalition applications. While freshmen retention is very high at 93.6% and freshmen





selectivity has gradually improved over the past several years to 22.7% in fall 2022, yield
has fluctuated and reflects a somewhat less competitive demand profile at 23.9%.

After the governor implemented a budgetary holdback for fiscal 2021, in anticipation of a
potential budget reduction to State appropriations which did not materialize, FSU saw an
increase in both the fiscal 2022 and 2023 state non-capital appropriation due to the
increase in the general appropriation, while FSU's capital appropriations also increased
primarily due to substantial increases in both general revenue and public education capital
outlay (PECO) funding.

OPERATING RISK

Overall, FSU operations have normalized as the effects of Covid-19 pandemic have eased.
The State University System (SUS) received significant federal support to offset the impact.
Collectively, Florida universities received $1.6 billion in federal funds during FY20 and
FY21 consisting of about $632 million for financial aid and $968 million for university
support (defraying expenses and lost revenues associated with the pandemic). FSU
received about 10% of this total or $154.7 million, $85 million of which was used to defray
expenses.

To address revenue declines in fiscal 2021, management incorporated several cost-saving
measures, including delaying capital projects and equipment purchases, implementing a
hiring freeze and suspending travel. The university furloughed some of its employees
during fiscal 2020 and 2021 as well as achieving compensation savings due to the measures

mentioned above.

FSU benefitted from increasing state support in the 2022 legislative session with the
education and general budget total of $5.6 billion across all state of Florida public
universities, up $266 million or 5% higher than prior year. Performance funding, though flat
over prior year, is substantial at $560 million across all state universities, and FSU is among
the highest in terms of allocations. The State FCO (fixed capital outlay) funding was also up
431% in fiscal 2022 at $940 million in aggregate.

The outsized increase in FCO in fiscal 2022 is due to funding of special Board and
Legislative initiatives and is not likely to be recurring. About half will be used to address
deferred capital renewal and replacement needs and for appropriated FCO projects. There
is no official spending restriction for fiscal 2022 aside from some remaining pandemic
related restrictions (selected travel). There is also no increase in tuition and fees
themselves, though there were enrollment-related increases to associated budgets, which





will be partially offset by increases in inflationary spending. Fitch expects such increases to
be manageable as FSU began fiscal 2023 with about $58 million in carry-forward reserves

that it can draw upon from the state statutory 7% reserve requirement.

FINANCIAL PROFILE

Fitch expects capital-related ratios to remain solid in fiscal 2022 (unaudited), including
through-the-cycle in our base case and stress scenarios, including about $48 million of
additional mandatory student fee revenue debt issued by FSU in fiscal 2022.

Available funds measured a robust $1.266 billion at FYE 2021, including $396 million of
available FSU Foundation funds. Fitch defines available funds as cash and investments less
non-expendable restricted net assets. FSU's adjusted debt, measured as direct debt plus
adjusted Net Pension Liability (NPL), measures nearly $676 million at FYE 2021. The
university's available funds to adjusted debt measured 187.2% at FYE 2021 and is expected
toincrease in fiscal 2022. No additional debt is currently planned over the near term;
however, fluctuations in adjusted NPL could materially impact the ratio over time.

Date of Relevant Committee

04 August 2022

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified
below, this action was informed by information from Lumesis.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF
RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable
Criteria.

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevanceis a
score of '3". This means ESG issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimal credit impact
on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in which they are being managed by the
entity. For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit
www.fitchratings.com/esg
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established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating.
Therefore, ratings and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or
group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating or a report. The rating does not
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mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have
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The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained by Fitch at the request of the
rated entity/issuer or a related third party. Any exceptions follow below.
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Fitch’s international credit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be,
are endorsed for use by regulated entities within the EU or the UK, respectively, for
regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU CRA Regulation or the UK Credit
Rating Agencies (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be. Fitch’s
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within the entity summary page for each rated entity and in the transaction detail pages for
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Kyle,

Please see the attached report of the $24,395,000 Florida State
University, Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A. The issue
sold on January 11, 2023.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please let
me know.

Thank you,
Ben

Ben Watkins | Director | Florida Division of Bond Finance
1801 Hermitage Blvd. | Suite 200 | Tallahassee FL 32308
(850) 488-4782 main | ben.watkins@sbafla.com

This communication may contain confidential, proprietary, and/or
privileged information. It is intended solely for the use of the
addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, you are strictly
prohibited from disclosing, copying, distributing or using any of this
information. If you received this communication in error, please
contact the sender immediately and destroy the material in its
entirety, whether electronic or hard copy. Additionally, please note
that Florida has a very broad public records law. This communication
(including your email address, any attachments and other email
contents) may be subject to disclosure to the public and media.


mailto:ben.watkins@sbafla.com

From: Kyle Clark

To: clarks6231@gmail.com

Cc: clarks3214@att.net

Subject: Fwd: Sale of $24M FSU Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A - Pricing Book
Date: Thursday, January 19, 2023 5:56:00 PM

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

Cec: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>, Michael Williams
<mswilliams@fsu.edu>, "Brian D. Lamb - JP Morgan Chase
(bdlamb76@hotmail.com)" <bdlamb76(@hotmail.com>, "Eric Silagy
(eric.silagy@fpl.com)" <eric.silagy@fpl.com>, "Charlie Lydecker
(CLydecker@FoundationRP.com)" <CLydecker@foundationrp.com>, "Ray
Rodrigues (ray.rodrigues@flbog.edu)" <ray.rodrigues@flbog.edu>,
tim.jones@flbog.edu, "Kevin Pichard (Kevin.Pichard@flbog.edu)"
<Kevin.Pichard@flbog.edu>, Charlie Yadon <Charlie.Yadon@sbafla.com>,
Alexis Lambert <Alexis.Lambert@sbafla.com>, Kim Nichols
<Kim.Nichols@sbafla.com>

Subject: Sale of $24M FSU Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2023A - Pricing Book

Kyle,

Please see the attached report of the $24,395,000 Florida State University, Dormitory
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A. The issue sold on January 11, 2023.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please let me know.

Thank you,
Ben

Ben Watkins | Director | Florida Division of Bond Finance
1801 Hermitage Blvd. | Suite 200 | Tallahassee FL 32308
(850) 488-4782 main | ben.watkins@sbafla.com

This communication may contain confidential, proprietary, and/or privileged
information. It is intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you are not the


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
mailto:clarks6231@gmail.com
mailto:clarks3214@att.net
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

Page 1





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

Page 7





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

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JANUARY 11,2023 6





Copyright © 2023 by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be
modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party
providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or
availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use
of the Content, or for the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an “as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM
FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY
SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive,
special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact.
S&P's opinions, analyses and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The
Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making
investment and other business decisions. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from
sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives. Rating-
related publications may be published for a variety of reasons that are not necessarily dependent on action by rating committees, including, but not limited to, the publication
of a periodic update on a credit rating and related analyses.

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P
reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such acknowledgment at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof.

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result,
certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policies and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information received in connection with each analytical process.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P reserves the right to disseminate
its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com
(subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional information about our ratings fees is
available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.

STANDARD & POOR'S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JANUARY 11,2023 7





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
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rating assumption sensitivity)





U.S. Public Finance College and University Rating Criteria: Effective 11/4/2021 to
9/22/2022 (pub. 04 Nov 2021) (including rating assumption sensitivity)
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providing description of model(s).

Portfolio Analysis Model (PAM), v1.3.4 (1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Solicitation Status

Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS

State of Florida Board of Governors (FL) EU Endorsed, UK Endorsed

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

All Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratings are subject to certain limitations and disclaimers.
Please read these limitations and disclaimers by following this link:
https://www.fitchratings.com/understandingcreditratings. In addition, the following
https://www.fitchratings.com/rating-definitions-document details Fitch's rating definitions
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and the FCA are required to publish historical default rates in a central repository in
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code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of interest, affiliate firewall, compliance, and
other relevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct section
of this site. Directors and shareholders' relevant interests are available at
https://www.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory. Fitch may have provided another permissible
or ancillary service to the rated entity or its related third parties. Details of permissible or
ancillary service(s) for which the lead analyst is based in an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch
Ratings company (or branch of such a company) can be found on the entity summary page

for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings website.





Inissuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports (including forecast
information), Fitch relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters
and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonable
investigation of the factual information relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings
methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent
sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security or in a given
jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party
verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer,
the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and
sold and/or the issuer is located, the availability and nature of relevant public information,
access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing
third-party verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals,
actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third
parties, the availability of independent and competent third- party verification sources with
respect to the particular security or in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety
of other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should understand that neither an
enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all of the
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intended recipient, you are strictly prohibited from disclosing, copying,
distributing or using any of this information. If you received this communication
in error, please contact the sender immediately and destroy the material in its
entirety, whether electronic or hard copy. Additionally, please note that Florida
has a very broad public records law. This communication (including your email
address, any attachments and other email contents) may be subject to disclosure to
the public and media.



From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams; Ross Cobb

Cc: John Sinclair

Subject: Fwd: FSUAA Committee Report

Date: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 7:53:58 AM
Michael,

Can you please work with Ross and JP on the below. I appreciate reviewing your draft by end
of day Feb 6.

Thx
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:
From: Peter Collins <PCollins@forgecapitalpartners.com>
Date: January 17, 2023 at 7:24:31 AM EST

To: Kyle Clark <kyle.clark@fsu.edu>, John Sinclair <jpsinclair@fsu.edu>
Subject: FW: FSUAA Committee Report

—


mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
mailto:mswilliams@fsu.edu
mailto:ross.cobb@fsu.edu
mailto:jpsinclair@fsu.edu

From: Kyle Clark

To: Michael Williams

Subject: FW: Alternate Payment Schedule Discussion
Date: Thursday, January 12, 2023 12:08:00 PM
Attachments: 20230110095427740.pdf

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

In follow up to our convo, please see attached along with my message below.....

Good morning,



mailto:kyle.clark@fsu.edu
mailto:mswilliams@fsu.edu



